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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEIEF
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Mr. Chen Fushan

Mr. Wang Dongwei

Non-executive Directors
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young, Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22nd Floor, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central

Hong Kong
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Agricultural Bank of China, Zhuhai Branch
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The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited
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4th Floor North Cedar House
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Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 3108, 31/F

China Merchants Tower

Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
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Pembroke, HMO8

Bermuda

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
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Hong Kong
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFUHREE

(For the year ended 31 December) (BEZ+=A=+—HIFE)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY AEMBRE
RMB’000 AREFTT
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—ERF ZEH4F —ZT)N\FE —T-NEFE ZBIEE
Revenue N 5,239,564 5675386 4,416,563 3,306,519 5,400,999
Gross profit EF 1,134,710 1,138,857 620,901 28,270 684,691
Profit (loss) before tax BRI ATE A (E51R) 626,922 270,378 (562,959)  (976,452) 202,965
Profit attributable to owners VN/NCTE Z SN
of the Company JEMERF 501,961 143,797 (678,801)  (995,228) 301,418
Basic earnings (loss) per share FRERZER (EE)
(RMB)* (ANEH#ETT) * 0.661 0.172 (0.814) (1.004) 0.120
Diluted earnings (loss) per share G HEZRH (&1E)
(RMB)* (ANR#TT) 0.659 0.172 (0.814) (1.004) 0.120
Non-current assets EREEE 4788195 4699411 4825233 4,682,596 5,001,208
Current assets REBEE 6,206,336  7,675517 6,571,894 7274664 8,329,152
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 3,064,308 3,448,327 245129 4,602,960 3,397,889
Current liabilities nREaE 3,725,973 4,436,268 7,460,266 3,317,564 5,448,592
Net assets BEEFE 4204250 4,490,333 3,691,732 4,036,736 4,483,879
REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
LN OF THE COMPANY
v NCIE PN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AREETF T
6,000,000 5,675,386 600,000 501,961
5,239,564 5,400,999
400,000
5,000,000 ! 301,418
4,416,563 200,000 143,797 1
4,000,000 0 -
3,306,519
3,000,000 -200,000
400,000
2,000,000
-600,000
1,000,000
-800,000 678,801
0 -1,000,000
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 995,228
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

Year 2020 was an extraordinary year. Facing the severe impact of COVID-19
pandemic as well as the complex and volatile economic situation, under
the strong leadership of Shuifa Group (7KZ£:[&), the Company persisted
in being at leading position, focused on industry upgrade, strengthened its
innovation drive, strived to be united and hardworking, and marched forward
against adversity, thereby achieved “double victory” in having stable yet
innovative strategy and having turnaround from loss to profit. In 2020, the
Company recorded revenue (including tariff adjustment) of approximately
RMB5.598 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 60.6%. Net profit
attributable to shareholders turned from a significant loss in 2019 to a profit
of RMB301 million. Over the past year, the Company has adopted various
measures, and the operation capacity and profitability have been significantly
improved.

ADHERE TO STRATEGIC GUIDELINES, STRIVE TO
RAISE OUR RANKING IN THE INDUSTRY

The 50MW photovoltaic + 100MWh energy storage integrated energy
demonstration project in Shigatse, Tibet undertaken by the Company has
become the largest photovoltaic project in Tibet. The 180MW photovoltaic
project in Longchang, Weining became the photovoltaic power station project
which ranked top 10 in the country and the largest single ground in Guizhou.
According to the comprehensive statistics of building and decoration industry
(curtain wall category) in China, the Company ranked top 10 for nine
consecutive years, and promoted from the ninth to the seventh position in
2020.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

PERSIST IN MARKET LEADERSHIP, STRENGTHEN
THE CORE BUSINESSES

The Company followed closely with the new trends of energy supply
development as well as created its competitive advantages in integrated
energy sector. Relying on the advantages of the original photovoltaic business,
the Company was able to merge its integrated energy service businesses,
including wind energy, energy storage, and multiple capacities and
complementary advantages. The Company completed the 50MW photovoltaic
+ 100MWh energy storage integrated energy demonstration project in
Shigatse of Tibet, the demonstration project for comprehensive utilisation of
100MW photovoltaic agriculture and photovoltaic tourism in Luonan, and the
construction of 40MW distributed wind power auxiliary energy storage project
in Ji'an of Jiangxi during the period.

Leveraging the technical advantages of green building construction integrated
service, the Company constantly enhanced its consulting, design and
construction capabilities in the new construction and renovation segments of
low energy consumption building. The Company’s R&D building project has
obtained the only zero-energy-consumption building certificate in China at
present, and Zhuhai Pilot Technology Park Phase 2 building became the first
ultra-low energy consumption certified building in “hot summer and warm

winter” regions.

Shuifa Group fully utilized its internal synergy advantages, identified and
acquired Shuifa Group’s quality clean energy assets, rapidly expanded the
Company’s asset scale as well as increased the Company’s profitability.
During the period, the Company acquired the equity interests of Zibo Qilu
Chemical Industry Zone Thermal Co., Ltd.* (SBEB(LE2T ¥R NE
fR727]) held by Shuifa Group, and prepared to develop its public utilities
business with stable cash flows and prosperous future.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

PERSIST IN TECHNOLOGY LEADERSHIP,
CONTINUE TO PROMOTE THE INCREASE IN
QUALITY AND EFFICIENCY WITHIN THE INDUSTRY

The Company actively participated in setting industry standards and
conducting cutting-edge technology research, strongly facilitated the
transformation of technological achievements, and was successfully listed in
the country’s “List of Smart Photovoltaic Pilot Demonstration Enterprises (&
ZRARABREPERE)". It also actively participated in the “US-China
Clean Energy Research Center Project (A 3528 R AT FH LIER)".

In 2021, the Company’s various businesses will continue to progress in an
efficient and orderly manner. The clean energy sector supports the wind
energy and solar energy storage and others advancing together, as well as
focuses its strengths and resources to capture the development of major
projects. For green building construction sector, its regional operations
are optimized, which increases the market share in both the established
traditional market and the national key construction market. As for new
material sector, it accelerates the market application of technological
achievements, and breaks through its existing bottlenecks by way of mergers
and acquisitions of material-related industries.

Shuifa Group will continue to make full play of its effective synergy
advantages, gradually inject quality heating business and photovoltaic and
wind power projects, and also rapidly expand the Company’s asset scale and
enhance the Company’s profitability.

In the future, we will continue to fully demonstrate the characteristics of state-
owned enterprises, utilize state-owned resources, fulfil social responsibilities,
and create better business results.

Zheng Qingtao
Chairman

=S B L

EFEHESIE - FEEEERIR
=R 43

N AEG S BT ERAEGIET AN AT 8 BRI
ANHEERBARRE L KOWABER B2
KRAHTHBEELE ] BRE2E[PXF
BrERBAF TR OIEA |

2021 FRABBRBERBEESBE FHAE -
BRERRE - IR RS RERE ALY
# o EhEZERIFERBBRE R
ERBBECRELE  REEEREZTHR
BIREHERMIZOLLE | FFEREINREL
RECROTISCER  EEMHARERT
B RERBAEFME -

BETT B EEERORAEYS ESIA
FEGEREHAKR - AEEE - REHA
ARAERM  RARARTLS -

RE - BABEERERNSE  FABELE
R BITHEEME  BIEEHEE -

3 3%

i

g 4

PEKEEEEREEER QA



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective accountability. This
report outlines the principles and the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors consider that, for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the Code.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with paragraph C.3
of the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. It
has also established a nomination committee and a remuneration committee
with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance practices
of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company from the listing date up to the date of
this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHRE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior management who
are delegated with the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Company. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises nine Directors, including four executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Zheng Qingtao, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. Liu Hongwei, who is also the Vice-chairman of the Company,
Mr. Wang Dongwei and Mr. Chen Fushan, two non-executive Directors,
namely, Ms. Wang Suhui and Mr. Zhang Jianyuan and three independent
non- executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. Wang Ching,
and Dr. Tan Hongwei.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over half
of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made in the
best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
Further details of these committees are set out below on pages 15 to 19.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound board level experience and expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The Board is comprised of
members with extensive business, government, regulatory and policy
experience from a variety of backgrounds. There is diversity of nationality,
ethnicity, educational background, functional expertise and experience. A
Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Adhoc
meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board
meeting. Reasonable notices will also be given to the Directors for ad-hoc
board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the
Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors were
provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive
directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is maintained on the
website of the Company and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHRE

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 4 Board meetings. The
attendance of individual Directors at the board meetings and annual general

meeting are set out below:

Board Meetings

Name of Directors

REHRE EFEHE
EREELFEFTEER

REFIAT

EFeea

Attendance
HEER

Annual

General Meeting

1T4RESE

MRFERAFREG

2
ax

H15

Board Meeting

ESiE [ ik FE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zheng Qingtao (Chairman) BEERE (LE) 0/1 4/4
Mr. LIU Hongwei (Vice Chairman) RIAT R (B ESE) 01 4/4
Mr. Chen Fushan PRAE L S A 01 4/4
Mr. Wang Dongwei TRRIExRE 0/1 4/4
Non-executive Directors FBITEE
Ms. Wang Suhui TEBELL 0/1 4/4
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan REEIREAE 01 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITEE
Dr. WANG Ching T REL 01 4/4
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SKEEFE 1/1 4/4
Dr. Tan Hongwei ERtEE LT 0/1 4/4
ZECZBEFR  PEKBEEEREEFRAR]
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHRE

SKILLS, KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND
ATTRIBUTES OF DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Board had served in office durng the period under review.
Every Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their understanding and
commit to high standards of corporate governance. The executive Director
brings his perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of the
Group’s business. The non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience, understanding
of local and global economies, and knowledge of capital markets to the
Group’s business. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable continuous professional development programmes for all Directors to
hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is required
to undertake an induction program to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of his duties and responsibilities. The induction program
includes an overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Board meetings’ procedures, matters reserved to the Board,
an introduction of the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and
duties, relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the Board
and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings with senior
officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary). Pursuant to the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of attending training
and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHRE

The company secretary of the Company maintains records of training

Year is tabulated as follows:

Training Records

B laoER

ARABZARMERFEEHE

ol 2 508k o
attended by the Directors. The training attended by each Director during the RER - SESHEE EJ‘lZ’\ﬁﬂ%Z’i‘JQDT :

Name Type of trainings Training matters
"2 wEalEE 3ERlETE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(MIzED) (MtzE2)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zheng Qingtao (Chairman) BEEALE (LE) a b i, i, il iv
Mr. LIU Hongwei (Vice chairman) RI4T 1R (B ESE) ab i, i, dii, v
Mr. Chen Fushan BRiELL A ab il i v
Mr. Wang Dongwei TRERE a,b i i, i, v
Non-Executive Directors FBITESE
Ms. Wang Suhui TEELL
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan RERTAE ab i i, dii, iv
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIERTEE
Dr. WANG Ching T =fEL a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SKEEFLE a, b i, i, il iv
Dr. Tan Hongwel BHEELT a,b i, i, i, iv
Note 1: MiEEL -
a attending seminar or training session a LR gskEIleR
b self-development and updates relating to general economy, business b HEELREH ALK XBERE &%
development, director’s duties and responsibilities, etc. B EMETES -
Note 2: [
i corporate governance i EER
i regulatory compliance ii VEIREST
if finance iii B
iv management and operation iv EIE N E
“ECFEFHR  PEKEHEEGEREEERAA
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess a wealth
of professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played a
significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and
their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they
bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategy, performance and
control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of Shareholders are taken into consideration,
and the interests of the Company and its shareholders are taken into account
in all business decisions. The Company has received the annual confirmation
signed by each independent non-executive Director to acknowledge their
respective independence. After prudent enquiry, the Board is of the view that
each of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. WANG Ching, and Dr. Tan Hongwei
maintains the independence as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on an
annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities referred
to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new business
opportunity introduced to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
Throughout 2020, no claim had been made against the Directors and the
officers of the Company.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
and that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

All of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a specific term but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the Articles. The term of appointment of each Independent Non- Executive
Director has been set out in the section headed “Directors’ Service Contracts”
of this report. Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform
the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect his
independence and must provide an annual confirmation of his independence
to the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with Rules 3.21 to
3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting process and
internal control procedure of the Group, to review the financial information
of the Group and to consider issues relating to the external auditor. The
Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Dr. Tan Hongwei,
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2020 and for the year ended 31 December
2020, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the

system of internal control.

=S B L
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The Audit Committee has considered significant issues on the financial
reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and internal audit function,
appointment of external auditors, engagement of non-audit services and
relevant scope of works and arrangements for employees to raise concerns

about possible improprieties.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee held 2

meetings.

The Audit Committee communicate with the external auditor, internal audit
consultant and also the management regularly to ensure internal control
policies were properly implemented by the management; and the financial
statements comply with internal accounting standards in all material aspects.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit

Committee’s meetings:

BB ENABMBRE EENAR
B EREIERARREE RS MR AR
BRIAE - REINESZBED - TRIEREIR
AR ERE TIFHIE MR B SR WEETETTAH
LHEERER -

=T-HIEFE - B

PR A - MBI B M E
BEETER  NEHRREEEERLE
EREIEER - U R BRREMAERN T ES
HanEest £l -

TREVNEZZBEKEHLFEEZNERN

No. of Audit Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: Wi LBiITExEeE
55 EEARE -

YICK Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) K3 (FE) 2/2
Dr. WANG Ching T Rt 2/2
Dr. Tan Hongwei EAEE L 2/2

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be viewed on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors.
The Remuneration Committee consists of five members, including three
independent non-executive Directors and the Chairman and Vice-chairman
of the Board, namely, Dr. Tan Hongwei, Mr. Zheng Qingtao, Mr. Yick Wing
Fat, Simon, Dr. Wang Ching and Mr. Liu Hongwei. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Dr. Tan Hongwei.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting to assess individual performance of the Directors and review
the remuneration packages and overall benefit of the Directors. The following
table shows the attendance and members of the

Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December 2020:

FWNESE

AARESTTAFEBLENRE - REEERN
—ETN\F+ A TN BBBRRBRR L
MEEE - FHMEZEENTIERERMARA
EFENEREEABNFMBER - ARISIE
ZEHNBRMETE B ESNFHMFBRL
EXAREBRAENESF  MEFSEHHES
R ¥MESghmnukE (BE=ABI
WITEFEUARESETRNMEITR)AEK - /B
BHAEEL  BEBEL  HABEEE IR
WL RBAIHEEL - HFHNZE S mEtEEL
EEXE -

“ECRF+_AZ+—HIEFE - H
BERTNeE  MIIHESZEAXRR
MEHNEEHFWMEBREERET -

A

EAIE AR A ERROER

No. of Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: Wi LBrHEmESE
BEE: BRERE -
TAN Hongwei (Chairman) B (FE) 1/1
ZHENG Qingtao el pe 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon SKE 1/1
WANG Ching T = 1/1
LIU Hongwei AT 4 1/1

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details
of which can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange.

—E-BEER
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with Recommended Best Practices of paragraph A.5 of the Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes.
The Nomination Committee consists of five members, including three
independent non-executive Directors and two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Zheng Qingtao, Mr. Liu Hongwei, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat,
Simon, and Dr. Tan Hongwei. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Mr. Zheng Qingtao.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. Accordingly, selection of candidates to the
Board is based on a range of measurable objectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience
and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service, having due regard
to the Company’s own business model and specific needs from time to time.
With the existing Board members coming from a variety of business and
professional background, the Company considers that the Board possesses
a balance of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board. The Nomination Committee will evaluate
potential candidates by considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting to review the policies on senior management appointments and
promotion. The following table shows the attendance and members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2020:

RERFEEBRERZ BEHAIMERERIA
THER  ThERSRN MBBIIRRS
REZBEEREBINEERM - HRELR - &

ANBRFERFEFEAREEEREAETF
fl o
HEZ-TF+_HA=+—HIFE &F

é;%ﬂ%‘é —REHFNERREIREASRE
BEENBEK - TREJHE_ZT_TF+_H
=t RALEFEREZEENBHEEHNE

No. of Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HiE  SBTREEEE
EE: BRAIRE :
ZHENG Qingtao (Chairman) 85E () 11
LIU Hongwei Era::d 1/1
WANG Ching F R 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon SKE 1/1
Tan Hongwei Bt 1/1

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details of which
can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board or
the Board committees including any dissenting views expressed by the
Directors, which should be available to all Directors for inspection. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document are required to be
sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility of the Company
Secretary to send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the Board or the
Board committees are also required to be sent to all Directors for record. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal
codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Finance Department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
the preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies,
disclosure requirements under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in
the annual and interim reports to the Shareholders, and make appropriate

disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The audit committee of the Board is responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
authorized external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors. The Company engaged Ernst & Young as
its external auditors, and also engaged Ernst & Young in connection with the
comfort letters and other assistance in respect of the issue of senior notes.
Details of the fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young during the year ended
31 December 2020 are as follows:

ZEETEN &

EEREZZEGAENEE  BELRILE
TEIMNEPAZENED - HEAESNEPAZ AT 2 Bl & KR BE R
160 DA R RSN AR SRM BE (T ok AR IS B AR
AIfERE - MEEFFIELHEBER - XAAFIEZ
ELOKGETRN B FT AINBIZERD - WA B
BITRARBH SR R EMIHB RISk E
TEERE - BHE-_Z-TF+-_A=+—8
WEFEER NG ESNE R
B

R
- PRI EERT

Audit service
— Interim review and annual audit

- PRI RHERR AR A R

— Interim review and annual

RMB8,530,000
AR #8,530,0007T
RMB1,400,000

audit of China Singyes New ([EEEFMEL) AE# 1,400,000 7T
Materials Holdings Limited AR BN E R
(“Singyes New Materials”)
Non-audit services IERZ BRI HK$144,200
— Tax service - BT PR 15 144,200 7T

Internal control and risk management

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Group’s system of internal control and risk management as well reviewing its
effectiveness an on-going basis, and, in particular, considering the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, training programmes and budget. The
Board will conduct periodic review, at least annually, which cover all material
aspects, including financial, operational, risk management functions and
is in compliance with all relevant regulations and endeavor to enhance the
internal control and risk management measures of the Group. Such systems
are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Directors consider that the internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.

=S B L

PERE I R E B EE

EEeRRESEYASENNEERARE
BEGUARBR ERENEE  THEZEAR
SERNGFT P BERBLE - HIRIEREE
TEHNER BIBEERERED RN EF
SRR BFETESRY  MERMBEKRT
| BENE - &2 RREERE  YTA
FTAHEREIRE - B0 hnos RS2 [ B Bt e B
B ERIEN - ZERMEEERRLERES
BiRmER - WEARHARENMBENRE
LA IEE R SRRR IR R

EERRAEE 2 AR EERIEIBAMNEI
JE °

PEKEEEEREEER QA

21



22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The Board has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view that in light
of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be
more cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to perform
internal audit functions for the Group as the need arises. Nevertheless, the
Board will continue to review the need for an internal audit function annually.

The Group appointed external independent professional advisors to review
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2020. The Group is also in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal control
and risk management system.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2020, which were prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 78 to 88.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective and on-going
communications with Shareholders and continues to act in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps Shareholders and
investors informed of its business performance and strategies by adopting
a transparent and timely disclosure policy which complies with the Listing
Rules and provides all Shareholders equal access to such information. The
Company also publishes all documents on the Company’s website.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides a
forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders directly.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer questions
during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and
related papers were posted to Shareholders for their consideration at least 20
clear business days prior to the AGM.

At each general meeting, the chairman of the meeting proposes individual
resolutions in respect of each substantially separate matter. All matters at
the Company’s general meetings are resolved by poll and the procedures for
conducting a poll will be explained at the meeting. Independent scrutineer
will be engaged to ensure all votes at general meeting are properly counted.
Poll vote results will be posted on the websites of the Company and HKEX in

a timely manner.

AGM proceedings and policies regarding Shareholders’ communication of the
Company are continually reviewed in the light of corporate governance best
practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirements under Paragraph O of the Code which is effective from 1 April
2012.
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(a)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

EERHmE

Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered office in
Bermuda at 4th Floor North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton
HM12, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108,
31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Annual Report 2020
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(b)

(c)

EERHmE

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number
of the shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company, or not less
than one hundred of such shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by
all the requisitionists must be deposited at the Company’s registered
office in Bermuda at 4th Floor North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at
Unit 3108, 31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board on
the secretary of the Company, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution
and not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition. Provided that if an annual general meeting is called
for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the enquiries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHRE

INVESTOR RELATION

During the period under review, there had been no significant change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

The Company has been introducing, and continues to introduce, measures
to comply with the Corporate Governance Code. Enhancing corporate
governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with the
Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Board in respect of
corporate governance during the Year:

(@)  review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b)  review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Company;

(c) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

(e)  review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board considered the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2020 are effective and
adequate. We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our
current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
developments. Any views and suggestions from our shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& DT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business overview

We are a professional renewable energy solution provider and building
contractor. Our main businesses are design, fabrication and installation
of curtain wall, green building and solar projects. Solar projects included
Building Integrated Photovoltaic System (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar
system and ground mounted solar system (collectively “Solar EPC"); we also
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of renewable energy goods. Our
BIPV system involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic technology into the
architectural design of buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar
energy into electricity for use. Our system allows the electricity generated
from solar panels to be connected to the power grid of a building and the
electricity generated from sun power will be consumed simultaneously.
No extra electricity storage cost is required. Apart from the above, we also
provide engineering design services and engage in the sale of curtain wall
materials. Leveraging on our track record and extensive experience in our
curtain wall business, we will further strengthen and develop our renewable
energy business in respect of BIPV systems and renewable energy products.
In 2020, the Group further diversified its business into Wind Power EPC and
the sale of petrochemicals, the Group recognised approximately RMB1,377.4
million and RMB925.1 million, respectively. As announced by the Company
on 11 September 2020, our Group also acquired Zibo Qilu Chemical Industry
Zone Thermal Co., Ltd from the controlling shareholder of the Company, after
this acquisition, the Group also entered into pipeline steam supply business,
total revenue during the year was approximately RMB188.7 million. Our
Group will endeavour to continue our focus on solar business. In the long run,
we will aspire and strive to grow into an enterprise with a focus on renewable

energy business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

CURTAIN WALL AND GREEN BUILDING BUSINESS

In 2020, our curtain wall and green building construction business dropped
slightly by RMB13.9 million or 1.2% as compared to RMB1,150.2 million
in 2019. Despite the widely spread of COVID-19 inside Mainland China
which brought negative impact to the Group’s curtain wall business in first
quarter 2020, a significant rebound of business activities from second
quarter onwards were noted inside Mainland China. In addition, because
of the improvement in liquidity and creditability of the Group after the debt
restructuring in November 2019, the Group’s revenue in curtain wall and
green building business remain stable.

SOLAR EPC BUSINESS

Solar EPC business dropped from RMB1,495.8 million in 2019 to
RMB1,192.0 million in 2020, representing a decrease of RMB303.8 million
or 20.3%. The drop was mainly because of the impact of COVID-19, most
of the Group’s projects were temporary suspended in first quarter 2020,
the drop was also due to the progress of certain projects of our Group were
slower than our original expectation.

WIND POWER EPC

In 2020, the Group involved in the EPC work on a number of Wind Power
EPC projects, revenue in 2020 was approximately RMB1,377.4 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN N D

DEVELOPMENT OF RENEWABLE ENERGY GOODS

Apart from Solar EPC, we also produce different kind of renewable energy
goods. Renewable energy goods include solar photovoltaic materials and
solar thermal products. Solar thermal products include air-source heat pump,
solar heat collectors and solar heating system.

In second quarter 2020, the Group started a new business line — sale of
petrochemicals. Total sale in 2020 was approximately RMB925.1 million.

As announced by the Company on 11 September 2020, our Group also
acquired Zibo Qilu Chemical Industry Zone Thermal Co., from the controlling
shareholder of the Company, its main business is the supply of pipeline
steam inside a industrial zone. Total revenue recognized during the year was
approximately RMB188.7 million.

SELF-DEVELOP SOLAR PROJECTS

At 31 December 2020, the Group had around 447.4 MW of grid connected
solar projects and 35.5 MW projects awaiting for grid connection.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue:

EXRUFORE
L ON

TRIIRUARRA

2020 2019
—ECTE —E-NF
RMB million RMB million
ARBEET ARBHET
Curtain walls and green buildings Bt ki BEE
— Public work —NETRE 162.4 148.5
— Commercial and industrial -1 646.0 648.9
— High-end residential - SiEE=E 327.9 352.8
1,136.3 1,150.2
Solar EPC KF58EEPC
— Public work - NETRE 24.8 1,115.3
— Commercial and industrial - I 1,167.2 380.5
1,192.0 1,495.8
Wind Power EPC [E.8E EPC
— industrial and commercial -EERTE 1,377.4 -
Total construction contracts BEA KB 3,705.7 2,646.0
Sale of goods EhiHE
— Conventional materials — EHME 213.3 239.4
— Renewable energy goods - A BAERESR 120.0 130.7
— New materials — ¥R 99.0 148.0
— Petrochemicals - ALER 925.1 -
Total sale of goods EoniHE ARG 1,357.4 518.1
Sale of electricity, including tariff adjustment & 7#H% - BIREEmMEL 325.7 3126
Thermal supply HEARTS 188.7 -
Rendering of design and other services R RET R AR TS 20.0 9.6
5,597.5 3,486.3

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R D

Gross profit and gross profit margin EFREFZE
2020 2019
—ETE ZE-NEF
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEST ARBEET
Construction contracts BEEHN
— Curtain walls and green - BfE M EEE
buildings 138.0 12.1 5.5 0.5
— Solar EPC - KFZ8EEPC 144.4 12.1 (60.1) (4)
— Wind EPC - EgEEPC 260.3 18.9 - -
542.7 14.6 (54.6) (2.1)
Sale of goods EmigE
— Conventional materials — EHME 53.1 24.9 36.0 15
— Renewable energy goods - I BAERER 13.8 11.5 (3.4) (2.6)
— New materials — SR 23.6 23.9 57.6 389
— Petrochemicals - AtER 11.9 1.3 - -
102.4 7.5 90.2 174
Sale of electricity, including BHHE B
tariff adjustment EEMmE 176.2 54.1 167.1 53.5
Rendering of design and RS
other services N EH AR 7.9 39.3 54 55.8
Thermal supply HEPRTS 52.0 27.6 - -
Total gross profit and gross BERRER K -
profit margin including BIREE AL
tariff adjustment 881.2 15.7 208.1 6.0

The Group’s revenue (including tariff adjustment) increased by RMB2,111.2
million or 60.6%, from RMB3,486.3 million in 2019 to RMB5,597.5 million
in 2020. Gross profit (including tariff adjustment) increased by RMB673.1
million or 323.4%, from RMB208.1 million in 2019 to RMB881.2 million in

2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

1)

2)

3)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Curtain wall and green building

Revenue from curtain wall and green building business in 2020
amounted to approximately RMB1,136.3 million, representing a
slight decrease of RMB13.9 million or 1.2% compared with 2019.
The drop was mainly came from the drop in offshore curtain wall EPC
businesses because of the spread of COVID-19. Meanwhile, a gross
profit of RMB138.0 million was recorded in 2020 (2019: gross profit of
RMB5.5 million).

After the completion of debt restructuring in November 2019, the
business of the Group has gradually been recovered, although the
progress of some of the Group’s projects were affected by the spread
of COVID-19, our Group could still be able to mark a reasonable profit
margin level in its curtain wall and green building EPC business.

Solar EPC

Solar EPC Revenue from Solar EPC dropped from RMB1,495.8 million
to RMB1,192.0 million, representing a decrease of RMB303.8 million
or 20.3%. Similar to curtain wall and green building EPC, the progress
of Solar EPC was also impacted by the spread of COVID-19, in addition,
certain Solar EPC’s progress were slower than expectation, these were
the main reason for the drop in Solar EPC revenue.

Gross profit on Solar EPC business was approximately RMB144.4
million (2019: gross loss of RMB60.1 million), as mentioned earlier,
after the completion of the Restructuring, the business of our Group
has gradually been recovered and the gross profit level has significantly

been improved.
Wind Power EPC
The Group started to involve into Wind Power EPC business in second

quarter 2020, revenue during the period amounted to RMB1,377.4
million, the gross profit margin of Wind Power EPC was about 18.9%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDN

4)

Sale of products

(M)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of conventional materials accounted to RMB213.3 million,
dropped by RMB26.1 million or 10.9% compared with 2019, it
was mainly because of drop in material sale in domestic areas
because of the spread of COVID-19, gross profit margin went up
to 24.9%.

Sale of renewable energy goods recorded a decrease of
RMB10.7 million or 8.2%, gross profit margin of 11.5% was
recorded during the year.

New Material business represented sale of Indium Tin Oxide
(“ITO”) film and its products. ITO film can be processed into
touch-screen ITO film and switchable ITO film, while the
switchable ITO film can further be processed into smart light-
adjusting glass and smart light-adjusting projection system. As a
result of the COVID-19 outbreak and related measures imposed
inside Mainland China, the sales volume has dropped due to
delays or cancellations of sales orders and reduction of demand
for new sales orders during the year. Moreover, the gross profit
margins declined because of the lower selling prices and the
higher per-unit fixed costs.

During the year, the Group started the sale of petrochemicals to
commercial customers, since the business segment is relatively
new to the Group, and gross profit margin was around 1.3%.

The Group further diversify its business, as announced by the
Company on 11 September 2020, our Group acquired a pipeline
thermal supply company from the Controlling Shareholder of
the Company, revenue during the year amounted to RMB188.7
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

(vi)  The following table sets out the Group’s self-invested solar power

stations as at 31 December 2020.

vi) TREINAEBER-_FT_FF
+ZRA=+—H Qﬁ&éﬁé’\]j&ﬁﬁ

BEEE UL o
Pending grid

On-grid connection In-progress Total

348 4 Fite “ast

Location Mw Mw MW MW
HhEy KT kT JKEL JKFL
Guangdong province ERE 190.3 7.0 61.4 258.7
Northwest China H 7L B 113.0 28.5 - 141.5
Golden Sun/Distributed Power &K,/ D= E L 142.1 - - 142.1
Overseas NP 2.0 - - 2.0
447.4 35.5 61.4 544.3

The Group’s accumulated on-grid capacity was 447.4 megawatts
(“MW”) at 31 December 2020, which comprised of 142.1
MW Golden Sun or distributed power stations, and 303.3 MW
ground-mounted solar farms inside Mainland China and a 2.0

MW solar farm overseas. The sale of electricity, including tariff
adjustment, amounted to RMB325.7 million in the year 2020

(2019: RMB312.6 million).

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

Revenue and gross profit contribution from different business REFBEXBESBHBARER :
sectors:

Revenue split (including tariff adjustment) WA 5 (EIEEEFAL)
2020 2019
ot ek o5 —E-NF
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEERT ARERET
Conventional business! B 1,369.6 24.5 1,399.2 40.2
Renewable energy business? Al A REREE? 4,128.9 73.8 1,939.1 55.6
New material business R E 99.0 1.7 148 4.2
5,597.5 100.0 3,486.3 100.0
Gross profit split (including tariff adjustment) EFHES (B EE AL
2020 2019
—E-EEF “E-NEF
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEET AREBET
Conventional business! [ESES S 199.0 22.6 469 22.5
Renewable energy business? Al AR 658.6 74.7 103.6 49.8
New material business MRS 23.6 2.7 57.6 27.7
881.2 100.0 208.1 100.0
L Included curtain wall and green building construction contracts, sale of 1 BIEEBRGEECEESY HEEHFMA K
conventional materials and rendering of design and other services. RARET R E MRS o
2 Included solar EPC construction contracts, sale of renewable energy goods, sale 2 BREAGREPCEEALN - HEFERE
of electricity and tariff adjustment, wind power EPC, sale of petrochemicals and o SHEB N REERMAL - EELEPC - HE
thermal supply. AV E A R AR TS -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERW RO

Other income and gains

Other income and gains mainly represented deferred income released, gain
on repurchase of senior notes, foreign exchange gain, waiver of interest on
other loan, government grants and compensation income.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses dropped by RMB46.6 million or 37.1%, the
drop in selling and distribution was mainly because of the general cost saving
policies implemented by the Group.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses dropped by RMB19.1 million as compared with the
year 2019. The drop was mainly caused by the drop in staff cost.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by RMB61.5 million or 14.8%. The
drop in finance costs were mainly because of the drop in average interest
rate and the average balance of senior notes.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense during the year included RMB116.0 million of taxation
charge (2019: RMB13.8 million) and RMB234.2 million of deferred tax credit
(2019: RMB2.5 million of deferred tax charge).

The taxation charges mainly represented the income tax provision for
subsidiaries inside Mainland China. No deferred tax charges on dividend
withholding tax based on 5% of the net profits in the operating subsidiaries
located inside Mainland China were provided for both years.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& DT

Current ratio

The current ratio, being current assets over current liabilities as at
31 December 2020 was 1.53 (31 December 2019: 2.19). This is our
Group’s strategy to maintain a health current ratio in order to meet short term
obligations of the Group.

Trade receivables/trade and bills payables turnover days

MENEL 3R

REZ-ZF+ - A=+—HORB X
RBEELRBAB) BIL3(ZE—1F
TZA=+—H:219) - AEEKRBRRREF
RERBLLEUBTASEZEHIEME -

FEWEE BRI TE E SRIER AR
wEER

At 31 December At 31 December

2020 2019

RIZBZEHE RZE—NEF

+=A +=A

=+—H =+—H

Turnover days Days Days
== PSS K&
Trade receivables FEUE 5 78 266 403
Trade and bills payables B E 5B MEN R 130 130

Trade receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade receivables for the year divided by
the revenue (excluding tariff adjustment) during the year and multiplied
by the number of days during the year. Trade receivables turnover days at
31 December 2020 was 266 days. Trade and bills payables turnover days
is calculated based on the average of the beginning and ending balance of
trade and bills payables for the year divided by the cost of sales during the
year. Trade and bills payables turnover days at 31 December 2020 was 130
days.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERW RO

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s primary source of funding included receives from construction
contacts, product sale as well as income from electricity sale. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had outstanding bank and other loans of
approximately RMB2,814.9 million and outstanding senior notes of
approximately RMB1,488.1 million. Apart from that, the Group also got loans
of Shuifa Group. As at 31 December 2020 the outstanding amount of the
principal and interests were US$225,591,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,471,961,000), among which US$212,862,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,388,908,000) of the borrowings would be due on
31 December 2021, and the remaining US$12,729,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB83,053,000) would be due on 27 August 2021.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures of the Group amounted to RMB178.6 million for the
year (2019: RMB67.8 million), these were mainly came from the acquisition
and construction of self-invested solar power stations.

Borrowings and bank facilities

The outstanding borrowings comprised bank and other loans of RMB2,814.9
million with effective interest rates ranging from Hong Kong Inter Bank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 3.3% to 3.4% for loans in Hong Kong. Interest
rates for domestic loans inside Mainland China were ranging from 4.45% to
24%.

Future plans for material investments or capital assets

The Group had no other future plans for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& DT

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the settlement
from customers and the payment to vendors.

Dividend

The Directors of the Company recommend payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.028 per share (2019: nil). The actual dividend payout ratio in each
year will depend on the actual performance of the Group, the general industry
and economic environment.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had about 1,400 employees. Employee
salary and other benefit expenses dropped to RMB163.5 million in the year
2020 compared with RMB174.1 million in the year 2019. It was generally
because of the drop in number of employees, average salary and bonus.
The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees, which will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart from
provident fund scheme (according to the provisions of Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes for Hong Kong employees) or the state-managed retirement
pension scheme (for Mainland China employees) and medical insurance,
discretionary bonus are also awarded to employees according to the
assessment of individual performance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENESREER

The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

TRENBEEFENER

Name Age Position e Fik Bt

Zheng Qingtao 46 Chairman and Executive Director g5 46 5%, FERNTESE
Liu Hongwei 57 Vice-Chairman and executive Director 24T 4 57 5% BIERERATES
Chen Fushan 48 Executive Director RRAE L 48 5% WITES

Wang Dongwei 38 Executive Director THRE 385% HITES

Wang Suhui 44 Non-executive Director TEE 44 5% FHITES
Zhang Jianyuan 39 Non-executive Director R 2R 3975% EMITESE

Wang Ching 66 Independent non-executive Director F = 66 7% B IERITES
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 63 Independent non-executive Director SoxEE 63 5% BN IERITES
Tan Hongwei 61 Independent non-executive Director AT 61 5% BN EITE SR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Qingtao, aged 46, has been appointed as the Chairman and an
executive Director of our Company on 28 November 2019. He has been the
assistant to general manager of Shuifa Group Co., Ltd. UK EBE AR A R])
and general secretary of party branch* (E#237 £52), chairman and general
manager of Shuifa Energy Group Limited (KEEEERERMAR AT since
March 2017. From February 2014 to February 2017 and from November
2012 to February 2014, Mr. Zheng served as the general manager and
chairman of Shandong Shuifa Tianyuan Water Group Co., Ltd. (LLIER/K3X
TRKIESEEABRAR]), and Liangshan County Water Development Co., Ltd.*
(LK E AR A R]) and Shandong Shengdu Water Development Co.,
Ltd.* (ILEREBHIKFEEERAMR AR, respectively. He worked at Shandong
Water Conservancy Engineering Company, First Engineering Company* (L
WOKF| T4 AR —T /A7) as general manager and secretary of
party sub-branch (EXx#fZ:2) from January 2007 to October 2012, and
Shandong Water Conservancy Engineering Company, Second Engineering
Company* (LLUE/KF TIREATE -T2 AT as deputy general manager
from September 2001 to December 2007. During July 1995 to September
2001, Mr. Zheng has taken the positions of engineering technician, party
secretary (EZE), secretary of youth league (EZEE:C) and party
secretary (EZZ£52) at Shandong Province (No. 2) Water Conservancy
Bureau* (I1E &5 —/KFTI2/E). Mr. Zheng obtained his bachelor’s degree
in political thoughts education (BAEBUAZLE) at Qufu Normal University*
(M EATEIAZ) in the PRC in 2003 and has approximately 20 years of
experience in corporate senior management and approximately 10 years of
experience in the energy industry.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREER

Mr. Liu Hongwei, aged 57, is the Vice-chairman and an executive Director of
our Company. He joined our Group since August 1995. He is responsible for
the formulation and execution of our Group’s overall business strategies and
policies as well as the overall management of our Group. Mr. Liu has more
than 12 years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than
16 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining
a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
inorganic materials engineering, Mr. Liu worked at a state-owned glass
manufacturing enterprise, Shaanxi Glass Factory, as a technician until 1989.
From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Liu was the director of production department at
another glass manufacturing enterprise, Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991
to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei was the manager of the operation department of
Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass. In 1995, Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass jointly
established Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai
Singyes”, formerly known as Zhuhai Singyes Curtain Wall Engineering Co.,
Ltd) with Zhuhai City Township Enterprise. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has
been an executive Director of our Company. From August 1995 to October
2007, Mr. Liu was appointed as Zhuhai Singyes’s general manager, taking
charge of general supervising and controlling on technologies. In December
2000, Mr. Liu was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the Guangdong
Province Construction Bureau. In January 2001, Mr. Liu was certified as
a Senior Engineer in respect of construction materials by the Guangdong
Province Personnel Bureau.

In 2003, Mr. Liu became an adjunct professor of Wuhan University of
Technology. In August 2004, Mr. Liu was appointed as one of the experts to
the Standardisation Technical Committee of the PRC Ministry of Construction
for Curtain Walls, Doors and Windows. Mr. Liu is currently a member of
the Standing Committee of the Zhuhai Municipal People’s Congress of the
PRC. Mr. Liu is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which holds
202,038,750 shares of the Company as at the date of this report (representing
approximately 8.02% of the issued share capital of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the listed issuer under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENESREER

Mr. Chen Fushan, aged 48, has been appointed as an executive Director of
our Company on 28 November 2019. He has been a deputy general manager
of Shuifa Energy Group Limited (/K3EEREBAMR AT since 2019.
During August 2014 to July 2018, Mr. Chen took the positions of marketing
director, member of party committee (2ZZ &) and assistant to director of
the Heze branch ($il/£4%77) and director of the Yucheng branch (B35
77) of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank. From June 2014 to July 2014,
he served as the general manager of risk management at the Heze branch
(i 777) of Laishang Bank (3€75#R7T7). Mr. Chen was the director of the
Yucheng branch (883%1%77) and operational director of the Heze branch
CaZE517) from May 2011 to June 2014 and from November 2010 to May
2011, respectively, both at Laishang Bank (%$R1T). He worked at China
Construction Bank, as director of the Dan County branch (EE§£31T) from
January 2007 to October 2010 and as deputy director of the Yucheng branch
(B35 77) from February 2006 to December 2006. During August 1994
to January 2006, Mr. Chen served as an international business settlement
officer, savings officer, officer and deputy manager of the credit department
and customer service executive of the Heze branch (R#%17) of China
Construction Bank. Mr. Chen graduated from Shandong Economics College*
(LR £&EERR) (currently known as Shandong University of Finance and
Economics) with a major in international finance in the PRC in 2001 and has
approximately 25 years of experience in audit, financial management, finance
and initial public offerings etc.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREER

Mr. Wang Dongwei, aged 38, has been appointed as an executive Director
of our Company on 28 November 2019. He has been a deputy general
manager of Shuifa Energy Group Limited (ZKEEEERE@AR AR since
June 2018. From May 2018 to June 2018, Mr. Wang was the assistant to
general manager at Shandong ENN Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (LLE
FEERERE AR AR, and from November 2014 to April 2018, he was a
standing deputy general manager of Jinan ENN Combustion Gas Co., Ltd.* (7
MEFTRMR B2 F]). He served as the chief accountant of Qingdao ENN
Jiaocheng Combustion Gas Co., Ltd.* (55 RBHARERE AR from
March 2011 to October 2014. Mr. Wang worked at Laiyang ENN Combustion
Gas Co., Ltd.* GRF5FTEIMRA AR A7) from March 2008 to February 2011
and Qingdao ENN Jiaonan Combustion Gas Co., Ltd.* (5B 2BEMRR
AR/ 7]) from April 2006 to February 2008, as an executive of the finance
department in both companies. From August 2004 to March 2006, Mr. Wang
took the position of a supervising accountant of the finance department
of Chucheng ENN Gas Combustion Co., Ltd* (FEBIFTERMRER AT,
and from July 2001 to July 2004, he was an accountant of Zibo Huaging
Fire Resistant Materials Company Limited* C&{EZEEMR A LB D F).
Mr. Wang obtained his master’'s degree in business administration at
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law* (FF B 8 &S BUE K ER) in the PRC
in 2012 and his bachelor’'s degree in accounting at Shandong Economics
College* (LUERA&LEEDT) (currently known as Shandong University of
Finance and Economics) in the PRC in 2003 and has approximately 15 years
of senior management experience in the energy field.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wang Suhui, aged 44, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
of our Company on 28 November 2019. She has been a deputy general
manager of the energy business department of Shuifa Group Co., Ltd. (7K
£E AR AA]) since March 2019. From 2016 to 2018, she was a business
manager of the asset operations division of Shuifa Group Co., Ltd. (K35
EHBRAF]). During 2004 to 2011, Ms. Wang has taken the positions of
auditor, senior manager and deputy director of the management consultancy
department of Xin Lian Yi Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd* (¥rH#zE
SETEIEFT). Ms. Wang obtained her master’s degree at the Shandong
University of Science and Technology in the PRC in 2004 and is a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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EENEHNEEE

Mr. Zhang Jianyuan, aged 39, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director of our Company on 28 November 2019. He has been a manager
of the investment department at Shuifa Energy Group Limited (7k3%4E
JREEB AR AR]) since April 2017 and is the chairman of the board of
Shandong Shuifa Combustion Gas Co., Limited* (ILE/KZERRER A T)
From June 2016 to April 2017, he was the financial director of Shandong
Yinfeng Construction Engineering Technology Co., Limited* (LLIZR 4R LiE:%
TREBHEEARRAR]. During July 2012 to June 2016, Mr. Zhang served as
a director of the financial management department, vice financial director
and executive of the financial management center of Linuo Power Group
Co., Ltd.* (WHBHEBEKRMNERA
manager at the Republic of Equatorlal Guinea branch of Beijing Shengdasen

. He took the position of financial

International Construction Contract Co., Limited* (1t A EFREIME T2
ABAMRAT]) from January 2010 to June 2012. During July 2003 to
December 2009, Mr. Zhang served as an accountant and chief accountant
of subsidiary at Shandong Province Construction (Group) Co., Limited* (L&
EERET(EE)ARSEEAT). Mr. Zhang graduated from the Shandong
(LI EBTEZBE) (currently known as Shandong University
of Finance and Economics) majoring in finance in the PRC in 2003 and

Finance College*

has approximately 16 years of experience in photovoltaics new energy,
investment, mergers and acquisitions, financial management and onshore
and offshore projects.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has near 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and asset
management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. He
was the president of Investment and Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun
Financial Holding Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the managing director of JS Cresvale
Securities International Limited, the managing director of SinoPac Securities
Asia Ltd. in Hong Kong, SEVP of SinoPac Securities Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the
director of Investment Banking Department at Standard Chartered Bank
Hong Kong and the associate director of Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., New York
and Hong Kong. Dr. Wang currently is the managing director of Shanghai
International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd., a licensed corporation
registered with Honk Kong Securities and Futures Commission. He is also
the executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited, an investment fund company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 770). Dr. Wang obtained his master degree in business administration
from the University of Houston and Ph.D. in finance from Columbia University
in the city of New York.

Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 63, is our independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Yick holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring
in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
England. Mr. Yick has over 30 years of experience in audit, direct investment,
investment banking and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Yick also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (both
are listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Yick is an independent non-executive
director and chairman of audit committee and remuneration committee,
member of nomination committee of Modern Media Holdings Limited (listed
on Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 72).
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Tan Hongwei, aged 61, is our non-executive Director and also a member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee and the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. He is a professor and a doctoral supervisor at the
School of Mechanical and Energy Engineering of Tongji University, a doctoral
supervisor at the School of Architecture and Urban Planning of Tongji
University and the interdisciplinary double-engaged responsible professor
at the United Nations Environment Programme- School of Environmental
Sustainability of Tongji University. He is also the key researcher of Climate
Change Key Laboratory, the core member of the first class academic peak
team (building technology) of Tongji University, the deputy director of the
Tongji University Green Building and New Energy Research Center, and
the director of the Tongji International Green Industry Innovation Center. Dr.
Tan graduated from the Department of Architecture of Tokyo University with
a doctoral degree in 1995. Dr. Tan has over 18 years of experience in the
teaching and research in respect of energy-saving building technologies,
application technology of renewable energy in buildings, building energy
efficiency supervision platform technology, urban low-carbon energy planning
technology, urban construction environment technology and other fields.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Zhao Feng, aged 55, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes since
August 2007. He is also a director of Zhuhai Singyes. He joined our Group
as a sales and marketing manager in December 2002. He has approximately
12 years of experience in the construction sector and approximately 11
years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhao worked as an engineer of Hubei Province Shashi
Construction Materials Scientific Research Institute from 1987 to 1995. Mr.
Zhao was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of construction materials
by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in December 2004. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
materials science in July 1987. Mr. Zhao became the general manager of
Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Co., Ltd, and responsible for managing its

daily operation.
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Zhang Chao, aged 48, is the operating general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
Mr. Zhang joined our Group in December 2002 as the manager of the
business department of Zhuhai Singyes. He has approximately 12 years of
experience in the construction sector and approximately 11 years’ experience
in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Zhang graduated from Qigihaer
Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in industry and civil
construction in July 1995. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked as a
construction budgeteer at Heilongjiang Province Hei He City Railway (Group)
Company from 1995 to 2002. In January 2006, Mr. Zhang was certified as
a constructor by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. Mr. Zhang
was also certified as a National Construction Appraiser by the Construction
Department in 2003 and construction engineer by Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in 2005. In December 2007, Mr. Zhong was registered as a constructor by
the PRC Ministry of Construction.

Luo Duo, aged 42, is the chief engineer of Zhuhai Singyes. She joined
our Group as a designer in July 2001. She has approximately 12 years of
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Ms. Luo worked as the
vice-director of design institute of Zhuhai Singyes from November 2004 to
December 2006 and the director of design institute from January 2007 to
January 2008. In February 2008 she was appointed as the chief engineer
of Zhuhai Singyes. Ms. Luo was certified as a Class 2 Registered Structural
Engineer by the PRC Ministry of Construction in January 2005. Ms. Luo
was certified as a Plan-Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in February 2008. Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Construction
Engineering from Qingdao Construction Engineery College in July 2001.

Liang Bingqiang, aged 43, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes
and responsible for the development of the overseas market. He has more
than 13 years of experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. He joined
our Group as a designer in April 2002. Mr. Liang worked as the director
of design department of Zhuhai Singyes Beijing representative office from
July 2004 to July 2006 and he worked for Zhongshan Shengxing Curtain
Wall Company Ltd from August 2000 to March 2002. In August 2006, he
was appointed as the manager of the photo-electricity business department
of Zhuhai Singyes. In April 2008, he was appointed as the deputy general
manager of Singyes Renewable Energy. Mr. Liang was certified as an
Assistant Engineer by the Zhongshan Personnel Bureau in October 2001.
Mr. Liang was certified as a Construction Design Engineer by the Zhuhai
Personnel Bureau in January 2006. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in construction engineering from Tianjin Institute of Urban Construction in
July 2000.

—E-BEER

REE - 487% ' RINBEELE MBI o Rk
ERZEE-F+Z AMAREEETHKE
TR TSI - HWREEERBLH12FK
B YASBIRESHEENIIFELES - R
EER—NNAFL ARENEBWRBERKE
%%zxﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁg* ¥ - MAKREE

CREEBR-ANAFE_ST_FREE
/Ié BUEEEEARETAREELERE
B RITEXRE—F  RELEEREAS
BEUS R A —EEERD - SREEND IR =_ZZ
—FERERIETARIEEM RS R
FREKEMASRETAEETIREM - N=2
TEF+A RAESERRERISERAE—
SRR o

BE A2 RINBEZEETIEA - HFR=
—F AMAREEEERETAD o BRE
BIREHEENIFLER BLTE T
TNF+—AE2_ZTTRF+ = Hﬁ%f_jtfﬂi/iili
ETFHEREE BT LF—HAE=%
SNF-ABRARGHEERIRETZE - R
ZENF-A REZTAKESEHELETE
fl e BTN -ZEZRF— AlEH .L*R‘B&H
AAZHGEMEE IR - BTN =ZZZ
i‘ﬂi%l%im/\?%%ﬁﬁﬁéw - axafI
*iﬁﬁi RZEET— i‘tﬁ BT TESEERE
BERETRETRELEN -

RIHE - A3 RINVBEERIAKE - 8&
BREGITS - KRB BLIEREEA RS
FRE c BR TR TFAIAREEER
SRETRD ’D%iﬁ_ggmitﬂi_y =N
FHAEARESEENL TR RN EERFT L
B RZZZTTF)NA ?:—gg—ﬂzfﬂﬁ/\tp
m,\%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ AIIIE - RZEZREN
CREEEREEE KR EERILLIE - R
:g%ﬁ)\ipﬂﬂ LT AR R B
IR o REANZTE iﬂﬂﬁ%q:wn}\%
PR ANETRERM RZZTTF—H 2
%Eﬁgfﬂi?ﬁ/\?%ﬁﬂﬁkﬁ&{l‘l&ﬁfﬁ
R TF+ AREERERERTERZER
RYRETIRSET 24 -

PEKEEEEREEER QA

47



48

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENESREER

Mr. Guo Yangyang, aged 37, was appointed as the co-chief financial officer
of the Group in October 2016. He graduated from the accounting discipline
of the China University of Mining and Technology in June 2005, and is
an intermediate accountant. Since joining the Group in July 2006, he has
worked as a manager in the Company’s financial planning department
and accounting and auditing department. He was appointed as the chief
accountant and deputy financial controller of the Company in January 2011.
He has over 10 years of financial and accounting experience.

Mr. Li Dezhu, aged 42, was appointed as the co-chief financial officer of the
Group in January 2021. He graduated from China Agricultural University with
a bachelor’s degree in accounting in 2010 and obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from Southwest University in 2016. Mr. Li has served
as the chief financial officer in certain large institutions in Mainland China,
with nearly 20 years of experience in financing accounting and corporate
finance etc.. Mr. Li is a senior accountant, senior economist, national high-
end accounting talent and a member of Certified Management Accountant.

YU Chon Man, aged 43, he has been the qualified accountant and company
secretary of our Company since 2008. He is responsible for financial
reporting and general investor affairs of our Company. He has approximately
20 years of experience in financial accounting. Mr. Yu is a fellow members
of both of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining us, he had
approximately seven years of working experience with international audit firms
and was mainly responsible for financial auditing, internal control reporting
and compliance advisory. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor’s degree (Hons) in accountancy in 2001.

Mr. Yu also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman of
audit committee of Luxxu Group Limited (stock code: 1327).

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, business or
other material/relevant relationships among members of the Board and the
senior management officers.
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COMPANY SECRETARY ATHE

Mr. YU Chon Man, is our company secretary. For further details regarding Mr. REFLEERNNBARME - BARLEN

Yu, please see the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above. E—HHE B2HLXaRERAE] —
E% -
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The directors (the “Directors”) of China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at 4th Floor, North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton HM
12, Bermuda. The Company has established a principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and was registered
with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea company under
Part XI of the Companies Ordinance on 29 August 2008. Mr. Yu Chon Man
has been appointed as the authorised representative of the Company for the
acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf of the Company in
Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of the
Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution comprising
a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 40 to 49 of this report. Save as disclosed in this report,
there are no other changes to the Directors’ information as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional renewable energy system integrator and building contractor, it is
principally engaged in the design, fabrication and installation of conventional
curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included building integrated
photovoltaic (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar system and ground mounted
solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”). The BIPV system involves (i) the
integration of photovoltaic technology into the architectural design of
buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar energy into electricity
for use. In addition, the Group also engages in the production and sale of
renewable energy goods, including smart grid system, and solar thermal
system. In 2020, the Group further diversified its business into Wind Power
EPC, our group completed approximately 189MW Wind Power EPC projects
during the year. And as announced by the Company on 11 September 2020,
our Group acquired Zibo Qilu Chemical Industry Zone Thermal Co., Ltd from
the controlling shareholder of the Company, after this acquisition, the Group
entered into pipeline thermal supply business.

The Group’s principal operating market is in Mainland China.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various public
or commercial BIPV or curtain wall or solar farmer wind power investors.
In aggregate, the largest and top five customers contributed approximately
11.4% and 37.0% of the Group’s total revenue in 2020 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing PV penal, aluminium and
glass from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2020, the top five suppliers include
material suppliers and sub-contractors, sub-contracting fees paid or material
purchase to its largest and five largest suppliers were about 8.3% and 23.7%
of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2020 respectively.
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At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries which principally affect
the results as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
Company’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 89 to 92. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
HK$0.028 per share (2019: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 93 to 94 of the annual report and in note 49 to the financial statements
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Final dividend amounting to approximately HK$70,590,000 was declared by
reduction of capital reserve, as at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserve
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
applicable law of Bermuda, amount to approximately RMB11,997,000. A
resolution will be submitted in the annual general meeting of the Company to
transfer RMB70,000,000 from the share premium account to the contributed
surplus.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and equipment
are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of the

Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares of the

Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 5 financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2020

On 5 January 2021, Zhuhai Singyes Green Construction Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (P8 B4R @2 SR B R A R)) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, the “Purchaser”), Zhang Jian (58%) and Zhang Yue (3
) (the “Vendors”) and Beijing Guanya Weiye Civil Construction Design Co.,
Ltd.* bt REEREERARERTERAF) (the “Target Company”) have
entered into an acquisition agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser has
agreed to acquire and the Vendors have agreed to sell an aggregate of 60%
equity interest in the Target Company at the total consideration of RMB19.80
million.

On 11 January 2021, Hunan Singyes Green Energy Co., Ltd.* (#rg S 4k
BERAE1D AR A R)) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the
“Hunan Purchaser”) has entered into an acquisition agreement with Jiangxi
Xinging Photovoltaic Power Co., Ltd.* (T PFREE YK EHBR A F) (“Jiangxi
Xinging”), pursuant to which the Hunan Purchaser has agreed to purchase
and Jiangxi Xinging has agreed to sell the entirety of the equity interest in
Dunhuang Anjie New Energy Co., Ltd.* (BUEZZF L RAEMR A=)
owns a photovoltaic project located at Dunhuang (20/2), the PRC with an
installed capacity of 20MW) at the acquisition sum of RMB9,600,000.

(which

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Qingtao (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Hongwei (Vice chairman)
Mr. Wang Dongwei

Mr. Chen Fushan

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Wang Suhui

Mr. Zhang Jianyuan
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Wang Ching

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon

Dr. Tan Hongwei

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Liu
Hongwei, Dr. Tan Hongwei and Mr. Zhang Jianyuan are required to retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of the above
Directors will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management members
of the Group was based on their individual performance as well as market
trends and practices. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2020 were within the following bands:
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Total: SR 5
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EEREEL

Each of Mr. Zheng Qingtao, Mr. Wang Dongwei and Mr. Chen Fushan, the WITESHEELE  TRESLERRELL

executive Directors, has signed a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 28 November 2019 unless
terminated in accordance with the terms therein. Under the terms of the
letter of appointment, the appointment may be terminated by not less than
three months’ prior written notice or otherwise served by either party on the
other.
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Mr. Liu Hongwei, an executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 13 January
2012, and will be automatically renewed for another three years upon expiry.

Each of the non-executive Directors, Ms. Wang Suhui and Mr. Zhang
Jianyuan, has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 28 November 2019. Under the terms of the
letter of appointment, the appointment may be terminated by not less than
one month’s prior written notice or otherwise served by either party on the
other.

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Dr. Wang Ching, the independent non-
executive Directors, were appointed for a term of three years from 19
December 2008. Dr. Tan Hongwei, the independent non-executive director,
was appointed for a term of three years from 18 April 2018. Their service
contracts will be automatically renewed for another three years upon expiry.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

None of the Directors has a service agreement with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies of other
companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of
Directors (the “Board”) may at its discretion, offer eligible persons (being any
Director or employee (whether full-time or part-time), consultant or advisors
of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Persons”) who the Board may in its
absolute discretion select to subscribe for such number of Shares as the
Board may determine at a subscription price determined in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme.
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Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the Board may
approve from time to time.

Total number of Shares available under the Share Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 25,257,931
shares, representing 1.00% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
date of this report. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
exercise price of and/or the number of Shares subject to the outstanding
Share Options are required to be adjusted as a result of a rights issue in
July 2016. In accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock Exchange on 5 September
2005 regarding adjustment of share options under Rule 17.03(13) of the
Listing Rules, the exercise price of and the number of Shares subject to the
outstanding Share Options granted on 23 July 2009, 10 October 2011 and
22 May 2015 have been adjusted with effect from 20 July 2016:

Before Adjustments
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BT BT

10 October 2011 —E——F+A+H 2.68 7,231,599 2.67 7,231,599
22 May 2015 “ET-AFAA=-+=H 11.70 6,026,332 11.65 6,026,332
5 April 2017 —ET—+FMARA 3.55 12,000,000 N/A 12,000,000
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Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1.0% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons and his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and
terms (including the subscription price) of such options being fixed before
such general meeting and other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.

Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such minimum
period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on which the
offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole or in part by the
grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry by giving notice
in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be exercised and the
number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised provided that the number
of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board lot for dealing in Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. Such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
the Shares in respect of which the notice is given. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from
the date of grant. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme by Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.
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Price of Shares

The subscription price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of
the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine, save that such
price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer to grant
option (provided that the new issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares
where our Company has been listed for less than five business days as at
the date of offer to grant option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A
consideration of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant
of an option.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event
no further option will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme at its annual general
meeting on 4 June 2018. No Share Option have been granted under such

scheme.

There was no exercise of any conversion or subscription rights under any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted
at any time by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company repurchased the 2022 Senior Notes with an aggregate nominal
value of US$191,644,000 during the year, of which US$90,788,559 in
principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes was repurchased by way of a
tender offer through Euroclear Bank SA/NV and/or Clearstream Banking,
and approximately US$100,855,000 in principal amount of the 2022 Senior
Notes was repurchased on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. Particulars of the Company’s repurchase of the 2022 Senior Notes
have been set out in the Company’s announcements dated 8 June 2020,
16 June 2020, 17 June 2020 and 14 December 2020. As as 31 December
2020, US$232,165,141 in aggregate principal amount of the 2022 Senior
Notes remained outstanding.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company and its subsidiaries did not
purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of the Company during the
year.
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DETAILS OF PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE UNDER
RULE 14.36B

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15 December
2020, pursuant to a capital injection agreement dated 15 December 2020
(the “Capital Injection Agreement”) and entered into among Jiangxi Yaxing
Construction Co., Ltd.* (T a2 EEEBPRAF]) (the “Target Company”),
Yu Nanhui (xF3H), Li Peng (%) and Chen Chen (FRE) (the “Target
Shareholders”) and Zhuhai Singyes Green Construction Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (BREEEL BEERHE AR A F], an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) (the “Investor”) in relation to the acquisition of 51% equity
interest in the Target Company by way of an injection of capital of RMB39.9
million into the Target Company by the Investor. (the “Capital Injection )
Pbursuant to the Capital Injection Agreement, the Target Shareholders
undertake and guarantee to the Investor that the audited net profit (after
deducting non-recurring profit and loss) of the Target Company shall not be
less than RMB30.00 million, RMB60.00 million and RMB90.00 million for
the financial year ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively
(the “Guaranteed Profit(s)”). The Company will closely monitor the above-
mentioned performance guarantee and disclose whether the Guaranteed
Profit for the year ending 31 December 2021 in its 2021 annual report in
compliance with Rule 14.36B of the Listing Rules.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

=S B L

1RIRSE 14.36B HE{FL Z HAIR
R

AN RBRA— T -_ZF+_A+HABHN
NEMEE  IATEERBRAR( AR
RNAE) - REE - ZEERERE(BZERE ]
NEHRGEEZCREERBARRA (AR
AfEE2ENB AR - [REE DI BHA
—E-EFT-_A+RBNEERE(EE
WEl)  NABBREFEMEZERAFEEA
R #39,900,0007T ([JE#& 1) LAYEE B 12 AR
M51%ARIE - RIFTE W - BIZRERE
B E A RRFE BIRA R MEEZLAR (F0kR
LR MIBRRZ) DB T RNEE=T = —
F B FRZB=F+A=+—
B i FEm A R %30,000,0005T - AR
60,000,000 7T, f2 A & # 90,000,000 7T, ([ 1R &
) o RRRERYER Fil EERE - I
REZE-—FFRPREE_ZS—_—F+=
A=1+—BIEFENREFNEETEF LM
A2 14.36B {&1EH i -

EERAAFEETHAENE
AT REBEEER ARG « HHE
I RBEHFHERRER

R-ZZF-FF+-A=1+—0 BEFHLT -
EERARREIZTHAE RIRSHNBMEAL
RARBREBEER (EEREF B K
(TR RMEGRG ) W - HERRkG &
BHFETHE VREEFLPEGRMIEXVES
7 RFE BN EAME AR R M iR (2
EBIRIEE 7 M G GO SRR S E F X
BREBNER SRR © (i) RIBES M
B 16D 352 RZAFCE N IR AT IR A B AT A9
R KRB EMETAEFETESR
SHIREST R ([1REFRI ) BAHEARRE R
BT REE ME RN

PEKEEEEREEER QA

61



62

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEEREE

Company/name
of associated

corporation Number of Approximate %
Name AT Capacity Type of interest shares of shareholding
i 24 HHEEE AT i3 SRR & E IRESE S
Mr. Zheng Qingtao ~ Company Beneficial interest ? Long 1,600,000 0.06%
BERi A RAT] Bamttm? rA
Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 203,802,750 8.08%
BUATHE S PiN/NE] corporation ! A
e T
Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,500,000 0.06%
Baifga? rA
Sub-total 205,302,750 8.14%
It
Mr. Chen Fushan Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,400,000 0.05%
BRARLL S YN Eaian 2 B
Mr. Wang Dongwei  Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,400,000 0.05%
FHRIESEE RAT] Bt 2 rA
Note: MI3E -

1. These 203,802,750 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose share 1.
capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be

interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO.

2. Such interest represents the shares awards granted to the respective directors 2.

under a share award plan as announced by the Company on 29 December

2020. As at 31 December 2020, no share under the share award plan has

neither been purchased by the Company nor allocated to the respective

directors.
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the Directors are aware, save as disclosed
above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief executive
of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each
of such persons’ interest in such securities, together with any options in
respect of such capital, were as follows:

Capacity/nature

FEIRRRRS - HEARKBRE
FPHERRER

RZZE-TF+_A=+—H  BESHE
Bk EXHBEESN VT AT ZOEBE (X IEAR
AEFERTRITHAR) RAR BB KA
Binrh - HE D REIMRIEEF LB GDIE
3BHRAFEMNELMOERRIER - HIRIE
EH LB RDIFE XV RS 2 R 37 2R 2 1R XA
AARRIE 2 EHEIORE - HEEREERE
B R AT I BN MEARREE A EAD
KB RRIZBRERERAE HRR 2RI AR
B10%3A LHEs  WEZFEALTEBRNZ
SRHFHEAERYE  BEREARERAY
K2 (TR T

Approximate %

Long/short of interest Number of shareholding
Shareholder position L34 of shares B HERELY
B’® R/EE e iR Bl
Water Development (HK) Long position Beneficial owner 1,687,008,585 66.92%
Holding Co., Limited ) EnEBA
KEEE (FE) ERER AT
Long position Person having a security 180,755,472 7.17%
kR interest in shares
RHAEROERER
ZAE
KERREEERAF] Long position Interest of corporation 1,867,764,057 74.09%
RE controlled by you
izl 2 5 Bl
KEEBBFRAR Long position Interest of corporation 1,867,764,057 74.09%
kR controlled by you
BTl 2 A B s
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:EEEEEEP¥&EJEE
Capacity/nature Approximate %
Long/short of interest Number of shareholding
Shareholder position &/ of shares RRiEREL
= R/EA ity B8 E £k,
Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. 2 Long position Beneficial owner 203,802,750 8.08%
RE EnBEAA
Beyond Steady Limited Long position Beneficial owner 67,064,000 2.7%
(“Beyond Steady”) ® kR ERHEAA
EYARAR ([BH])3
Long position Person having a security 64,004,000 2.5%
ke interest in shares
BEROERER
ZAT
Sub total 131,068,000 5.2%
INEt
Huarong International Financial Long position Interest in controlled 131,068,000 5.2%
Holdings Limited kR corporation
(“Huarong International”) 3 ZEEER
EHEREpERERAT
([ZEFERR )
(China Huarong Assets Long position Interest in controlled 131,068,000 5.2%

Management Company
Limited*) (“China Huarong”) 3

HEEREEERRHERAA
EES= 0k

=3

corporation
R EER

Water Development (HK) Holding Co., Limited is 100% beneficially owned by 7K

BEEREBEBRAR] and KEFEREBGRAF is 100% beneficially owned

by KEEEBRAF.

Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr. Xie

Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi and Mr. Zhuo Jianming as to 53%, 15%, 13%, 10%, and 9%

respectively.
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3. Huarong International indirectly holds 100% equity interest in Beyond Steady
through Linewear Assets Limited. Huarong International is therefore deemed
to be interested in 131,068,000 Shares in which Beyond Steady is interested.
China Huarong holds 100% equity interest in R E ¥ AR S TAF) (Huarong
Real Estate Co., Ltd.*) and Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co.,
Ltd. which together holds 100% equity interest in China Huarong International
Holdings Limited. China Huarong International Holdings Limited holds 100%
equity interest in Camellia Pacific Investment Holding Limited which holds 51%
equity interest in Huarong International. China Huarong is therefore deemed
to be interested in 131,068,000 Shares in which Beyond Steady is interested.
According to the annual report of Huarong International for the year ended 31
December 2018, Beyond Steady should have a put option over the shares of the
Company owned by it as at 31 December 2018. No notice under the SFO has
been received by the Company for Beyond Steady, Huarong International and
China Huarong’s short position as at 31 December 2018 in relation to the put
option.

4. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 2,521,081,780 Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2020.

NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual
or potential conflict of interest.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020.

No contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2020.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The acquisition of 47.5% equity interest in Zibo Qilu Chemical

Industry Zone Thermal Co., Ltd.* (S$EEELRIEXERNE
BRZE]) (the “Qilu Acquisition™)

On 11 September 2020, Hunan Singyes Green Energy Co., Ltd.* (#F5 8
HEL LR AR AR (the “Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale
and Purchase Agreement”) with Shandong Shuifa Clean Energy Technology
Co., Ltd.* (IUIFR/KEFRELERRIELAR AR (the “Vendor”) and Zibo Qilu
Chemical Industry Zone Thermal Co., Ltd.* (SBE B2 T ¥R NE
[R72A]) (the “Target Company”), pursuant to which, subject to fulfilment of
certain conditions precedent, the Purchaser has agreed to purchase and the
Vendor has agreed to sell 47.5% equity interest in the Target Company for
an aggregate consideration of RMB190,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). Upon
completion of the Acquisition, the Target Company will be controlled by the
Purchaser as to 51% of its voting rights and become a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.
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The Vendor was a wholly owned subsidiary of Shuifa Energy Group Limited*
(KEEBEREB AR 2 7)), a controlling shareholder of the Company indirectly
holding 1,687,008,585 Shares, representing approximately 66.92% of
the issued share capital in the Company. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Sale and Purchase Agreement constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Acquisition and transactions contemplated under the Sale and Purchase
Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
in the special general meeting of the Company held on 30 September 2020.

For details of the Acquisition, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 11 September 2020 and 30 September 2020, and the circular dated
14 September 2020.

Proposed disposal of certain solar assets of the Company (the
“Disposal of Solar Assets”)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 September 2016
, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement in respect of the
disposal of collectively (i) 81% of the equity interest of HiE R EFERER
A 7] (Xinjiang Singyes Renewable Energy Company Limited*) (the “Xinjiang
Operator”), and (ii) 81% of the equity interest of & &k 5H A5 REFIZE AR
2xa) (Wuwei Dongrun Solar Energy Development Company Limited*) (the
“Wuwei Operator”) to £ E R & G R A 7] (Excel Deal Investment Limited) (the
“Purchaser”).
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 January 2020,
the Company has been informed that 817K EE AR A &) (Lukong Water
Group Co., Ltd.*) (“Lukong Water”), an additional investor, would participate
in the transaction and become the controlling shareholder of the China Solar
Energy Holdings Limited (in provisional liquidation) (the “Purchaser’s Holding
Company”) upon completion of a share subscription after a restructuring
constituting one of the conditions precedent of the transaction. The parties
have amended the sale and purchase agreement by entering into an
amended and restated sale and purchase agreement (the “Amended and
Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement”). The total consideration is a sum
not exceeding HK$834,848,000 (or equivalent to RMB745,400,000), subject
to adjustments.

On 8 May 2020, the parties have entered into a supplemental agreement
to the Amended and Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement so as to
implement amongst others, changes to changes to conditions precedent and
adjustments to the after completion payment etc.. (the “2" Amended and
Restated SPA”)

On 12 March 2021, the parties have entered into a second supplemental
agreement to the Amended and Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement
to implement certain changes to the deal structure, including the return of
deposit of HK$40,000,000 to a designated bank account of Happy Fountain
Limited in the event the Purchaser’'s Holding Company fails to obtain a no
further comment confirmation from the Stock Exchange in respect of its
reverse takeover circular on or before 31 December 2021 and the extension
of the long stop date.

Water Development (HK) Holding Co., Limited is a controlling Shareholder
and it is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Shuifa Group Co., Ltd.. As
Lukong Water is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Shuifa Group Co.,
Ltd., it is a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the transaction
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules (it is also a major transaction under Chapter 14 of the

Company at the same time).
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As additional time is required to prepare and finalise, among other things, the
circular and necessary information to be included in the circular, the circular
is expected to be despatched to the Shareholders in or around 30 June
2021.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 4
September 2016, 17 January 2020, 10 May 2020 and 12 March 2021.

Save as disclosed, no transactions as set out in the “Related party
transactions” in note 45 to the financial statements constitute any connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction which are subject to the
reporting, announcement and/ or independent shareholders’ approval under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, save as the Disposal of Solar Assets
and the Qilu Acquisition we did not have material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Byelaws,
or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Upon
the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008 with
terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance with the
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the audit
committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman
of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication between other directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time. The audit committee is to assist the
Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as may be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. For further details of the audit committee and other
committees of the Board, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” from pages 8 to 26.

KEY FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The key financial and business performance indicators comprise profitability
trend and gearing ratio. Details of profitability analysis are shown in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report. Details
of gearing ratio analysis are shown in Note 47 (Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies) to the Financial Statements in this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social governance
essential for creating a framework for motivating staff, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses and creating a sustainable
return to the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has implemented energy saving practices in its offices and
premises where applicable. The Group also plans to upgrade its air-
conditioning and electricity systems to achieve the energy saving and
provision of clear air to workplace where possible.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its long-term goals and development.
To maintain its brand competitiveness and market status, the Group
aims at delivering consistently high standards of quality in the service to
its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

USD414,931,692 2% cash-pay and 4% pay-in-kind senior
note due 2022

On 19 December 2019, the Company issued USD414,931,692 2% cashpay
and 4% pay-in-kind senior note due 2022 (the “2022 Senior Notes”). The
2022 Senior Notes are only offered outside the United States in compliance
with Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (“Regulation S”). The 2022 Senior Notes initially were offered to
eligible Scheme Creditors (as defined in the Announcement) and the Holding
Period Trustee The 2022 Senior Notes have been listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX”).

The major terms and conditions of the 2022 Senior Notes are as follows:

(i) Interest payment election

The Company may, at its discretion at any time, elect to pay interest
on the principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes on each interest
payment date (i) in cash (a “Cash Coupon Election”) at the rate of
2.00% per annum prior to a Cash Coupon Election and thereafter
at 6.00% per annum (the “Cash Interest”) and (ii) by increasing the
principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes or by issuing any 2.00%
cash-pay and 4.00% pay-in-kind guaranteed senior notes due 2022
(the “Additional Notes”) in a principal amount equal to 4.00% of the
aggregate principal amount of the note then outstanding (the “PIK
Interest”). The Cash Coupon Election shall be irrevocable.
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(ii)

(iii)

Mandatory redemption of the Company

On June 19, 2022 (the “Initial Mandatory Redemption Date”), the
Company shall redeem 40% of the 2022 Senior Notes outstanding on
the Initial Mandatory Redemption Date (including, for the avoidance
of doubt, any Additional Notes that have been issued as PIK Interest
and added to the principal amount of the Notes) at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with
accrued and unpaid interest thereon (at the rate of 6.00% per annum,
corresponding to the aggregate of the interest ordinarily payable in
cash and the interest ordinarily payable in kind) to, but excluding, the
Initial Mandatory Redemption Date.

Redemption at the option of the Company

Upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the Holders,
the Trustee and the Paying Agent (each such date, an “Optional
Redemption Date”), at any time, the Company may at its option
redeem the notes outstanding on the applicable Optional Redemption
Date (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any Additional Notes
that have been issued as PIK Interest and added to the principal
amount of the notes) in whole or in part at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the aggregate principal amount thereof together with
accrued and unpaid interest thereon (at the rate of 6.00% per annum,
corresponding to the aggregate of the interest ordinarily payable in
cash and the interest ordinarily payable in kind) to, but excluding, the
applicable Optional Redemption Date.

The Company repurchased the 2022 Senior Notes with an aggregate
nominal value of US$191,644,000 during the year, of which
US$90,788,559 in principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes was
repurchased by way of a tender offer through Euroclear Bank SA/NV
and/or Clearstream Banking, and approximately US$100,855,000 in
principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes was repurchased on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Particulars of the
Company'’s repurchase of the 2022 Senior Notes have been set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 8 June 2020, 16 June 2020,
17 June 2020 and 14 December 2020. As as 31 December 2020,
US$232,165,141 in aggregate principal amount of the 2022 Senior
Notes remained outstanding.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and procedures,
and members of the senior management are delegated with the continuing
responsibility to monitor adherence and compliance with all significant legal
and regulatory requirements. These policies and procedures are reviewed
regularly. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material aspects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key stakeholders
which comprises employees, customers and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Groups’ human resource management
is to reward and recognize performing staff by providing a competitive
remuneration package and implementing a sound performance appraisal
system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and
progression by appropriate training and providing opportunities within the
Group for career advancement.

Customers

The Group has the mission to provide excellent and creative customer service
whilst maintain our long-term profitability, business and asset growth. Various
means have been established to strength the communication between the
customers and the Group in the provision of quality customer service towards

market penetration and expansion.

Shareholders

One of our corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate value to
shareholders. The Group is poised to foster business developments for
achieving the sustainability of earnings growth and rewarding shareholders by
stable dividend payouts taking into account capital adequacy levels, liquidity
positions and business expansion needs of the Group.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM ISSUE OF SHARES

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 15 October 2019 (the
“Circular”), the Company issued 1,687,008,585 ordinary shares (the
“Subscription Shares”) at the Subscription Price of HK$0.92 per Subscription
Share to Water Development (HK) Holding Co., Limited. The aggregate
nominal value of the Subscription Shares is US$16,870,085.85. The
closing price as quoted on the Stock Exchange of the shares on 29 March
2019, being the last trading day before the entering into of the Subscription
Agreement, was HK$0.99. The gross proceeds from the Subscription
is expected to amount to approximately HK$1,552,047,898. The net
proceeds, after taking into account the estimated expenses in relation to
the Subscription (including but not limited to miscellaneous expenses on
issue of new Shares certificates to the Subscriber, the preparation of the
circular and relevant transaction documents), would be approximately
HK$1,550,000,000, representing a net price of approximately HK$0.92 per
Subscription Share.

As at 31 December 2020, the use of proceeds were as follows:

As disclosed in
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As disclosed in the 2019 annual report, the net proceeds were expected
to be fully utilised by 31 December 2020, however, it takes time for the
management of the Group to source suitable merger and acquisition targets
and therefore approximately HK$265,000,000 has been applied in this
area as at 31 December 2020, representing approximately 88.3% of the
HK$300,000,000 planned amount as disclosed in the Circular.

The remaining balance of unutilised net proceeds of approximately
HK$35,000,000 as at 31 December 2020 is expected to be utilised by
30 June 2021. The proceeds from the Subscription were used and are
proposed to be used according to the intentions previously disclosed in the
Circular.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

ANNUAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

The financial information set out in the announcement of the Company dated
25 March 2021 did not constitute the Group’s audited accounts for the year
ended 31 December 2020, but represents an extract from the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 which have
been audited by the auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The financial information has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee and approved by the Board.
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AUDITOR e S

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited by RARRAFENIMBRREL L KEFTAIE
Ernst & Young. TEFTERZ ©

By order of the Board EEEEN

Zheng Qingtao E

Chairman &iEiE

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021 BB —E-—F=ZA=+HH
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Ernst & Young K ET RS 5T Tel £ 5% +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower =t g VR ==
EY 4 i el AvEre BB ERNEE1R Fax{EE: +852 2868 4432
§j< Central, Hong Kong FERE2212 ey.com

To the shareholders of China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Shuifa
Singyes Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on page 89 to 304, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OUR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B A2 AR
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EY:

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

FASEERE

Revenue recognition for construction services

L RIFHIRA R

The Group recorded revenue from construction-type contracts
amounting to approximately RMB3,705,739,000 that were
accounted for by applying an input method that measured the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation of the construction services for the year ended
31 December 2020. The input method involves the use of
significant management’s judgement and estimates including
estimates of the progress towards completion, the scope of
deliveries and services required, total contract costs, remaining
costs to completion and total contract revenues. In addition,
revenue, cost and gross profit realised on such contracts may
vary from the Group’s original estimates because of changes in
conditions.

HE_Z_ZEF+_A=+—RHILFE  EEEREKER
SFHA S HHW AL A RH3,705,739,0007T - BEHRAE
PEABNEAR  MEET2BITRERBBOEHHE
B BMNEP R ERBERERAE R - BT T
R INOEBERAFRE L8408 K  TIAHEHRT
BRARRE WA - i BESHOZBA - RARAE
W EA I se PSRN Z BT B B R B R A L5 TR -

The disclosures about revenue recognition for construction
services are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 4 to the financial
statements.
BHERERBWRAERNRESR NI HwKRMT24 3K
4 o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

SR ERESZPRINMAEERN

Our audit procedures included the following:

BAEZIZF B

o We assessed and tested the controls over the revenue
recognition, cost forecast and progress billing process of
construction contracts;
TPRHE RO REES D RAER - BARTRA NMEE 4
HRIAR IS

° We reviewed the individually significant construction
contracts and the progress billings accepted by
corresponding customers;

BMIFAERERRES LU RBEESRNEERS

° We checked significant costs incurred to the delivery and
acceptance notes signed by corresponding customers; B
BPREXNEENERAKANARERESEZENES

LS &

° We compared the forecast results of each significant
contract to its actual results and assessed the historical
accuracy of estimate prepared by management;
BPIKSERENNTEAZEEL R ERIELRIAR
THEE R ERE TR R R

° We discussed the progress of construction services with
those in charge of the projects;

BMETIEAEANRERSONEE

o We recalculated the percentage of completion of the
significant construction services;
BMEFAEEREERBHNTIADL

° We performed physical inspection of the significant
constructions; and

BB EAZENTEMARS - &

o We assessed the disclosures regarding the revenue
recognition of construction services in the consolidated
financial statements.

BT AR M B RERANE ARERB B AERNE
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Key audit matter

PR B EIR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

JEWE Z IR R A A B BB EFS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables and
contract assets before impairment of RMB4,154,464,000 and
RMB3,245,141,000, respectively, which were material to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
RZEZZTF+_RA=+—H BEXEZREAEKES
FIEREHEED R/ ARKA154,464,0007T & A R &
3,245,141,0007C - AU EEEZ FRMEHRRMSBEK o

Assessing expected credit losses of those assets is a
judgemental area which involved significant management’s
judgement and estimation on credit risk according to historical
and forward-looking information.
RIEBERAEEER T EZEEEZ AR EEBREE A
R P REANERBNHE KA EERR

The disclosures about the impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets are included in notes 2.4, 3,
23, 24 and 45 to the financial statements.

BB E 55078 N & K98 FE BRE T 1k 8 158 5051 p0 B 7%
HERMTE24 3232445

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FAS B R TH B A P R I BE Y

Our audit procedures included the following:
BMEZIETEE NEE -

We understood the controls over the Group'’s estimation
of loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets and confirmed this understanding by
performing walkthrough procedures;

BMERE SEGTREE ZRIBERENEE 2 RER
B ARG JREETT TSR LI

We checked the ageing analysis by customer;
BIER P EBERREERE ST

We checked the debtors’ historical payment patterns and
the bank receipts for the payments received subsequent
to the year end;

BIFIREES ARBERN TR AR FEED BB
BERITHE

We evaluated information such as actual or expected
significant changes in the operating results of customers,
actual or expected significant adverse changes in market
conditions that may affect the business and customers’
financial position by reading public news and releases
and discussed the estimated impact with management;
and
BMEBAMEALTENRE R N PR EEER
BRI TEEE XSS - AT EEBME MR
WERNEATSRANERTFESHEEE - WHE
BENRATTFE &

We assessed the disclosures about the Group’s exposure
to credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.
BMFHE R E M BRERABAE S EERNEER R
B -
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Key audit matter

FAEEZER

Impairment assessment of idle non-current assets
HEFE B EERE L

In accordance with IFRSs, the Group assesses at the end
of each reporting period whether there are any indications
of impairment for its non-current assets. If such indications
of impairment exist, the corresponding assets’ recoverable
amount is estimated. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had idle non-current assets with carrying amounts before
impairment of RMB552,010,000, including property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets.

RIRERR M SR - ERENSIRE ARG E IR
BERGHMTMBETR - URENRREFE - AeHARE
EMrRESREETE  RZTEZEF+A=+—8 "
ESEERRERMKREER AR 552,010,000 7T F & 3F
MEEE - BEWE - BEMREBAREREEE

Accordingly, management performed the impairment testing
based on estimated recoverable amounts of these idle non-
current assets individually or at the related cash-generating
units (“CGU") level. A total impairment loss on these idle non-
current assets of RMB96,471,000 was recognised during
the year. The estimate of the recoverable amounts involved
significant estimation uncertainty, subjective assumptions and
application of significant judgement.

Bt BEREEANZSHEIRDEEE B BBEBER
CEABEM(REEEEM]) WA EKEFEETRE
AR - AFEEINBEIERDEERESBESARE
96,471,000 7T, * ATUC Bl & BEE) 518 R E R fh 5t A HEE M
FERR M E R EXHIE -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

SR ERESZPRINMAEERN

Our audit procedures included the following:

BB EFEEATEIR

° We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of management’s external specialist;
BIFHEBEIREINIERNERE - B REEM

° We tested the impairment model selected for each CGU
or individual assets based on our understanding of the
methodology and checked its mathematical accuracy;
BPERE T EAmEER AR ERSEEELR
ERIEERENRERE - WinEHRBE FHER
IHE o

o We compared significant unobservable inputs of the

valuation models, including potential gross rental
income, the vacancy rate, annual growth rate of net
income and rate of return, against external data. We
reviewed the sensitivity analysis of key assumptions
and estimates underlying the calculations prepared by
management;
ST MEEXNERTAHEEEARE (BEEEENE
WA ZEER  FRANFEERERD®RE)
PG H BN IR T L - RMIE B EREMAE
e B RS I RER I AR St BURIE DA
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Key audit matter

FAEEXER

Impairment assessment of idle non-current assets
HEFE B EERE L

The Group’s disclosures about impairment assessment for
these idle non-current assets are included in notes 2.4, 3, 13
and 15 to the financial statements.
BEEEBENZEHEFRBDEERBENREEHTN M B REK
MizE2.4 -3+ 13%15°

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

PSRRI E P R INTEER

We compared key operational estimates in the models to
source data and publicly available information;

FHERA B AR R O B SR (T - R APY BB 2R
REAIARESNESETHL

We involved our valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating the key valuation parameters such as the
quoted price for the identical assets, the cost of disposal
applied and the valuation model used; and
FHEMBRIBENRE - FIERAH B SRR K AERAR
LERMBREESE - BABERNBTEERS
B - BN PIETTRIE &

We assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

B GA M RERM TP ORRRERST 2 -

—ECREEH  PEARRELFREARAT

83



84

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B AZ AR S

e
EY:

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Company’s Annual Report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

o HEERAREKESHERNREMN
RIRBEFREHNEZERE - AT 5 HE
FEKENENBREARBNERSE
HRIENREFEEANTHEE L4
i o MR MR SFEERNTEELE - Al
BMAEZBEMRETRFEERE IR
RAPBHRRTOERREER - HE
REBEERTR  REBRTRMANER
BARERIDENBEZHENRE BB
IEFTBS B EORE © A1 - REEM
KBS LS B E B T el B R

o FHEHRAMBHR(BREEEER)WE
BIHRTR - BERAT  UREEH
BRERBAARRBBZZMER -

s HESETPERIXKEIHNUBEH
BB MEENBZRE MK
MBHBRERBR - RMBAERE &
BERHAITREEZ - ROEHRMZE
HERAERE -

BAEBEZZESEE T ENEXHE - &
B EABRREREEE  BRRMAEE
A% BRI Hh 7 BB AR Il e (E R B KBR A

“ToREFER PEKEEEGEREEARAT 87



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B AZ AR S

e
EY:

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

reiEmRkEMEERGER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =TF+=-A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
k- k-3 —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BRE ARETT ARET T
Revenue WA 4 5,400,999 3,306,519
Cost of sales SHE AR (4,716,308) (3,278,249)
Gross profit EF 684,691 28,270
Tariff adjustment EX=Ee 4 196,552 179,857
Other income and gains E A R e 5 462,159 161,563
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHEAX (78,926) (125,575)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (313,456) (332,509)
Impairment losses on: EERE
Financial and contract assets, net SRMNENEEFE (262,955) (440,590)
Inventories, net FEF5E - (4,236)
Property, plant and equipment, net M - R MRS FRE (94,889) -
Investment properties, net KB FEFRE (4,201) -
Right-of-use assets, net FREEEFRE (1,582) -
Other expenses HEAS (18,808) (12,381)
Finance costs B E AR 6 (353,000) (414,488)
Share of profits and losses of associates BaN(=) i A /NCTDe A DN =] 19 (12,620) (16,363)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRAATEF, () 7 202,965 (976,452)
Income tax credit/(expense) B8Rl e, () 10 118,181 (11,358)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AEREN(BE) 321,146 (987,810)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hih2mihss  (E518) :
INCOME/(LOSS):
Other comprehensive income/(10ss) TAIRBERFEERH HEEEN
that will not be reclassified to Hip2mikes/ (&8) :
profit or loss in subsequent years:
Change in fair value of equity BATFEFEAHEEH A
instruments at fair value through HthzmkEmEs TANQAFTEEZH
other comprehensive income (519) 639
Exchange differences on translation RE SRR MIE R Z58
of financial statements 81,616 (63,552)

= B L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

relEmRkHEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =TF+=-A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EE —ENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7E ARETT AREFIT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FEEHMEEE - (5E)
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 81,097 (62,913)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AEELTEWE (F518) 4858
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 402,243 (1,050,723)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LA AT REESHA] (E518) -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIETZE N 301,418 (995,228)
Non-controlling interests PRI A 19,728 7,418
321,146 (987,810)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AFATEGEZAE
attributable to: Iezs,/ (18) 18
Owners of the Company ViN/NSIEZE DN 383,830 (1,058,636)
Non-controlling interests eI AE A 18,413 7,913
402,243 (1,050,723)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE FATEBRESHRA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FE(EEIREF, (551E)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted HEAREE 12 RMB AR# RVMB AR
0.1203T (1.004) 7T

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
n‘/-.l_\ jﬁiﬂjﬁ;ﬁi

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
k- Jamt o3 —NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitEE ARETR ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment WM - BENEE 13 4,068,355 4,122,090
Investment properties REYZ 14 333,141 293,247
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15(a) 222,734 209,088
Other intangible assets HibfmR & E 17 91,161 1,605
Payments in advance SELNE S 18 21,725 17,684
Investments in associates REEERF)IRE 19 1,973 17,825
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 32 241,047 3,195
Equity investments designated at fair value 1T AR AFETE R
through other comprehensive income HEEH ARLMEARE
R E 20 10,530 11,414
Goodwill EES 16 10,542 6,448
Total non-current assets IEmENEERE 5,001,208 4,682,596
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories w8 22 55,765 171,799
Contract assets EHEE 23 2,903,957 2,007,873
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 AN EWEE 24 3,570,404 3,136,464
Prepayments, other receivables TERTFRIE « H KGRI
and other assets MEMEE 25 852,068 815,826
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFEAHES
through profit or loss AABTENEREE 21 = 5,000
Pledged deposits HEIPIF R 26 47,169 54,867
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEFBY 26 899,789 1,082,835
Total current assets mENEERE 8,329,152 7,274,664
CURRENT LIABILITIES bt )=
Trade and bills payables JERNE ST ENREE 27 1,921,875 1,438,054
Other payables and accruals H A e KT8 K FE AT FUE 28 2,107,913 384,425
Contract liabilities BREE 29 131,361 58,307
Bank advances for discounted bills EEEEKTJ%Zﬁ I=EN = 38,889
Interest-bearing bank and other loans Miﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ’nﬁ%m 30 1,181,190 1,374,689
Tax payable JEI IR 102,010 22,245
Lease liabilities HEAE 15(b) 3,506 955
Provision ey 737 =
Total current liabilities mEN B ERE 5,448,592 3,317,564
“ECFEFHR  PEKEHEEEREEEGRAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EE —ENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7E ARETT AREFIT
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 2,880,560 3,957,100
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BELEBRSHEE
LIABILITIES 7,881,768 8,639,696
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEE
Senior notes BAZEE 31 1,488,096 2,815,135
Interest-bearing bank and other loans M B ERIT R EME R 30 1,633,685 1,537,620
Lease liabilities fEaE 15(b) 22,694 7,502
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEAE 32 110,381 86,860
Deferred income EIEW S 33 143,033 155,843
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERE 3,397,889 4,602,960
Net assets BEFE 4,483,879 4,036,736
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners RATHE AN EILELS
of the Company
Issued capital BT A 34 174,333 174,333
Reserves & 36 4,040,224 3,754,333
4,214,557 3,928,666
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 269,322 108,070
Total equity B 4,483,879 4,036,736

Mr. Zheng Qingtao
HEERE
Director

EF

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020

Mr. Liu Hongwei

BT MR E

Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

IV 1; ‘,~\'“n" Eiﬂjéigg

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =TF+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAFEAER
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at Difference
fair valug arising from
through Safety change
Share ofhercom-  Stetutory  Enterprise Share fund  Exchange of non- Non-
Issued ~ premium ~ Contributed ~ prehensive fesene  expansion option suplus  fluctuaton ~ Refained  controllng  controllng Total
capital account*  surplus*  income* fund* fund*  reseve*  reseve®  resene’ profits* ~ interests* Tofa  interests equily
RATE
BHAEY
AR FAR
Ehane i ¢
R A GHAEN ATRE 0RBR 0 BRE  2REE END® 8 Efe AR &

BEARE  ERE B4 NVEEE A g fi# BBER N et = &t i £%
RMBOOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0
ARRTRL ARMTT ARETT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTT ARRTR

(note 34) (note 36(al)  (note 36(b)) ~ (note 36(c))  (note 36(d))
(Hzt3) (Fiet36la) (RizE3e(n) (RisE3e(e)) (E36(0)
At 1 January 2019 RIE-NE
-A-A 5,785 796818 1197 (7915) 284552 114909 68,366 - (138628) 23480657 %6350 3590891 100841 3691732
Loss forthe year TEEEE - - - - - - - - - (995.28) - (528 7418 (987810)
Other comprehensive incomelloss) ~~ AEFEM2EME/
forthe year: (Bi8):
Changes infar value of BATEEELS
equity insruments HHARMRE
atfai value through other WENESTE
compreensive income, netof tax ~~ MIATEZE
MEHE - - - 639 - - - - = o = 639 = 639
Exchange diffrences on HENERRNELZE
translation of financial statements - - - - - - - - (e4047) - - (6404 49  (6355)
Total comprehensive incomefloss) for ~ AER2EME/ (BEE)
the year 4% = = - 639 - - - - (A7) (%28 - (1,088636) 7913 (1,080723)
Issue of new shares (note 34) BIHR (M) 118548 1274617 = = = = = = = = - 13316 - 139316
Transfer from retained profis EpaRBET - - - - 5817 1,060 - - - 687 - - - -
Transfer o share option reserve upon BB REER
the expiry of share options %H&Fgﬁﬁ - - - - - - (16924) - B (17! - - - -
Equity-setfled share opfion hAGERRERE
arrangements (note 35) (Hz£35) - - - - - - 3246 = - - - 3246 1340 4586
Dividend paid to non-controling XHRHEAA
shareholders by a subsidiary FERRENRE - - - - - - - - - = = - R 0
Establishment fr safety fund RUR2EERHER
Surplus reserve - - - - - - - BW - (3 - - = =
Utiisaton of safety fund surplus reserve 8% 2 £ BEGE - - - - - - - (3% - BI8 = = = =
At31 December 2019 WE-NE
1-A=1-A 174333 2071435 11,997 (7.276) 290369 115969 54,688 - (02675) 1363476 56350 3978666 108070 4036736
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

nv-_r\

= N\ 7/ ‘-
*‘E < 454

BE)R

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =TF+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHRARE
Fair value
resenve of
financial
assets at Difference
fair value arising from
through Safety change
Share ohercom-  Statutory  Enterprise Share fnd  Exchange of non- Non-
[ssued ~ premium  Merger  Confributed prehensive feserie  expansion option suplus ~ fluctuation ~ Retained  controlling controlling Total
capital ~ account* deficit* surplus* income* fund* fund* resene* resene* Tesene* profits ~ interests* Total interests equity
BATEHE
BREHHA ik
Ah2akk fhgy
Rt B\ 2cHBEr kbR 0BEE 0 BRE  R2¢ BN RE  BE2 iR i
EEfiRs  ERR  AdEd B ATERE i i fif  EHRE fefe* i £ it it a5
RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'0O0  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARBTR ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note 34) (note 38(2) (note 36(a))  (note 36(b))  (note 36(c))  (note 36(d)
(Mt 34) (Kit38(2) (Mt 36(a)  (BEt36(b)) (MEE360)  (HE36(0)
At January 2000 WZERE-R-B 174333 207143 1197 (1276) 290369 115969 54,688 (202,675) 1363476 56,350 3928666 108070 4,036,736
Proftfor the year KERAA| = - - 301418 301,418 19728 321,146
Other comprefensie incomelloss) ~ AEFEMAE
forthe year: Wi/ (E8):
Changes in fair vlue of BOFEEALS
equiy instuments ARG
atfair vlue thiough oher HERTANAT
comprehensie income, netoftax  EEE) - MEHE - - - (519) - - (519 - (519)
Exchange difetences on BEHFRENEY
translation of financilstatements £ - - - - - - anl 82931 (1315 81616
Toal comprehensive ncomelloss) ~ AEEAE
forthe year Wi/ (B8 - - - (519) - - SRl 301418 13830 18413 40243
Acquistion of non-contoling nteests MEFARER - - - - - - - - (70 (17100 (8290 (10,000
Capial nection by a HRREE
non-controling shareholder - - - - - - 4,900 4900
Aoquistion of a subsdary note 3812) M —HEAR
(Fist38(2) - (96,863) - - - - - - (96863) 148305 51442
Transfer fom reain prfits SHEREE - - - 30,048 = - - - 30,048) - - -
Equiy-seted share opton flusa b ]
anangements note 33) (Kt 3) - - - - 634 - 634 (286) 8
Dividend paid oron-contoling.~~ XHAHEA
sharehalders by a subsidary FARERORE - - - - (1790 (1,790)
Establishment forsefely fnd FukeEeRHHE
surplus resenve - - - - 69,719 - (69,719) -
Utlisaion of sy fund srpls resene. 7224 BitEHE - - - - - (689 - 69719 - -
At31 December 2020 NECEE
ToA=1-A 17433 2071435 (96863) 11997 (17%) 320417 115969 5,32 (119.744) 1634846 54640 4214557 269322 4483879
CJ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of e REETBRRAEN  ZEHEFERELE

RMB4,040,224,000 (2019 RMB3,754,333,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

n‘/-.r\ IEI%/}“JE%

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =TF+=-A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
k- 3 ZE-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARETT ARBETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM HETHELANHRLSRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BRE AR F (E18) 202,965 (976,452)
Adjustments for: BLLATIEE (B 3% -
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - WE REEITE
and equipment 13 192,572 191,696
Depreciation of investment properties WEMENE 14 9,453 4,560
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEIE 15(a) 7,618 10,089
Amortisation of other intangible assets HmEmpEEE 17 5,272 983
Provision for impairment losses on SRR A NEERER
financial and contract assets, net ?éiﬁé‘ﬁ@%ﬁ 7 262,955 440,590
Provision for impairment losses on M - =&
property, plant and equipment BB EEERE 13 94,889 =
Provision for impairment losses on EMFEREBERE
investment properties 14 4,201 -
Provision for impairment losses on FREEERBESERE
right-of-use assets 15(a) 1,582 -
Write-down of inventories to W FEE ] #IR)%E
net realisable value 7 - 4,236
Gain on bargain purchase EAE Rl 7 (7,445) =
Share of profits and losses of associates DS N EEF REE 19 12,620 16,363
Gain on settlement of financial assets at BEATESERRES)
fair value through profit or loss FFABENESmMEE
EE S 7 - (1,003)
Gain on disposal of associates HER SR RIS 5 (31,768) (36,274)
Gain on repurchase of senior notes ARl les 5 (209,444) =
Equity-settled share option expense IR A B BB AR B 2 7 348 4,586
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE - BE &E&E
plant and equipment THE /g8 - 4,187
Foreign exchange gain, net HNE IS R (144,716) (11,825)
Interest income FEUA 5 (3,006) (999)
Deferred income released to profit or loss B O =B RARIER A 5 (13,856) (13,373)
Reversal of compensation B8 LB F 7R
for breach of contracts, net 5 - (67,251)
Provision for litigation AR 737 =
Gain on cancellation of senior notes BB AW 5 (1,655) =
Gain on debt restructuring (EvEET LG 5 (1,780) =
Remission of interest on an other loan HERFERE 5 (13,087) =
Covid-19-related rent K8 AR COVID-19
concessions from lessors EEESR S 15(b) (52) -
Compensation for performance MEBEAGENEE
commitment 5 (8,983) -
Finance costs A A 6 353,000 414,488
712,420 (15,399)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERA(Em) 116,034 (106,443)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHVEERD () (1,016,667) 55,755
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEUE 55008 N W R IR3E N (338,397) (121,593)
Increase in prepayments, TERIE - EEREIER
other receivables and other assets ﬁﬁﬂé?i'bﬂ (143,721) (209,280)
Increase in trade and bills payables FE B 5 500E K FE (S =538 0 410,353 536,534
Increase/(decrease) in other payables ,HMJEHW\IE&FE*‘IW\
and accruals #h0, Crd 198,247 (9,256)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AHBEE i"j][l/(?ﬁi@) 73,054 (46,760)
Income tax paid BATATSH (40,713) (20,740)
Net cash flows from/(used in) EESEBEL (BT
operating activities REREFHE (29,390) 62,818
ZECBEFR  PEKBEEEREEFRAR]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

an\ IE%/)ILE%

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =TF+=-A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—EFTE —ENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARETT ARKETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETHEENHELSRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of BEYXE  BEKREEE
property, plant and equipment (173,456) (68,620)
Purchase of other intangible assets EEHMEREE - (527)
Payment for leasehold land bz i &?UEZH%K (513) (3,605)
Acquisition of subsidiaries UG BEFT B A 38 (215,724) -
Disposal of a joint venture & F’?/\ ﬁ% - 6,370
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BE TZE’REFTE”FEHE 5]
through profit or loss p‘l’)\TEﬁnE’]iyﬁﬂﬁ% 21 - (5,000)
Purchase of equity investments designated ﬁﬁ ? EEATFEFER
at fair value through HEF AHLMEEKE
other comprehensive income HiERIRE - (5,000)
investments in associates i E/NEE 19 - (35,000)
Disposal of associates EE R A) 76,222 293
Redemption of financial assets at fair value  fEEIZ A F(EzTE B H
through profit or loss gEEt AEENEmEE 21 5,000 =
Advance to related parties Fﬂiﬂ'ﬁﬂé‘ Dakb 40(b)(i) (50,000) -
Proceeds from advance to related parties U [0] 7] BA B 5 23R 40(b)(i) 30,000 =
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERAFEEARS
through profit or loss FFABTEHNSREE 21 = 25,268
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, &Y% « =N REER
plant and equipment Zﬁﬁ?%%’( 56,262 34,287
Repayment of advance from third parties = HEERR - -
Receipt of maturity of pledged deposits Tﬁ?ﬁﬁ%’ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂ%%’lﬁ 388,113 196,953
Placement of pledged deposits FABHFER (398,137) (92,701)
Interest received 2 UFI & 2,360 999
Receipt of government grants for IRERE « R s
property, plant and equipment e 1,046 11,767
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEESEE,(FTA)
investing activities RIRemE T (278,827) 65,484
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEHEENRLSRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from subscription of shares REERD FTS 3/ - 1,393,165
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling  HtUEE — FEI P /&8 A 1 FEI%
interests of a subsidiary fERS & (3R (10,000) -
Capital injection by a non-controlling IEFERG AR B E
shareholder 4,900 -
Payment for redemption of BOAMKRES IR
convertible bonds - (10,324)
Repurchase of senior notes fEEB A ER (1,111,621) (312,719)
Payment of transaction costs related to BRAE ﬁ&f‘ﬁ?&ﬁﬁ'\]?&%
issuance of senior notes B %NPANEN - (83,137)
Dividend paid to non-controlling S t4 MT% GEEEIGE
shareholders by a subsidiary HIPR (2,115) (2,024)
Proceeds from bank and other loans fﬁﬂ)}ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Fr{S3RI8 1,934,619 833,746
Repayment of bank and other loans faf&fﬁﬁ&ﬁ@fﬁm (2,028,726) (916,856)
Repayment of bank advances ERAARIRREITER
for discounted bills (38,889) -
Proceeds from bank advances AR IR IR TE R ATS 50R
for discounted bills - 38,889
Proceeds from a loan from related parties BBt 5 kP15 718 2,183,920 10,000
Repayment of loans from related parties BRI ER (635,000) -
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZ A B (8,160) (2,872)
Interest portion of lease liabilities HEAGFEZF SIS (726) (510)
Payment of other financing costs ST E AR E AR (54) (2,199)
Interest paid EFE (179,940) (229,040)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
an\ IEI%/J“JE%

Year ended 31 December 2020 E—T T+ A =+—HI-FE

2020 2019
—EC-EHE —E—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT ARETTT
Net cash flows from financing activities MESDELENREREFHE 108,208 716,119
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReERREEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥, (GRd) %8 (200,009) 844,421
Cash and cash equivalents at FYZREe KR EEY
beginning of year 1,100,772 255,559
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERSEHFTLE  FH
changes, net (759) 792
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAERFELEEN
AT END OF YEAR 900,004 1,100,772
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND R&RIR&ZEUER ST
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B RIRITET 26 899,789 1,082,835
Non-pledged time deposits with SR RB AR B R=1E A
original maturity Z?ﬂi?‘_ﬁﬁm,ﬁﬁﬁm
of less than three months when acquired - -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated REBRARAZTY 2
in the statement of financial position BeMIReEEY 26 899,789 1,082,835
Time deposits with original maturity of REEIEEALR=EA 2
less than three months TEHTFE 26 215 17,937
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RBERERAZY 2
in the statement of cash flows ReMIREEEY 900,004 1,100,772
“EoEEFH  PEUKBEEGEREEARAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H
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China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda
on 24 October 2003. The registered office of the Company is located
at 4th Floor, North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the design,
manufacture, supply and installation of conventional curtain walls
and building integrated solar photovoltaic systems, as well as the
manufacture and sale of solar power products. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the
holding company, the intermediate holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company are Water Development (HK)
Holding Co., Ltd., which is incorporated in Hong Kong, Shuifa Energy
Group Limited (7K gERERB AR AR, “Shuifa Energy”) and Shuifa
Group Co., Lid (K EEBE B R A 7
which are incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

, “Shuifa Group”), respectively,

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AT REEEH (B)

REMBATZEH

RRREZMBRRZFHBWAT ¢

Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
3l AT EGHED
AT EHE BRI REEE HERFEE B EER
%
Directly held:
HERH:
Singyes Engineering Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Design,
(H.K.) Co., Ltd. BB 18T supply and
(“Singyes Engineering”) installation of
EREETRERAR ([HETRE]) curtain walls
Rt LER
RREM
Zibo Qilu Chemical PRC/ RMB 47.5%  Research and
Industrial Zone Mainland China 100,000,000 development of
Thermal Power Co., Ltd. © B/ REIARE AR 100,000,0007T Energy-saving
(“Zibo Qilu™) thermal power
SEERETERBNARARC supply
(DSEERD EEEnae R S e
Jiangxi Yaxing PRC/ RMB 51.0%  Construction and
Construction Co., Ltd © Mainland China 50,000,000 decoration
(“Jiangxi Yaxing”) HEREAKE AR 50,000,0007T BEREE

TG EERARARO
(TrE®])

= B L
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FEERAR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AT REKEEH (B)

AERAMBARZEH ()

ARARETEMBARZHBOT:

(Continued) (%)

Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests

registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal

Company name business share capital the Company activities
AL, FATE(EED

AT & B REEE HERFEE El AN
%

Directly held: (Continued)

HERR: (B)

Foshan Xinye Renewable Energy PRC/ - 100%  Investment and
Technology Co., Ltd. @ Mainland China technology
(“Foshan Xinye”) T, B AR development of

BT RE R AR AR O solar photovoltaic
(TBRILARZED) power stations

PNCE D Ar ek
B A R T 2

Foshan Keliyuan New PRC/ RMB 100%  Design,

Energy Technology Co., Ltd. © Mainland China 30,000,000 manufacture,
(“Foshan Keliyuan”) hEREAKE AR 30,000,0007T supply and

BB R s R AT installation of
BRRRO solar photovoltaic
(MR AE]) power stations

At Bl HER
IS
RREL

Singyes MRW Joint Venture Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Design,

Co., Ltd. B8 10,0008 7T supply and

(“MRW”) installation of

Singyes MRW Joint Venture Co., Ltd. curtain walls

(TMRWJ) Rat - HER

ZEEE

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA SRR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AFREESEH(E)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) ARAMBATIZER (B)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: AR EENBARIZFHFRBUOT
(Continued) (48)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
ML FATIEIEER
AT & TR REEE HERAEE BAlt EEEHB
%
Indirectly held:
BT
Macao Singyes Renewable Energy Macau - 100%  Design, supply
Technology Co., Ltd. JBFT and installation of
(“Macao Singyes”) curtain walls
RPN ELRRR B R AA] et HER
(DRFEZE]) RERER
China Singyes New Materials Bermuda us$ 62.4%  Investment
Holdings. Co., Ltd. @@ BRE 5,200,000 holding
(“Singyes New Materials”) 5,200,000 % 7T BB
B E M RHERBR AT ©©
(TEEEFMHE])
Zhuhai Singyes Green Building PRC/ Us$ 100%  Design,
Technology Co., Ltd. @© Mainland China 48,960,806 manufacture,
(“Zhuhai Singyes”) R BIARE 48,960,806 7T supply and

ARG ERERE
ﬁﬁﬁi\\ﬂ (@) (0)
([FRgEE])

= B L

installation of
curtain walls and
solar photovoltaic
power stations
Rt - B - GHER
ZEBERARB
N

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FEERAR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AT REKEEH (B)

AERAMBARZEH ()

ARARETEMBARZHBOT:

(Continued) (&)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
ML FATE(EED
AT & B REEE HERFEE El AN
%
Indirectly held: (Continued)
mEERE  (8)
Shuifa Singyes Energy PRC/ US$ 100%  Design,
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. @© Mainland China 47,868,500 manufacture,
(“Shuifa Singyes Energy”) T, B AR 47,868,500 7T supply and
(formerly known as installation of
Zhuhai Singyes Renewable solar photovoltaic
Energy Co., Ltd.) power stations
IKEEZERR (GE) BRAR @© AT~ B
(IKEEZER]) S INCE RN
(AIEERERENBRARAR) £
Zhuhai Singyes Xinye Electricity PRC/ RMB 100%  Development of
Technology Co., Ltd. ©®© Mainland China 20,000,000 new energy
(“Singyes Xinye”) hEHEARE AR 20,000,0007T materials, and
WEBEBNNEBRAROO development of
(=0 marine biology
technology
FRERRERM B R
R YR

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AT REEEH (B)

AEAMBARZEH ()

ARARTEMBARZHEBOET:

(Continued) (48)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
ML FATE(EED
AT & TR REEE HERFEE BAlt EEEHB
%
Indirectly held: (Continued)
EERE (B
Zhuhai Singyes New PRC/ RMB 62.4%  Research,
Materials Co., Ltd. ®© Mainland China 62,500,000 manufacture
(“Zhuhai Singyes New Materials”) HEHREAKE  ARK62,500,0007T and sale of
GBIV ERH photovoltaic film
BRAROE 7 BER
(IRBEEEFR ) HERNER
Yan'an Singyes New PRC/ RMB 46.8%  Research,
Materials. Co., Ltd. @®© Mainland China 10,000,000 manufacture
(“Yan'an New Materials”) MEFREARE AR 10,000,0007T and sale of

ERBLITHERHEARAT @@

(TEEZFH#H)

= B L

PEKEEEEREEER QA

new materials
7 BER
SHE IR

103



104

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)

AT REKEEH (B)

AERAMBARZEH ()

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

ARARETEMBARZHBOT:

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020

(Continued) (&)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
ML FATIEIEER
AT & B REEE HERFEE El AN
%
Indirectly held: (Continued)
mEERE  (8)
Hunan Singyes Solar PRC/ RMB 100%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd. © Mainland China 410,143,300 development,
(“Hunan Singyes”) B REARE  ARK410,143,3007T manufacture and
WA AGERRAR AT © sale of solar
(FHmEE]) products
e R BER
HEAGEER
Zhuhai Singyes Energy-saving PRC/ US$ 100%  Research and
Technologies Co., Ltd. ®© Mainland China 65,000,000 development of
(“Singyes Energy-saving”) R AR ARE 65,000,000 37T energy-saving
WEEEAERRARAR OO products
(S0 MR kAR E S
Xinjiang Singyes Renewable Energy PRC/ RMB 100%  Research and
Technology Co., Ltd. ©@ Mainland China 438,270,000 design of and
(“Xinjiang Singyes”) EREAKE AR 438,270,0007T investment in
HEEEHERARAR QO solar power
(FFrmEz]) projects
ME - Rt RIRE
K5eeIEE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AT REEEH (B)

AEAMBARZEH ()

ARARTEMBARZHEBOET:

(Continued) (%)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
AL, FATE(EED
AT & TR REEE HERFEE BAlt EEEHB
%
Indirectly held: (Continued)
EERE (B
Hunan Singyes Green PRC/ RMB 100%  Research
Energy Co., Ltd. @ Mainland China 912,000,000 and development
(“Hunan Green Energy”) HEREAKE AR 912,000,0007T of electricity and
W EELZERRRH AR DR @ new energy
(MmsrEER]) MR RFEEN R
EEEiR
Gansu Singyes Green Energy PRC/ RMB 100%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd. @© Mainland China 74,000,000 construction and
(“Gansu Singyes”) hEREARE AR 74,000,0007T operation of solar

HEEXZELRMRERAR O

(THHREZ])

= B L

PEKEEEEREEER QA

power stations
W - ER R
AIZaEE I,
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AT REKEEH (B)

AERAMBARZEH ()

ARARETEMBARZHBOT:

(Continued) (%)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
ML FATE(EED
AT & B REEE HERFEE B EEXH
%
Indirectly held: (Continued)
mEERE  (8)
Wuwei Dongrun Solar Energy PRC/ RMB 100%  Research,
Development Co., Ltd. ©@ Mainland China 5,000,000 construction and
(“Wuwei Dongrun”) T, E AR AR5 ,000,0007T operation of solar
RESEAGEREER AR O power stations
(MR BRE] MR BR LA
NG
Gansu Singyes Solar PRC/ RMB 100%  Research,
Technologies Co., Ltd. © Mainland China 20,000,000 development,
(“Gansu Technologies”) hEmEAKE AR 20,000,0007T manufacture
HEBEELGEREERARO and sale of

(TH&RE)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)

AT REEEH (B)

AEAMBARZEH ()

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

ARARTEMBARZHEBOET:

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued) (&)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal

Company name business share capital the Company activities
ML FATIEIEER
AT & B REEMES HERAEE BAlt EEEHB

%

Indirectly held: (Continued)

EERE (B

Yangjiang Singyes Green Energy PRC/ RMB 100%
Technology Co., Ltd. © Mainland China 184,080,000

(“Yangjiang Singyes”) hEREAKE AR 184,080,0007T

Research and
design of and
investment in

Bl SEEEEREHEER AR © solar power
(=3 projects

M~ FEtk

RE KGR m

Yangjiang Huazhi Green Energy PRC/ USs$ 100%  Research and
Technology Co., Ltd. @© Mainland China 28,261,862 design of and
(“Yangjiang Huazhi”) A RE 28,261,862 37T investment in
BIERGZEEREFRERAR@O solar power
(MIER]) projects

M - Rtk
REXGRER
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BEREEMERANENBRAAC
(MEERE )

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ABRREESEH(E)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) ARAMBATIZER (B)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: AR EENBARIZFHFRBUOT
(Continued) (%8)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
ML FATIEIEER
AT &H B REEES BHERAEE B EEXH
%
Indirectly held: (Continued)
mEERE  (8)
Yangjiang Huayu Green Energy PRC/ US$ 100%  Research and
Technology Co., Ltd. @© Mainland China 10,170,741 design of and
(“Yangjiang Huayu”) T, E AR 10,170,741 &7T investment in
BIEFHEEREHERAR @O solar power
(IIEF]) projects
7 - &tk
BE KGR
Suixi Xinye Photovoltaic PRC/ - 100%  Research and
Electricity Co., Ltd. © Mainland China design of and
(“Suixi Xinye") R R ARE investment in

solar power

projects
- &ERk

TE KRG REE M
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)

AT REEEH (B)

AEAMBARZEH ()

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

ARARTEMBARZHEBOET:

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued) (48)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to  Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
ML FATE(EED
AT & TR REEE HERFEE BAlt EEEHB
%
Indirectly held: (Continued)
EERE (B
Zhuhai Gangxing PRC/ - 100%  Research and
Technology Co., Ltd. © Mainland China development of
(“Zhuhai Gangxing”) &R B ARE energy-saving
KEAEREBRATO raw materials
(B HE]) ok FEanEE
R
Huabei Limited © Hong Kong HK$ 62.4%  Investment
(“Huabei”) BB 10,000 holding
EHERARFC 10,0007 7T REER
(T8 ])
Shenzhen Kangsheng PRC/ RMB 46.8%  Research,
Photoelectric Technology Mainland China 16,000,000 manufacture and
Co., Ltd. @@ REREARE AR 16,000,0007T sale of solar
(“Shenzhen Kangsheng”) products
A TREAERRARAR - BER
(MAYIERRR ) HEAGEER

“ToREFER PEKEEEGEREEARAT 109
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

These subsidiaries were registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprises under PRC law.

These subsidiaries were registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s equity interests in these
companies were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank and other
loans of RMB2,295,044,030.

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement in 2016 and a
supplemental agreement in 2017,2018 and 2019 respectively with Excel
Deal Investment Limited (the “Purchaser”) to sell 81% equity interests in
Xinjiang Singyes and Wuwei Dongrun (together referred to as the “Target
Subsidiaries”).

On 11 January 2020 and 8 May 2020, a written agreement and
supplemental agreement were signed between the Company and the
Purchaser to extend the long stop date of the transaction to 31 December
2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has received deposits in relation
to the sale of equity interests in the Target Subsidiaries amounting to
RMB38,974,000 while the transaction has not been fulfilled.

Subsequent to 31 December 2020, a written agreement was signed
between the Company and the Purchaser to extend the long stop date of
the transaction to 31 December 2021.

Annual Report 2020

1.

AT REKEEH (B)

AERAMBARZEH ()

ARARETEMBARZHBOT:

(%)
GEE

(a)

ZEME R RREFRBEEEEM AT
SMEBEDE -

ZEM B A RREHBEEETM AN
BEEDE -

R-_ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H K&
ERZELRNRAESEER  F
BAEE AR 2,295,044,030 TTAY IR
TREMEROERG -

AEBMBESREBRAR(TER])
R-E—RNFIIVEEHZEMN T
—tF - ZE-\FRZT—NFIT
SNHE TR LS EEE R R
B (GTE BIZMBAR]])HI81 %AAE o

ARRHEBEFHRR =T _FF—A
+—BR_Z_EFRANBEIE
A kExhE AERXSH
SEBITERE-_ZT T+ A
=+—B-

R-T-_THE+-A=+—H K&
Bzt & BZH B AR 2 REREE
£ AR #38974,0007T ' KB AKE
B o

R-B-FBF+_A=+—H2% "
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e) 75% equity interests in Yan’an New Materials and Shenzhen Kangsheng
were indirectly held by Singyes New Materials, a subsidiary of the
Company.

(f) The Group completed the acquisition of 100% equity interests in Foshan
Xinye with nil consideration and 100% equity interests in Foshan
Keliyuan at a consideration of RMB26,500,000 on 5 June 2020 and 29
June 2020, respectively (note 38).

The Group completed the acquisition of 47.5% equity interests in Zibo
Qilu at a consideration of RMB190,000,000 and 51% equity interests
in Jiangxi Yaxin at a consideration of RMB39,900,000 on 30 September
2020 and 22 December 2020, respectively (note 38).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries has material non-controlling interests.

AT REEEH (B)

AEAMBARZEH ()

AAREEMBARZFBEMT :
(%)

Bt - ()

(&)  FEZHMEL RARYIFE R 75% HRSHE iR
AR BB R REEIV RS -

H AEESNIR=_T_TFAREEK
T EFERNAZTABTREERK
B8 1L TR 3£ 59 100% AR A DA B2 AR (B
AR ¥ 26,500,000 7T 45 8 5 1L B &
B9 100% A% 1 (K3 38) °

AEBMAOBR=_E=TFNA=1H
RZT_TF+_A=+=HZEKMN
1B A R ¥ 190,000,000 7t U5 fE i 18
EEEA7.5% BEARARBARE
39,900,000 7T U5 T Pa 2 B AY 51% %
T (Ff3E38) °

ERINTEEMBA/IBFEAKESF
BEEENBRAEEEEFEERID
WARRMBAR - EFRA - HHE
B AR ZFEHERFBBRIT
Eo

B B 2 RV A SRR RS -

“ToREFER PEKEEEGEREEARAT
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 RREH

112

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and International Accounting Standards
(“1ASs”) and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee that
remain in effect and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments, conversion
rights of convertible bonds, and certain financial assets and equity
investments which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2020. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

REA RS R RARIR BRI 75 5 22 A ([ B
BREEHEEL DR HeREEREe
AAEAEEE ((RReEAEEg])
HERER R 2E - BEResHER ([E
REFtEL ) BEREFENZE S
HWEBDABRMERZREZEG 2R
B UARBEARGIZEERE - &
ERERBBELUAEORR - HETE
SRTE  ATHRRESNERERET
TREENERRERAFENE K
AEERIN  ZEVHERENAARETT
(TAR¥ D 27| BMAREEMERA
BT Th

RAEMBREBEAARREK B AR
REZE—ZT_TF+-_A=+—HIF
EMFEHRE - B AR AAAREE
SEBREHINER EAEEH2 8K
BHREBKRZBRIHRAERKRKZSE
REFIA R BB BE IR EH RS (I
AEBEEETFRAERIATEREY
KEEEBNREFREN) ¥ EZEE R
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.1 WBEE(E)

HERE(E

AR R ERAREEERPRNREHR
RZBURESRALER ER] - AIARE
ERFHHEEERHEHREHRIEN
BeZE—HEEERER 81

() BEREHREMEEFAEANG
Bz

(b) EMENRBPELNERN &
() AEENKREERBEEREE -

MEARNMERRDIREARFRER
RS B A — SR BORR S - KIS
NAFEBARERSEHIEZ AR
BAR - UREESE NREER LR
TR B AL

BERkEMEERENRIRRBASE
S RBIEA A RIS - AE%AE
RGPS AR I BAL - B
AEBKE QRN ZEBNMEE
BREERAE - BHE - W Xk
REMENER S ARE 230 o

“ToREFER PEKEEEGEREEARAT

113



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 IRREAE(E)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the

HeRE(E)

8 BE RIERE T _ESCPTl = 8
Ex=E B ZIEHREE - BIXE
HesfiThEStHREHRERE
Bl MNBARER EERHIRE
b BRBREEGIE - Qg ABRIIME
SRR G o

fied AN 52 18 5% 2 9 — ) B U8 % R O 42 )
7 BIEARERER () XM B A AR B E

carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative (BIERE) REE - (i) E A FEERE
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the HHBEEE M)A EFIALENZR
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any FTEE R AR WHER () TR B AT

investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the
current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

2.2

B ()EFAREMRENRFE &
(i) $E 25 B P E R R S E A WO B R SUES
At o ARSRBIE(G ST AT L 2 E A e
ROBoSRERBUOAEEEELE
HREEXBERENERELE  2E
RBEREF D REIERNREB G

ERTBURE ) R R

REBRRNFEEPBRRBERRB —F
—NFEH B EBLRMER BRIA T RIER]
BRI B3RS 2ER -

I[%Eﬁr%#&%/ Al
E35% (E3T4)

fﬁf%ﬁﬁr%* LRAFEIS . FIERENE
REFTERIE 39K R

RBHOEE

N

Iﬁ%iﬁﬁ%i&%ﬁ J
F75(BRIAX)
Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions ERMHHREE Ccovip-19 — 16E5#
(early adopted) F16% (BFIA) ZEH
(FEE#D)
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material W EJFEE‘J%l?f& EANES
and IAS 8 REEERIE 8
({léﬂ—f$)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described below:

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance to
all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement
and reporting financial performance, new guidance on
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also
clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework
is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any standard. The
Conceptual Framework did not have any significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.

2.2 EETBREEREE (F)

—E-NFRYBEREBRMERRRE
7 BRI S AR 1L E R B A
m

(@) —F-NFEHBEHREH MR
(TBESER D S BRAH RS
REEHENBERS - BRH
I A BB 15 R A BB Bl —
BB TR - WRHBH T&
TR REER - BISER
BREAEBABERBREMBEREAN
MEMH  BRANERREERA
BEOFEINREERBENE
MEENERRE - HERE
g BENFFETHEEERM B

BEZAG - RSERLIFS—

AR BEP BN SHE

EBETAEANNBSHARE - 8

SHEZR A 4R 5 R [ ) B A RO

RRBEEEFNEATE -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions or other events
that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.

Annual Report 2020

2.2 EFTBREERMEE (5)

BIFR M F5 3RS LRI 35 (B FTAS)
BEEBNES U HREHE
SMES] o R FIERTHRERS A - L
ARREBN —HESEINE
EfME HVAELBE-ER
AR—HEZRBE  MME LA
HEKELNENEERER °
BN EEBRABRIEMKE
FOMARANERE - ZFERT
BUBTRIEMIZ2EE TR AR
NRBEEBALFERSELNR
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FEITERFELNEE
EHIATFRENEY R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the replacement
of an existing interest rate benchmark with alternative risk-
free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide temporary
reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue during the
period of uncertainty before the introduction of alternative
RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does not
have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendments to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic (“Covid-19”). The practical expedient applies only
to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with earlier
application permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.

= B L

e

2.2 EETBREEREE (F)

B 15 R 5 R E 957 - BIRR
BETERIE IR R EBR I B RS
RRIF 75 (ERTA) SHE UER
2 B M o (TR LR A 2K ) B
RBEMNEEEZ fIHRRATENT
BRI FEE - R FERT IR AT £
SIS f Fl) 2 /T ) AN FEE
RN EETE NSO TR
PEARAE - UESN - RFBITRER
AARREERHAEBIZED
HERZRERZENEIPEED
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HAEEMHBRRERREE
ESCIEZ

BARR B 75 3R 5 2 B 5B 1657 (18 3]
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly lease
payments for the leases of the Group’s plant and machinery
have been reduced or waived by the lessors upon reducing the
scale of production as a result of the pandemic and there are no
other changes to the terms of the leases. The Group has early
adopted the amendment on 1 January 2020 and elected not
to apply lease modification accounting for all rent concessions
granted by the lessors as a result of the pandemic during the
year ended 31 December 2020. Accordingly, a reduction in the
lease payments arising from the rent concessions of RMB52,000
has been accounted for as a variable payment by derecognising
part of the lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 EfE#1E i) R E N EPREL

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Bk

BRELEA] -

AEBAYRRAREHRERTEATIE
PRAPAE K R A TRV R R] S AR ME AT B B

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 2 BRI S ERF 35, SRR ?
(fB3TK)
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark BRI REERES - FEREENE -
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 Reform — Phase 21 Bl g SRR 395 - EoER!
and IFRS 16 BRI BREERETH
AR BREENE4IRR
BRI BREERE 165
(fBETE)
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRMEREEAE10%E KREZLRHEEL
and IAS 28 between an Investor BIpR e ERIE 208 % FlRAETEZA
and its Associate or Joint Venture # (fB3TK) HEEERA

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 3 BRI BREEAE 175 FEAH’
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 3 BRI BREEAE 175 REA#
(fB3TE)
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BIR et ERIE 15 BEIEAIES
Current or Non-current 3 (fB3TE) A
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 3 BB e ERE 15 (BiTA) SHIRER?
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Eestimates 3 BB e ERESS (BITX)  Sifates’
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: B esHERIE 165 vE - BERK
Proceeds before Intended Use 2 (fB3TE) HEAZ AR
2B
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling B esHERIE 375 ERERAH -
a Contract 2 (fB3TE) BRI ?
Annual Improvementsto ~ Amendments to IFRS 1, B FHEEN—F—/|F  BReERELR
IFRSs 2018-2020 IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples ECECTEABRR B & ER

accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41 ?
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

5 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020,

IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combination for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest benchmark is replaced
with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk
component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge,
to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
amendments require an entity to discloses additional information
to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the comparative

information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank loans denominated in
RMB based on the China Loan Prime Rate as at 31 December 2020.
If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a
future period, the Group will apply this practical expedient upon the
modification of these borrowings when the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met and expects that no significant modification gain or loss
will arise as a result of applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and
a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity ‘s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of
the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered
a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling
any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they
are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs
(Continued)

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS
41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to

the Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS
16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint venture,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates or joint venture is included as part of the Group’s

investments in associates or joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability

to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Merger accounting for business combinations under common control

The acquisition of subsidiaries under common control has been
accounted for using the principles of merger accounting. The merger
method of accounting involves incorporating the financial statement
items of the combining entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been consolidated from the
date when the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income and conversion
rights of convertible bonds at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/5)

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced as intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value (nil
to 5% of cost) over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land and buildings 20-50 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment and furniture 3-5 years
Solar photovoltaic power stations 20-25 year

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/5)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for any
impairment in value. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of investment property to its residual value
over its estimated useful life of 50 years.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the costs of the item can be measured
reliably; otherwise, the expenditures are recognised in profit or loss in
the year in which they are incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, the transfer does not change
the carrying amount of the property transferred, nor does it change the
cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Software purchased is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five

years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/5)

POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEEFBEREE (8)
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE(E)
Group as a lessee (Continued) KEEEREANA (B)
(a)  Right-of-use assets (@) fERAEEE

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Plant and office premises 2-5 years
Leasehold land 25-50 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of
an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment that is considered to be of
low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are

recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/5)

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit
or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/5)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 180 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract
assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other
payables, bank advances for discounted bills, convertible bonds, senior
notes and interest-bearing bank and other loans.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest

rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/5)

POLICIES (Continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill on an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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IR MY et
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME(8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a)  Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

(b)  Sale of electricity

Revenue from the sale of electricity is recognised in the
accounting period when electricity is generated and transmitted.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(c) Tariff adjustment

Revenue from the tariff adjustment represents subsidies received
and receivable from the government authorities in respect of
the Group’s solar power plant business. Tariff adjustment is
recognised at its fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the additional tariff will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions, if any.

(d)  Rendering of services

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised , when the
services are rendered.

(e)  Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because
the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The
input method recognises revenue based on the proportion of
the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs for
satisfaction of the construction services.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(e) (Continued)

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to collect
from the customers as reimbursement of costs and margins
for scope of works not included in the original construction
contract. Claims are accounted for as variable consideration and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Group uses the
expected value method to estimate the amounts of claims
because this method best predicts the amount of variable
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/5)

POLICIES (Continued)
Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are
subject to impairment assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at

the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless

there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/5)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings/loss per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local government. These subsidiaries and their employees are
required to make monthly contributions calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ wages and salaries, subject to certain ceilings and
local practices set by the relevant local governments, to the central
pension scheme. Other than the central pension scheme, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China have no legal obligation for retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. Contributions to these plans
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre are charged to profit or loss

as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. The functional
currency of the Company is HK$. The Company’s presentation
currency is RMB because the Group’s principal operations are carried
out in Mainland China. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are

recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain companies within the Group are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profits or losses are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

I (48)

RS R RINET BRI FFEIAR £
RHER5 B HNERRE o RINER
FEFENFERERRABEEQAFE
EHMEZRE - MBI AFEFERN
FEWEBELZ Wes s B IRABEIE TS
A BEMRRAATERE 2 WEE
BeRER Ty AN (Bl R ER S
BrREMEERaEsBRhER I
RMIBEZEE - T RIREtEERE
IR T HER)

RE LR RANHEZFEREE
HFEKRER  RTHEEHEBEE -
RS R ARV SRR 2 EX - ¥]5
R BHRAKENSERRENHE
EEMFEBEEIFEKRENA
H o FAEZ ERMNRTEYRIE - Bl
SEEES A MW HTFANHENR
Z A8 -

ARAEERE T AR E B IE
AR - RBEMK - ZFERNEE
KB BERBEHRNRITERBESA
RE - KIS F AP E R ik
ERARE - Ut ESRIEN ZBNE
o 2 ER SRR R INE R B REEAR
it o MEBINERE - Hth 2T
B2 FE B ON EASAR RO B 0 IR aR

=7
7o

“ToREFER PEKEEEGEREEARAT

163



164

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially
all the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with
renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is
a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control
and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew
or to terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Revenue recognition

The Group applies judgements in determining whether it is principally
involved in the trading of goods. The Group concludes that it acts as a
principal and recognises revenue in the gross amount when the Group
has the ability to direct the use of goods and obtain substantially all of
the remaining benefits from goods before transferring to the customers
and has discretion in establishing the price for goods. Otherwise, the
Group acts as an agent and recognises revenue in the net amount that
it retains for its agency services.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Construction services

The Group’s revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the services, which requires estimation
to be made by management. The stage of completion is estimated
by reference to the actual costs incurred over the total budgeted
costs, and the corresponding contract revenue is also estimated
by management. Due to the nature of the activity undertaken in
construction service, the date at which the activity is entered into and
the date at which the activity is completed usually fall into different
accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget
prepared for each contract as the contract progresses. Where the
actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual contract costs
are more than expected, an expected loss may arise. No expected loss
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2020 was
RMB10,542,000 (2019: RMB6,448,000). Further details are given in
note 16 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECLs on receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s receivables and contract
assets is disclosed in notes 24, 25 and 23 to the financial statements,
respectively.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

FEEFIE R AT (8)

st FHEERR (45)
WA B R AR BB B BB

AEBERBBEEMEAEEZ AR
REHWBENTRRERER - BEXTD
REAERUEREANZERTFE D

AR B MR BETE (AREFP RS

D) e

BREEERVENASENE L BREZ
#E o NEE IR BTEREE AR E
SLEEERKREAEEEN - fim -
IMRFEREBEMRREERK - FARE
b - BRI EBUE NBEIL N - FESLiE
HWEBEIRHE REREEH - FL
BRIBOTHMSWERN - IHTR
REAIBEE A B -

HESLBRIFROEX BB
RIEHEEEE 2 MR AR TD
BEAfGE - FHEEEENSBHIRE
B RIBREEBA TR - AEE
ME L EEERERIEEERRHNTR
AEAEEEIRNRAREFNERE
# - ARAXAKERKKARSNEER
HEEBIENER D BIN P BRwR M=
24 - 25 K 23 4% E" -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the IBR

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an IBR to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow
over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not
in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are subject to
the PRC CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters relating to
PRC CIT have not been confirmed by the relevant local tax authorities,
objective estimates based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations
and other related policies are required in determining the provision
for PRC CIT to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will
impact the income tax and tax provision in the period in which the
final outcome is determined. The carrying amount of PRC CIT payable
at 31 December 2020 was RMB102,010,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB22,245,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant, equipment and
investment properties

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant, equipment and investment properties, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in production, or from a change in
the market demand for the product or service output of the asset,
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the
care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based
on the experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. The depreciation amount will be adjusted if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each financial year end date taking into
account changes in circumstances.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets with definite lives
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
sell and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
sell is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The impairment of property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2020
was RMB94,889,000 (31 December 2019: nil), RMB4,201,000 (31
December 2019: nil) and RMB1,582,000 (31 December 2019: nil),
respectively. Further details are contained in notes 13, 14 and 15 to
the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of a
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customers’ interests or competitor actions. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period. The impairment
provision for inventories as at 31 December 2020 was RMB3,519,000
(2019: 4,236,000) (note 22).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets should be recognised when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets at 31 December 2020 was RMB241,047,000 (31 December
2019: RMB3,195,000). Further details are given in note 32 to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities should be recognised for all taxable differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates except
(a) when the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of
such temporary differences and it is probable that such temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Significant
management estimation is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax liabilities associated with the Company’s investments
in subsidiaries, based upon the likely timing of the reversal of such
temporary differences. The carrying value of deferred tax liabilities
associated with investments in subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 was
RMB86,860,000 (31 December 2019: RMB86,860,000). The carrying
value of deferred tax liabilities associated with right-of-use assets and
acquisition of subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 were RMB947,000
(31 December 2019: nil) and RMB22,574,000 (31 December 2019:
nil), respectively. Further details are given in note 32 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on a market-
based valuation technique as detailed in note 44 to the financial
statements. The valuation requires the Group to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select the price multiple. In
addition, the Group makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity
and size differences. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE

Revenue represents an appropriate proportion of contract revenue
from construction contracts, net of government surcharges; and the
invoiced value of goods and electricity sold, and net of value-added tax
and government surcharges.

The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit for the year were mainly
derived from the construction and installation of curtain walls (including
solar power products), and operation and management of solar
photovoltaic power stations, which are regarded as a single reportable
segment in a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s senior management for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment. In addition, the
principal assets employed by the Group are located in Mainland China.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented other than entity-wide
disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4. EEFBEEBEAN (B)
REVENUE (Continued)
(@) Revenue from contracts with customers (a) REHEFRSHHIKA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) SLBRA EF
2020 2019
- et —Z-NE
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETT % ARETTT %
Revenue from KEEEFAENA
contracts with customers
Construction contracts BEAH 3,705,739 68.6 2,646,045 80.0
Sale of products EmiEE 1,357,419 25.1 518,088 157
Sale of electricity BhHE 129,140 24 132,778 40
Thermal supply A 188,709 3.5 = =
Rendering of design and UG KA ARS
consultation services 19,992 0.4 9,608 0.3
Revenue WA 5,400,999 100.0 3,306,519 100.0
Tariff adjustment* EEmA 196,552 179,857
5,597,551 3,486,376
8 Tariff adjustment represents compensation receivable * EEFLERAEBE
from the State Grid Corporation of China (“State Grid”) AbZge R BB LE
in respect of the Group’s solar photovoltaic power station XBBEBEREHLH QA
operation business, which will be settled subsequent to ([BEXRER]) Bz H
State Grid’s receipt of fund from the relevant government B EHEREREHK
authorities. EEEBTKEE 2%
e

174 China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4. FEEFBERBEAN (B)
REVENUE (Continued)
(@) Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) (a) REBHEESHMEA (E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) DBEWAELH (E)
Geographical markets o[ B R
2020 2019
- et —ENE
RMB’'000 % RMB'000 %
ARETFT % AREFTT %
Domestic — Mainland China* BIA - A B AR * 5,140,192 95.2 3,077,302 931
Oceania KAEM 187,395 3.5 177,384 54
Hong Kong B 47,512 0.9 17,387 0.5
Malaysia Qi 23,959 0.4 27,831 08
Macau bl 1,941 = 6,615 0.2
5,400,999 100.0 3,306,519 100.0
i The place of domicile of the Group’s principal operating * AEEFTZELENBA
subsidiaries is Mainland China. The principal revenues of AW FR7E i & Bl K
the Group are generated in Mainland China. B o RAEEMHEZRA

EEBPEARE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE (Continued)

(@) Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

4, HESWBEFRMWA ()

nr =

(a)

REHEEFESHMKA (F)

()  PBERAEH (E)

2020 2019
—EFTE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Timing of revenue WA FEZR RS R
recognition
Products transferred EmR (B RS
at a point in time 1,675,268 650,866
Services transferred AR 7% B i I HE 1S
over time 3,725,731 2,655,653
Total revenue from REEE PSRRI A BT
contracts with customers 5,400,999 3,306,519

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance

TRETRRARE HAREHER
BB ASE - EERREH
PRAGKAE  YARE
THMERNBENE TR

obligations satisfied in previous periods: R
2020 2019
k- k- 2 3 —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTFT
Revenue recognised RREBRYEFA SN B ENERERRA
that was included in (Mf7£29) :
contract liabilities
at the beginning
of the reporting period
(note 29):
Construction contracts BEAH 32,118 56,137
Sale of products EmiHE 13,976 42,667
46,094 98,804
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE (Continued)

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the products and payment is generally due within
90 to 180 days from delivery, except for small and new
customers, where payment is normally expected to be
settled shortly after delivery of goods. No credit period is
set by the Group for small and new customers.

Sale of electricity

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in time
upon transmission of electricity to purchasing companies
or grid companies. The payment is generally due within
30 days from billing.

Thermal supply

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in
time upon transmission of steam to companies in Qilu
Chemical Industrial Park in Zibo City, Shandong Province.
The payment is generally due within 30 days from the
date of billing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FEERAR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE (Continued)

(@) Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Performance obligations (Continued)

Rendering of services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due upon
service rendered.

Construction services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 30 to 180 days from the date of billing. A certain
percentage of payment is retained by customers until the
end of the retention period as the Group’s entitlement to
the final payment is conditional on the satisfaction of the
service quality by the customers over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts was
approximately RMB1,396,756,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,297,045,000). This amount represents the revenue
expected to be recognised in the future from contracts
for construction services and sale of products entered
into by the customers with the Group. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when or as the
construction work and sale of products are completed,
which is expected to occur within 2 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND

REVENUE (Continued)

(b) Non-current assets

4, HESWBEFRMWA ()

(b) FREBEE

2020 2019
ok Jemt- 3 o —E-NF

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

AREFT % ARETIT %

Mainland China FR B K BE 4,719,815 99.4 4,618,964 99.3
Hong Kong a5 14,235 0.3 15,813 03
Oceania RN 13,573 0.3 15,243 03
Others Hib 35 = 142 0.1
4,747,658 100.0 4,650,162 100.0

The non-current asset information above is based on the

locations of the assets and excludes investments in associates,

deferred tax assets and equity investments designated at fair

value through other comprehensive income.

Information about major customers

Revenue derived from sales to a single customer including sales

to a group of entities which are known to be under common

control of that customer, which amounted to 10% or more of the

total revenue is set out below:

ERIERBEEEN TR EEM
EMEE D - B T EIEREE
RERE  BEHRBREERETE
BRAVEFELEZEFH AR
EEKEAERERE

BT ZEFPRIEN

KERE—FFPHHE (BEHHM
BRRZEPARZEH T —4A
BERZHE) MBAUEREAN
10% KAL) T

2020 2019

ok k-3 3 —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBFIT

Customer A BEPA & 386,491
Customer B EFB < 380,828
Customer C ZHEC 615,709 2

* Less than 10%

* AR 10%
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

H e A\ R Wz

HEMPA XK DT

2020 2019
k- ok -3 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREEFIT
Deferred income released to LA ETERFEAFR
profit or loss over the expected BRI EEEAELERA (FFE33)
useful lives of the related assets
(note 33) 13,856 13,373
Bank interest income RITHBUA 2,360 999
Gain on bargain purchase (note 38) & {BUREE U S (FIFE38) 7,445 =
Interest income on amounts due FEU #8335 SRIE A S U (FitEE40(b))
from related parties (note 40(b)) 646 =
Government grants* AT e 9,815 24,840
Gain on disposal of I EB A RIRMWE (5 19)
associates (note 19) 31,768 36,274
Gain on repurchase of BEEIE L ERMUE (H3E31)
senior notes (note 31) 209,444 -
Gain on cancellation of LB ERMUGE (FE31)
senior notes (note 31) 1,655 -
Waiver of interest on an other loan NeHMERNFE 13,087 =
Foreign exchange gain, net (note 7) B Uezs - %58 (Fi5E7) 143,160 12,070
Operating lease wEREES WA (FFE15)
rental income (note 15) 13,891 4,965
Compensation for a performance JE 4 e E (T EE38)
commitment (note 38) 8,983 -
Gain on debt restructuring EREANE 1,780 =
Gain on settlement of BAFEFEAHEHABEN
financial assets CRIEESE W (MHRET7)
at fair value through
profit or loss (note 7) - 1,003
Reversal of provision for (O] 38 AR (B s
compensation for
breach of contracts - 67,251
Others EHb 4,269 788
462,159 161,563

*

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

grants.

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA SRR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BIERE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: REERRADHTAT :

2020 2019

—EC-FF —E—NF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BaE AREFT ARETTT

Interest on bank and other loans RITREMERF S 42 175,642 188,626

Interest on discounted bills receivable B5IR FEUTZTEFI] 2 41, 42 2,200 2,067

Interest on senior notes BEEERE 31,42 146,660 215,754
Interest on amounts due to FEUSFEE S IR B

related parties 40(a), 42 38,903 -

Acceleration of unwinding interest DR EIF B 31,42 8,856 -

Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 15(b), 42 726 510

Interest on convertible bonds Al AR E S F B - 5,332

Others Hph 54 2,199

373,041 414,488

Less: interest capitalised B BEAEFE 42 (20,041) =

353,000 414,488

“RCTEFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BaBiAER(E518)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ RNEEBRFATDREF, (BIB) Tk,
(crediting): GTA) AT EIBREEL
2020 2019
—BCTHE —T-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARETT ARETTT
Cost of construction services and REEA K R ARETBRIG A AN
design services 3,175,223 2,704,899
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 1,254,971 427 829
Cost of electricity sold BEE KA 149,469 145,521
Cost of steam sold HERE R 136,645 =
Depreciation of property, M - BEREETE
plant and equipment 13 192,572 191,696
Depreciation of investment properties 1% &Y% E 14 9,453 4,560
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 15(a) 7,618 10,089
Amortisation of other intangible assets £t {5 Ji2 & B # 4 17 5,272 983
Total depreciation and amortisation ~ #78 K& # $44858 214,915 207,328
Employee benefit expense EERAFAZ (BEEEK
(including directors’ and chief TR BE ) (FIzE8)
executive’s remuneration (note 8):
Wages and salaries and TERFS RBEER
relevant benefits 159,367 162,496
Pension scheme contributions RIRESET BN 3,769 6,983
Equity-settled share option expense ~ MRANAEE 7 BERSHER & 35 348 4,586
163,484 174,065

Lease payments not included inthe Kt ATHE B ETEM

measurement of lease liabilities HEFE 15(c) 3,832 6,316
Research costs IR A 37,746 17,726
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREMEN & 9,930 9,550
Impairment of financial and SRRANEERE  F58 -

contract assets, net:

Trade receivables B SR GIEZ B 24 31,006 374,605
Contract assets BHEEZRE 23 149,811 55,889
Financial assets S AFERFUE - Hi

included in prepayments, FEUGRIBE R EMEER

other receivables and other assets EREERE 25 82,138 10,096

262,955 440,590
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (Continued) 7. BBiaEF(EE)(E)
2020 2019

= et 2 —T-h&F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B AREFT ARETFTT

FEMRZE#RFE
to net realisable value - 4,236

ME - BB RRERE

Write-down of inventories

Impairment of property, plant

and equipment 13 94,889 -
Impairment of investment properties & & ¥ 2 Bi{E 14 4,201 =
Impairment of right-of-use assets FHREEERE 15(a) 1,582 =
Gain on bargain purchase AEWEN K 5 (7,445) =
Gain on disposal of associates HER AN RIM Ik 5 (31,768) (36,274)
Operating lease rental income CEHERS KA 5 (13,891) (4,965)
Exchange gain, net PE W BB s - JFEE 5 (143,160) (12,070)
Gain on settlement of financial assets 1ZAF{ExTE B HE A

at fair value through profit or loss BRI EELFERK= 5 = (1,003)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - BB KREIER

property, plant and equipment ol gt = 4,187
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EBERITEAERIMNE
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BIE_ TR A - HE D RERHIEE 383(1)
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of @ b CEOERARI(EEES
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies FmBE R RBIE 2 BEENFAEER
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as ITRBEM ST
follows:
2020 2019
ot ko3 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Fees we 1,683 4,007
Other emoluments: H B
Salaries, allowances e SRR REYAE
and benefits in kind 1,381 2,294
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B 83 112
3,147 6,413
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION (Continued)

8. EEBRITBAEHKME (B)
Salaries,

allowances Pension

and benefits scheme Total

Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e 2R BRAEsE
e Bz 5N Bl & 485t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT ARETR ARETR
2020 —E-%F
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Liu Hongwei @ BATHE S E @ 505 529 24 1,058
Mr. Wang Dongwei © TERESTE 303 426 29 758
Mr. Chen Fushan © PRAEIL ST © 303 426 30 759
Mr. Zheng Qingtao © EERE© - - - -
1,111 1,381 83 2,575
Non-executive directors: IFEHMITES :
Ms. Wang Suhui © FEELL© - - - -
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan © RERAE - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: YB3 IETTESE
Dr. Wang Ching F =gt 168 = = 168
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon GBS AE 252 = = 252
Dr. Tan Hongwei EEE LT 152 = = 152
572 - - 572
1,683 1,381 83 3,147

“RCTEFR
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. ESRRITHBUEEMN: (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e EKR  BRIREFE
we YA &= R [
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT ARBTT ARETT
2019 —T—NF
Executive directors: WITES -
Mr. Liu Hongwei @ BATHE S E @ 1,797 698 28 2,523
Mr. Xiong Shi ® BE JREAE® 123 469 28 620
Mr. Xie Wen ® B okE® 1,232 679 28 1,939
Mr. Zheng Qingtao © EERTE© - - - -
Mr. Wang Dongwei © TERESLE - - - -
Mr. Chen Fushan © PRAEIL ST © - - - -
3,152 1,846 84 5,082
Non-executive directors: IEMITES :
Mr. Zhuo Jianming © BERESTED 123 448 28 599
Mr. Li Hong © T REE® 123 = = 123
Ms. Wang Suhui © TxBER L@ = = = =
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan © RFZIRSAE© - - - -
246 448 28 722
Independent non-executive directors: JBI FFHITES ¢
Dr. Wang Ching F REx 179 = = 179
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon GBI 269 = = 269
Dr. Tan Hongwei e T 161 = = 161
609 - - 609
4,007 2,294 112 6,413

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Mr. Liu Hongwei resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company
on 28 November 2019 while remained as an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. Xiong Shi and Mr. Xie Wen resigned as the Company’s executive
directors on 28 November 2019. Mr. Zhuo Jianming and Mr. Li Hong
resigned as the Company’s non-executive directors on 28 November
2019.

Mr Zheng Qingtao, Mr. Wang Dongwei, and Mr. Chen Fushan were
appointed as the Company’s executive directors on 28 November
2019. Ms. Wang Suhui and Mr. Zhang Jianyuan were appointed as the
Company’s non-executive directors on 28 November 2019. Except Mr
Zheng Qingtao, these directors have been entitled to remuneration since
1 January 2020.

Mr Zheng Qingtao is not entitled to any remuneration from the Company
as he is also a senior executive of Shuifa Group. In the opinion of the
Directors, it is not practical to apportion his services as a director of the
Company and as a senior executive of Shuifa Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive officer waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2019: nil).

= B L

EERIT

(c)

MEME (8)

B EER T —NFE+—A
ZHABHBHEARARITHRAR - B
RARFMTES -

FRREEERBXEER-_F—NF
tT—AZ+tNEBREARANTE
2 FRAXERFREENR T
—hFE+—AZ+N\BBEERARE
HITES -

BEEEE TREBEERRELE
ERZZE-NE+-—AZ+NBEZ
ERRARPITESE - THREBELZ T
EEERELENR-_FT—HAE+—A
ZHN\BEZEARDRFENITE
EoREEBRELEN  RSESEHE
BT -TF— A —HRKEBE

HREFEEETAKEEENSR
BEEAE - HEERIEEARRAN
BN BEERA - BREEARFE
SHKERESREREABNRE D
BYTER -

FALEEAEFHITHRARRELR
EREETAMEe 22 (ZF—N4F:

AN

) o
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AfismHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FRN - AN GERFEEFTEE-UES
directors (2019: two directors), details of whose remuneration are set —E-NFMNESE) FENE
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the FEHEHN XK ES B TITM (=
remaining two (2019: three) highest paid employees who are neither a —NE : =61) ERRRIZEBHIEITH
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: BHEEFHEEFANMSFBOT :
2020 2019
k- Jamt o3 —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYHE
in kind 2,528 4,077
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B 32 54
2,560 4,131
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid S EN Ty SEERNMIEES RIFTTH
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as BEESFHEENHENT
follows:

Number of employees

EEXE
2020 2019
b e 23 —FNF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #7t.Z 1,500,000 47T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 % 7T ZE 2,500,000 % 7T 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000 2,500,001 7T % 3,500,000 7T = -
2 3
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10. INCOME TAX 10. Fri5%i

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the respective countries or jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, Samoa and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda, Samoa and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Macau, Malaysia, Singapore and Nigeria profits tax
has been made as the Group had no assessable profits derived from or
earned in Macau, Malaysia, Singapore and Nigeria during the year.

Mainland China profits tax has been provided at the respective CIT
rates applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC for the year.

The major components of income tax charge/(credit) for the year are
as follows:

REBEREKNE ARIMEMNELNHE
B B Rk DA R A E 4 S R i
M REREEGMRAEH -

REARE BEIMRBREIESE
BER  AEEBABNBERE BEE
D NEBELESNEAMEH

MNEAREEIL EFORF - FRAS
o0 K JE B A R A A S REVE IR
BUg ) - A EpRPT ~ FHIRAE: - #
A3 K fE B FIZE RS B AT IR -

REAEMRSEHRIERPBEAEMNER
FERANEHCERBSR(EEMS
BBE - ZERTEZBREMEIA
HRERPIEHERE

AEEREHHEEROMT

2020 2019

—EBFE —T—NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTT

Current — Charge for the year: BHFER - FAAX

— Mainland China — AR KB 113,503 13,775

— Hong Kong - &% 2,474 41
Deferred EIERLTA (234,158) (2,458)
(118,181) 11,358

“ToREFER PEKEEEGEREEARAT
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FRrigHL (&)

A reconciliation of the tax charge/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss)
before tax at the applicable tax rates for the countries or jurisdictions
in which companies within the Group are domiciled to the tax charge/
(credit) at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

BRAEBEANZ A RIAERZRRADEER
HERT R ERRE RS, (B1R)
FEERIERY (Hk) BiR A EE TR
BERTERBIEMS (HR) B RN
T

2020 2019
—BC¥E —ZT-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
gz ARBTRT ARBTIT

Profit/(loss) before tax BREBATER, (B1R) 202,965 (976,452)
At the applicable tax rates RERATEE (a) 33,866 (159,649)
Effect of tax holiday RisESTE (a) - (328)
Losses attributable to associates /Ny S (1,577) (2,045)
Income not subject to tax BAGRRIA (b) (58,966) (16,376)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR IER (c) 42,260 47,882
Tax effect of additional tax E AT & IBES SN

deduction for HIBR RN TIET 2

— research costs incurred - BEEMERAR (1,131) (674)

— motor vehicles purchased -BEEARE 14 (187)
Recognition of deferred tax RICAIARFERH

previously not recognised RIERIBE E (142,724) -
Deductible temporary differences NS ARTERR Y Al 40

not recognised in current year RS ER 15,964 97,262
Tax losses utilised from previous years %t AiT4F E AR EHERH]

which were not recognised before THIEE M E A (18,763) (2,045)
Tax losses not recognised REROIEEE 12,876 47,518
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s BAREBEERBRTENTIE

effective tax rate M, (k) (118,181) 11,358
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

(a)

The applicable CIT rate for Mainland China subsidiaries is 25%
except for certain subsidiaries that are entitled to preferential tax
rates as discussed below:

For Mainland China subsidiaries which are qualified as High and
New Technology Enterprises, they are entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15%. For subsidiaries engaging in encouraged
industries in Western China, they are entitled to a preferential tax
rate of 15% for the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2030. For subsidiaries engaging in the approved projects of solar
power station construction, they are exempted from CIT for the
first three years and are entitled to a 50% tax reduction for the
subsequent three years = % = &, ¥ since their respective first
revenue-generating years. Thereafter, they are subject to CIT at a
rate of 25% or 15%.

Income not subject to tax mainly consists of unrealised foreign
exchange gains and the reversal of provision for compensation
for breach of contracts.

Expenses not deductible for tax mainly consist of equity-settled
share option expenses, finance costs incurred in offshore
companies and the fair value losses on derivative financial
instruments (if any).

= B L

10. FT8H (5&)

(a)

HEARERE AR ZEREEMR
BERBER25%  ZXTIER
B 7 B R AR :

EEE Mt EEE 2P EARE
B AFIRENZE R 15% 2 BB
Ko ARBIFE B FREETTE
WHELAR BT ——F—A8
—HEZZE=EF+=-_A=1+—
BAMEAZEX15% 2 BE
Ko R EERKIGEEBULEEIR
BEMMEA AR BIEERBE—
SHEQERAMBMHEE
B EEEFE-FRYTED
EMBH EE=-FRFERE
ERBHRI=ZRZRMED - Ik
% WEBIE25% K 15% 2 Fi R
BN PSR ©

BEARVBRAETEBIERER I
PE g A KB O RR E R AR -

AR BRIERA X T2 BERA
BEBREFAX BEFAREL
ZRERRARITESRTAZ
NFEEEE) -
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11.

12.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK$0.028 per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019 final dividend: nil).
The proposed dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings (2019: loss) per share amount
is based on the profit (2019: loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 2,521,081,780 (2019: 991,219,200) in issue during

the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 in respect of a dilution as the exercise prices of the Company’s
outstanding share options were higher than the average market prices
for the Company’s shares during the current and prior years.

Annual Report 2020

11.

12.

k2
0o

EEHBRNBE-_TS_ZF+=A
=St BLEFENRARESRER
PR0.028ET(—F—NFERARE -
B) BRRSARFEARRARRNERE
RS RS LHERTTAEE -

KA B BERERAAE
iEERERN (F5E)

BREARBF(ZZ—NF : BIE) iR
BAAR L EREREREE ABRGEREG
MZZ—NF : BR) RFABBITE
BAH INRE T $02,521,081,780 A% (=
T— N4 991,291,200 %) 5+ & -

HRBE_Z_ZTFR_F-NF+=
A=+—RILFE  AQRMAITER
BRAOTEESRAARRMHFESN
B MUERRAFERBEFEEY]
HERRHERRT, (EEB) SFEIED
EfTEE AR -
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - MERRIE
Office Solar
Land and Plant and Motor equipment photovoltaic Construction
buildings machinery vehicles and fumiture power stations in progress Total
N py
1ihREF HERES A& RiF& Rk HEIR &3t
31 December 2020 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ot g e NRETT ARETT NRETT AREFT ANRETT ARETL  ARETR
Cost %S
At 1 January 2020 \TECEF-A-A 1301370 386,962 15,494 46,668 3,159,781 190,296 5,100,571
Addtions hE 1713 11,601 791 11,957 - 143,605 169,667
Transfers &y 6,626 11,674 - 126 24,006 (42,432) =
Acquistion WERBAR (it 38)
of subsidiaries (note 38) - 104,759 267 1,454 20,013 - 126,493
Disposals i3 (90) (249) (689) U - - (1,035)
Tanslers boinvestment~ EBZRENE
propertes (note 14)  (HfzE14) (58,753) - - - - - (58,753)
Echange realignment X HE (1,19) - (73) (290) (951) (59) (2,569)
At31 December 2020 WZE-FE
t2A=t+-H 1,249,670 514,747 15,790 59,908 3,202,849 291,410 5,334,374
Accurmulated RHTERAE
depreciation
and impairment
At 1 January 2020 NZ2-FE-F-A 160,717 265,392 14,822 35,684 501,866 - 978,481
Depreciation provided ~~ RERHTERE (H3t7)
for the year (note 7) 23,545 37,611 864 3911 126,641 - 192,572
Acquisiion WEHBAR
of subsidiares (nofe 38)  (H3£38) - 3,988 132 801 5,495 - 10,416
Disposals i - (176) (655) (192) - - (1,023)
Impaiment provided ~~ RERHERE
for the year (note 7) (hiE7) 41,019 4,769 8 51 49,042 - 94,889
Transfers foinvestment~ EBERENE
poperes (noe 14) (A 14) (8716) - - - - - (8,716)
Eichange realignment B} % (281) - (66) (125) (128) - (600)
At31 December 2020  R=%-%
tZA=1-H 216,284 311,584 15,105 40,130 682,916 - 1,266,019
Netcayingamount ~ IRESE
At 1 January 2020 R-B-FF-A-H 1,140,653 121,570 672 10,984 2,657,915 190,296 4,122,090
At31 December 2020 R-F-%F
+-A=1-H 1,033,386 203,163 685 19,778 2,519,933 291,410 4,068,355
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. ¥ - FERaRE (E)

(Continued)
Office Solar
Land and Plantand Motor equipment photovoltaic Construction
buildings machinery vehicles and furniture power Stations in progress Total
HAERE At
i REF RERESE it REE *iRE FRIE g
31 December 2019 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000
“E-NET-A=1-A AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
Cost %S
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-A 1,554,081 371362 17,760 49225 3129893 193,175 5315456
Additions hE 693 8,854 10 18 5729 4699 62303
Transfers &y 3638 15,5% = = 24,088 #3322) -
Disposals i3 (3516) (8850) 2309 (2.816) (108) = (17.599)
Transfers toinvestment~ EBERENE
properties (254,065) - - - - (5314) (259,379)
Other transfer-out EfpEH, = = = = = (1,255) (1,255)
Exchange realignment B % 539 = 3 %1 29 13 1,045
At31 December 2019 WZE-E
+ZA=1-H 1301370 386,962 15,494 46,668 3159781 190,29 5100571
Accumulated RithERAE
depreciation
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 R=F-7E-A-H 17582 237 884 15975 3239 318203 - 840,277
Depreciaion povided ~ AEFHERRE (H37)
for the year (note 7) 29483 32719 964 4832 123,668 - 191,69%
Disposals i (38) (5,241) 2,138) (1,665) #3) = (9,125)
Tansters o investment - EBERENE
properties (44,649) - = = = - (44,649)
Eichange realignment X% % = A 127 38 = 2%
At31December 019 W-E-NF
+-A=1-H 160,717 265,392 14822 35,684 501,366 - 978481
Netcamyingamount ~ FRES{E
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H 1378256 133478 1,785 16835 2,751,650 193175 4475179
At31 December 2019 WZE-NE
t2A=1+-H 1,140,653 121570 672 10984 2657915 190,29 4122090
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31 December 2020 —E—TF+=-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s buildings, machinery and
motor vehicles with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
RMB631,617,000 (31 December 2019: RMB972,450,000) were pledged
to secure bank and other loans granted to the Group (note 30(a)).

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s solar photovoltaic power
stations with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,908,665,000
(31 December 2019: RMB1,280,636,000) were pledged to secure bank
and other loans granted to the Group (note 30(b)).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s solar photovoltaic power plant
under construction with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB272,874,000 (31 December 2019: nil) has been used as collateral
for the Group’s bank and other loans (note 30(c)).

As at 31 December 2020, the application for the property ownership
certificates of certain buildings with a net carrying amount of
RMB215,415,000 (31 December 2019: RMB253,152,000) was in
progress. Those buildings can only be sold, transferred or mortgaged
when their relevant ownership certificates have been obtained. In the
opinion of the Directors, there are no major obstacles for the Group to
obtain these building ownership certificates.

As at 31 December 2019, the right on the annual return generated
from a solar photovoltaic power station with a net carrying amount of
RMB26,089,000 was pledged to secure an other loan obtained by the
Group from an independent third party for twenty years.

As at 31 December 2019, the right on the annual return generated
from a solar photovoltaic power station with a net carrying amount of
RMB572,497,000 was pledged to secure other loans granted to the
Group.

-F=

(e)

()

TEER

13. ¥ - BERaRE (E)

RZZZZEF+=A=+—H0" &A@
FEBELN A AR 631,617,0007T
(ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H0: AR¥
972,450,000 7T) 2 REEE FEF -
e R TBEEEMEAR TASREN
$R1T R E M E T2 PER (FiTFE 30(a)) ©

R-BE-_EF+-_A=+—0B B\
FE 4 A R #1,908,665,000L( =
T-NE+-_A=+—8: AR%
1,280,636,0007T) 2 A& EE T K5
BENRBIBEIMERE T AEEN
$R1T R ELME 2 PER (B 30(b)) °

NZEZZTF+-_A=1+—8 1%
EEREFELH R/ ARM272,874,000

T(ZF— n$+ A=+—8A:&)
ZERAGREARERE BIERE
B/ ER1T R E b B R B (B 5
30(c)) °

R-Z-ZTF+=-A=+—8" K\
FELH A AR2154150007T( =
T-hAE+-_A=+—8: AR%K
2%1&0%%&2“?@?2%%@

HEEETAERE o REETF
E%W%ﬁﬁ%m%%ﬁ%%ﬁTﬁ
& BRARB -EFERE F5E
BEZEEFREREENEERE
B o

R-F-AF+-_A=+—H K@
AR AR 26,089,000 7T 2 A58
%ﬁ*ﬁz¢@ﬁ%5ﬁﬁ¢ﬁ$$

BB &2BYF=7MEFHA_+
FR—IREAME 32?%
R-ZB-NAF+-_A=+—H0 K@

A ARM572,497,000 7T 2 A5
BE IR B UL 2 F Bl R AE D EIFIE AR
%@ﬁ&ﬁ@%ﬁz%%o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FEERAR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(8

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in light of loss incurred by
Hunan Singyes and Singyes Xinye and the adverse change of market
conditions, management had performed impairment testing on their idle
non-financial assets. For the purpose of impairment testing, the Hunan
Industrial Park cash-generating unit (“Hunan Industrial Park CGU",
comprising lands and buildings and right-of-use assets) and the Singyes
Xinye Park cash-generating unit (“Singyes Xinye Park CGU”) were treated
as separate CGUs and other assets were treated as individual assets.

The recoverable amounts were determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal calculations (Level 3 of fair value hierarchy). The valuation
was performed by Zhuhai Dewei Real Estate and Land Appraisal
Company Limited (“Zhuhai Dewei”), an independent professionally
qualified valuer. Selection criteria of the external valuer include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained.

Fair value hierarchy disclosure

The fair value of Hunan Industrial Park CGU, Singyes Xinye Park CGU
and the Group’s investment properties were measured using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 of fair value hierarchy). A reconciliation of
impairment provisions while fair value categorised within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy is as follows:

13. ¥ - FERaRE (E)

Bt - ()

(8)

HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HIF
B ERNEREREBEENEELEY
BRURTREBETHEE) E12/E
EHHEHAEESRMEEETRENR
A BAEARTS - HEIERR
SELEN (AR IEERSELS
7] BELWREFUARFERES
E)RBEENERSELEMN (8%
BENRRSEEENIEREBRS
EEBMETAR  mEamEERE
AERIEEEITRAIR -

AT El & BIRIE A FER SR
MEtEZEE (A FEERFE=ZE)
HERBLEXSERMGEMKEE
B E AR A B ([TRE1ER])
HTT o MBI ER A BUR LRI B 1ET
S BE B REB AR
FEERE -

NV EERRE

METERRCELSMN  BEES
EReELEMRAEERENEZ
RFEFRAEATATERGAZRE (R
FEHERE=FE)E EQXFERA
FEHERTROBRE=E  BER
REEIRIT -

Recoverable Carrying Impairment
amounts amounts provision
g E &3 ARE{E BB
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T ARETIT

Hunan Industrial Park CGU A LHEREREEEEN
— Land and buildings - T RAEF 300,577 332,890 32,313

— Right-of-use assets - FREEE

(note 15(a)) (PfF5E 15(a)) 14,713 16,295 1,582

Singyes Xinye Park CGU SXEHRBSEEEN
— Land and buildings - T RIEF 2,126 10,832 8,706
Investment properties (note 14) EME (M5t 14) 23,809 28,010 4,201
341,225 388,027 46,802
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(h)

(0

Fair value hierarchy disclosure (Continued)

Set out below is an illustration of the valuation techniques used and the

key inputs to the valuation of the Group’s non-financial properties:

13. ¥ - BERaRE (E)

BRE - ()

(h  RFERRKEE)

NIRRT EE A PR AR M B E T AR
SEFSREELENHERE AR

7

Significant Weighted

Valuation technique unobservable inputs average inputs
[ E AT BRI A SR DR 15 88 A BUR
Potential gross Plant:

rental income RMB19.5~22

(per square/month) Office: RMB38

EBIEAESBA(BTH,A) R AR¥195F 22T

Discounted cash flow
projections
BASRIR S RETEA

According to the latest guidance of generated-electricity price issued (i)
by the National Development and Reform Commission, in the opinion
of the Directors, the recoverable amount of two idle solar photovoltaic
power stations pending grid connection were estimated to be less
than their carrying amounts, and the carrying amounts of the relevant
solar photovoltaic power stations were reduced to the extent of their
recoverable amounts with an impairment loss of RMB49,042,000 (2019:

nil).

Vacancy rate
=EX

Annual growth rate
of net income
FRAFRERE

Rate of return

EEES

= B L

WMRE: AR¥38T

5%

3%

5.5%

RERRERMNEEZE MR
MBEEKIES BEERA
BHAB ) B B KBS 88 3¢ 1K B 3k /9 AT Uk
Bl e fEEF/ RERTE - miEH
ABEARBUNEEREAREHE
A EeEKE  REERAARE
49,042,000 C(=F—h4F : &) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FEERAR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

The recoverable amounts are determined based on value in use
calculations. Those calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management in the remaining useful
life and assuming pre-tax discount rates ranging between 9.14% and
9.16% per annum. The period used to extrapolate the cash flows of two
idle solar photovoltaic power stations was nineteen-year and twenty-year,
respectively, which represent the remaining useful lives of the relevant
solar photovoltaic power stations.

At 31 December 2020, due to the adverse change of market conditions,
in the opinion of the Directors, the carrying amounts of idle machinery
manufacturing solar products were reduced to the extent of their
recoverable amounts with an impairment loss of RMB4,828,000 (2019:
nil) based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level 1).

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. ¥ - FERaRE (E)

BRE - ()

(h)

RFEEREE ()

AW El S BEIREE B EEFEAE
E - BEFEDNRAREEREMA
MM ETRE  FBRAERFERAR
BRFEEMAYIR TN F9.14% =
9.16% M{EH MR IR E TR © T
AR E KGR RBEIMR SR E
FARMBRI AT NER=TF
2 RIS ARRE ARG BE S IR B IE A FIBR AT
ERFR

RZZBZZF+_A=+—8H @R
TRERAFES  EE2RA - BE
e 288U 35 AR5 A8 2 ) R EE AR R 4R
REERNERTHRORE(E—E
®)ABEEITKESEKTE - FHE
EE A AR 48280007 (=ZF—A
F:m)o

14. &M%

2020 2019
—BCEE —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTIT
Carrying amount at 1 January K—A—B8EEE 293,247 74,344
Additions NE - 1,538
Transfers from owner-occupied B EE A (WE13)
properties (note 13) 50,037 214,730
Transfers from right-of-use HYRFRAREE
assets (note 15(a)) (KzE 15(a)) 3,511 7,195
Depreciation provided for the year RNEFEIERE (HE7)
(note 7) (9,453) (4,560)
Impairment (notes 7, 13(h)) B (FFsE7 ~ 13(h)) (4,201) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEmE 333,141 293,247

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA SRR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2020, the fair values of the investment properties
were estimated to be approximately RMB420,845,000 (31 December
2019: RMB328,291,000). The valuation was performed by Zhuhai
Dewei. The valuation was estimated using discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable estimates of future rental income or market
rents for similar properties in the same location and condition, where
appropriate. The fair value measurement hierarchy of the investment
properties requires certain significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

As at 31 December 2020, the investment properties were leased to
the third parties, except for certain investment properties with an
aggregate net carrying amount of RMB23,020,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB23,921,000) which were leased to an associate under operating
leases.

As at 31 December 2020, the application for the property ownership
certificates of certain of the Group’s investment properties with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB63,161,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB64,481,000) was in progress. These investment properties can be
sold, transferred or mortgaged when their relevant ownership certificates
have been obtained. In the opinion of the Directors, there are no major
obstacles for the Group to obtain these investment properties’ ownership
certificates.

As at 31 December 2020 , certain of the Group’s investment properties
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB84,918,000 (31
December 2019: RMB7,537,000) were pledged to secure the bank loan
granted to the Group (note 30(d)).

14. &M (&)

it -

(a)

(b)

= B L

R-ZTBE-_ZTHE+-_A=+—0 %
EMENATERETRAOARE
420,845,000t ( ZFE—NLF+=A
=+—H: AR¥328,291,0007T) °
HEHRBIEXSERMHEMKEE
BREAT o SNEE (B R A B 2R B 3E
MBI BE BIERREAMN
RIFFXEZPE - HEDRBERKAS
W A B B] S5 4 51 Sk AE (R 1tb B K2tk 5 B9
FiEMENTISRES (WER) - KA
BUMRE S REEAG - REME
AT EFEBRFTES TEARANA
BRBAAZR(E=E) -

RZB-TBE+-_A=+—0 " KE
EFEA £ A AR ¥23,020,0007T
(ZZE—NEFE+-A=1+—8: AR¥
23,921,0007T ) K& T & E W ¥ RIR
KERELHET—RBE QRN &
BYETHBTE=F -

R-ZTBE-_ZTHE+—-_A=+—0" K
HFEEN A ARKEE3,161,0007T (=
E-AE+-_A=+—8: AR%
64,481,0007T) 2 & T AREEEZEY
EOMEERFETERFAREE
oo ZEREYERIS LB E
HEERTHE ERNRB-EF
RE - AEBEDNSZEREMENE
EEEWEEAER

R-_ZTE_ZTF+_A=+—8" k
HFEN A AREES4,918,0007T (=
T-—NAEFE+-A=+—A8: AR%
7,537,0007T) 2 AEBEE FIREWE
BEEREARTAKENRTERZ
PR (BI7E30(d)) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FEERAR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for plant and office premises used in its

operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire certain

of the Group’s leasehold land from the owners with lease periods of

25 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the

terms of these leases. Leases of plant and office premises have lease

terms between 2 and 5 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from

assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

15. iS5

FEEERFRBEAN

AEBERREEBLENRE KA
EMENHESHK - BIEAEHL —RE
NRARERIWES TAKRENEEL
- HER25E50F - MREZZ L
WHEEHER - BT EE SN ERK
B MEERAEMENEIREEN T
2E5F - —RMF - ARETAAA
SEUIIERZEOEREEE -

(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) @EFEELE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the FRAEBEFEREEENREE
movements during the year are as follows: REZEMT
Plant
and office
premises Leasehold Total
BEX land
WAEME HELH fast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBTR ARETR
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_TF—HF—H 4,978 204,110 209,088
Additions NE 1,727 23,892 25,619
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeRE BT 8 A &) (PR 7E38(2))

(note 38(2)) 1,294 105 1,399
Terminations 1k (339) - (339)
Lease modification MEER (313) - (313)
Transfers to investment ER AW (T 14)

properties (note 14) - (3,511) (3,511)
Depreciation charged (note 7)  5HEHE (M:E7) (2,134) (5,484) (7,618)
Exchange realignment HE AR (9) - (9)
Impairment (notes 7, 13(h))  JR{E (FIRE7 ~ 13(h)) (1,582) - (1,582)
As at 31 December 2020 RNZZE-_ZETF+-_F=+—H 3,622 219,112 222,734

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEEEBRHEAN (B)
(a)  Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) (EFEELEE)
Plant
and office
premises Leasehold Total
[ land
PAEYE e+ 4eEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARMET T ARKET T

As at 1 January 2019 RnZZE—NF—A—H 6,706 215,429 222,135
Additions NE 1,296 3,605 4,901
Terminations Ak (679) - (679)
Transfers to investment EREREYE

properties (note 14) - (7,195) (7,195)
Depreciation charged (note 7)  5HEHTE (M:E7) (2,360) (7,729) (10,089)
Exchange realignment b AR 15 = 15
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF+=A=+—H 4,978 204,110 209,088

—E-TEsR  FEA EERZeFEEEsRAT 201



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. (&)

202

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s leasehold land
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB50,122,000
(31 December 2019: RMB78,087,000) were pledged to secure
bank and other loans granted to the Group (note 30(e)).

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s leasehold land
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB125,023,000
(31 December 2019: RMB104,392,000) were sub-leased from
certain grantees of the land use rights and therefore the relevant
land use rights were not registered under the name of the Group
and they cannot be sold, transferred or mortgaged by the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s leasehold land
with a net carrying amount of RMB22,429,000 (31 December
2019: RMB22,345,000) was pledged to guarantee the project
deposit of RMB41,000,000 paid by an independent third party
to the Hunan Jiuhua Government on behalf of Hunan Singyes
(note 28).

Annual Report 2020

AREERRBEAN ()
@) EF#EEEH#)

MN-ZE-_ZTFE+-_A=+—H  A%£H
BHREREFE L AR 50,122,000 7T
(ZZE—NAFE+=—A=+—H: AR¥
78,087,0007T) K& THE L HEAR
TAREBARTREME R 2 R (K
F£30(e) °

RZZEZZF+ZA=+—H K&
A T F B 4 A R 125,023,000 70
(ZE-NF+=ZA=+—8: ARE
104,392,0007T ) # & THE LR
) T s PR AR A D 1 {6 B
T Rt SR AR IEAARSE
BEEEER  ASETAETHE - 8
RIIRIE o

R-ZBE-_ZF+_A=+—H  EEZF
BEAEARM22429000T(=E—h4F
+ZA=+—8: AR#¥22345,000
T)MAEELETHELMEKR - A
EERE—RBBYE =R AEEE
A TFHENEBNRIER R AR
41,000,000 7T (Fi5E 28) °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEEEBRHEAN (B)
(b)  Lease labilities (b) THEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FREESENEEERAZS
during the year are as follows: RN
2020 2019
—EFE ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R —A—HMEREE 8,457 10,722
New leases g HE 25,106 1,296
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeRE BT 8 A &) (PR 3E38(2))
(note 38(2)) 1,489 =
Accretion of interest recognised & AIMERRHYF B8 A0 (HIFE6)
during the year (note 6) 726 510
Payments (NE=S (8,886) (3,382)
Termination =k (282) (702)
Lease modification HEBR (313) -
Derecognition as a result of COVID-19 /8@ &R %
Covid-19-related rent M LR
concessions (52) -
Exchange realignment bE 5 AR (45) 13
Carrying amount at R+—A=+—BZKHEE
31 December 26,200 8,457
Analysed into: Pariv=1
Current portion MENEL D 3,506 955
Non-current portion IERBIE D 22,694 7,502
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 45 to HEABNI BB TR
the financial statements. SRR EE 45 NI EE -

“ToREFER PEKEEEGEREEARAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. A5 (%8)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEEEBRBEAN (B)
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are (c) REZANEZINEESEENS
as follows: EEE Rl N
2020 2019
—EFE —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSETT AREETIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEZHE (M3E6)
(note 6) 726 510
Depreciation charge of FREEEZITERX
right-of-use assets 7,618 10,089

Expense relating to short-term B HATH &5 BERIFI 2
leases (included in selingand ~ (GFAE &S
distribution expenses and SRS AT S (BsE7)
administrative expenses)

(note 7) 3,832 6,316
Total amount recognised in RERAERNA SR
profit or loss 12,176 16,915
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

15. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 42(c) to the
financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties consisting of certain of its
buildings under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year
was RMB13,891,000 (2019: RMB4,965,000) (note 5).

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivables
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants are as follows:

15. 5 (&)

FEREERFRBEAN ()

(d) HMEBRSRHABAMBEIREM
FT42(c) NI E -

FREEAHBEA

AEBBBCERERHERLREY
X(PEETET) - HAEKI—RBE
KEPENREFS - WAHTEREERT
REAERS - AEERNFNERK
e WA B AR 13,891,0007C (=F
— N+ AR¥E4,965,0007T) (Ff7E5) °

R-Z_FEF+-A=1+—H AKH
RIFEBPET LN AR L 2 HER
AR A EORREIRAE KB T

2020 2019

—g-%% —TnF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRT ARETTT

Within one year —FR 17,206 8,309
After one year but within two years —EMF 10,764 7,957
After two years but within three years M2 =4 4,032 3,943
After three years =F1& 1,050 =
33,052 20,209
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to each
relevant cash-generating unit for impairment testing:

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering an projection period
approved by management. The pre-tax discount rates applied to the
cash flow projections ranged from 10.26% to 19.8% (31 December
2019: 19.8%). Among them, the growth rates used to extrapolate the
cash flows of Shenzhen Kangsheng CGU was 3% based on a five-year
period (31 December 2019: 3%), and the period used to extrapolate
the cash flows of Foshan Xinye and Foshan Keliyuan CGUs was based
on twenty-year and twenty one-year, respectively, which represent the
remaining useful lives of their non-current assets.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

16. GOODWILL 16. &

2020 2019
k- Jamt o3 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

Cost and net carrying amount: PR I AR TEDFHE
Shenzhen Kangsheng FYI RS 6,448 6,448
Foshan Xinye (note 38) IR EE (M97E38) 1,826 =
Foshan Keliyuan (note 38) IR = (M EE38) 2,160 =
Zibo Qilu (note 38) TSR (s 38) 108 =
10,542 6,448

Impairment testing of goodwill B R ER

BBFEBAHESHEESEEZAH
ReEEBMLEREIR -

FEHRSEE B AR E S EREE
FREAEE GREEEEIER TS
MKTEEFERRSRETER)ETE - @
ARBREREFANHABRENT
1026% %2 198% (=T —h&E+ = A
=+—H :198%) - EF - ERAFH
HERY RN CELBEVNRSTE
FrAMERERA3% (—ZE—NE+ A
=+—H :3%) - mHEETE LIRS R
W BRBSELEMNRSTREMNAN
FRDDRNERFFR_+—FH -
BEIERBEENFIRERFR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR MY 5t

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculations:

Budgeted revenue — The budgeted revenue is based on the historical
data and management’s expectation on the future market.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Pre-tax discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to each cash-generating unit.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development of
the cash-generating unit and discount rate are consistent with external
information sources.

The Directors had estimated the reasonably possible changes in
those factors and acknowledged that, even if the most unfavourable
possible values were assigned to those factors, the recoverable amount
then calculated, after incorporating any consequential effects of such
assignments on the other variables used to measure the recoverable
amount of each cash-generating unit, would still exceed its carrying

amount.

=

16.

BB REAR ()

EREEFEMERNERER

FEEWA - REWAERNELBENE
BRI MISHTA

FEEEFIE - LB —FFEN
FHEMNE SRR - RETEEEAE
HBE - BEERRBRERRERRER
BT TR A0 -

HAIRTE — FRfEFmRR R AR BAT
BET R SIS S ST
[E\fg o

DEETIREE S B TISERMAIRE
M BB R AR RO (B = HNERE B ARR —
B o

EREMAREARNAEA S
WHERR - BME i & A AT BEBUE 2
TZERR  EARBESR ﬁé%i
MWTW@ﬁﬁmEf“EEE%AW
DEHNEMECELENTER @ SE
WTW@ DB ERE(E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FEERAR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. HihEREE

Supplier
2020 relationship Software Total
—ECFEF HrERERA R R wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AR¥ETT ARSBTR
Cost 5%
At 1 January n—H—H = 7,158 7,158
Acquisition of U rgm B~ a) (FizE38)
subsidiaries (note 38) 94,833 - 94,833
Exchange realignment PE H FA% - (7) (7)
At 31 December Bn+—-—A=+—H 94,833 7,151 101,984
Accumulated amortisation g
At 1 January n—A—H = 5,553 5,553
Amortisation provided F NSRS (MR 7)
during the year (note 7) 4,535 737 5,272
Exchange realignment PE H A - (2) (2)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 4,535 6,288 10,823
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 90,298 863 91,161
At 1 January R—H—H = 1,605 1,605
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. R R EE (&)
2019 Software Total
—T—NE EgLs HET
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Cost jo%.3
At 1 January wn—A—H 6,626 6,626
Additions NE 527 527
Exchange realighment bE A% 5 5
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 7,158 7,158
Accumulated amortisation Bt
At 1 January ®n—A—H 4,568 4568
Amortisation provided FREHRE (M)
during the year (note 7) 983 983
Exchange realignment B 5, 2 2
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 5,553 5,553
Net carrying amount REF{E
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 1,605 1,605
At 1 January n—A—H 2,058 2,058
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

18. PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE 18. fEfRRIE
2020 2019
k- Jamt o3 —E-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETT ARETTT
Advance payments in respect of: LATNIE B B TR RTROE
Purchase of machinery FEE S 1,843 16,974
Purchase of office properties BENAEYRE (a) 17,555 =
Others EAth 2,327 710
21,725 17,684
(@)  The balance generated from the purchase of office properties was (@) WBERAEVMEMSBE&SRA/MLEMN
an advance made to Shandong Herun Properties Limited (“Herun HEXARAR([MEEE]  KEE
Properties”), a fellow subsidiary under control of Shuifa Group (note BEEHZRRZMBRR) EHABIK
40(c)). (PffF5E40(c)) °
19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REtEATHRE
2020 2019
—EFTE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT AREEFTT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEEMIRE - A 1,200 36,200
Share of profits/(losses) of associates ~ HEEE L A T F] (E18) 773 (18,375)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBMPEENGTIREZ
Group’s investments in the BREBE
associates 1,973 17,825
The Group’s balances of trade receivables, contract assets, other AEEHEPENRNERESHRE - A
payables and accruals and contract liabilities with the associates are NEE - HbENZIBEREFERANUR
disclosed in note 40(e) to the financial statements. AHBEBEEHN B RERMT406) A
B o
In the opinion of the Directors, there were no material associates of the BERE FAXEBEWESABEN
Group during the year. Gk
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

19.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held through

subsidiaries of the Company.

The movements of unlisted investments are as follows:

19. NEFEATIRE (8)

ZA N VN
E’Aﬁjﬁﬁ e

NGI:O) g 25 RN

FEETIREZFBFIIWT -

2020 2019

—EFE —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBEFTT

At beginning of year REA] 36,200 40,820
Additions NE - 35,000
Disposals HE (35,000) (39,620)
At end of year RER 1,200 36,200

The movements of share of profits/(losses) of associates are as follows:

DEBEREERN(B1R) 2 2B

R
2020 2019
—E-EF —NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
At beginning of year REF] (18,375) (36,391)
Share of losses for the year REEDGETE (12,620) (16,363)
Disposals & 31,768 34,379
At end of year RER 773 (18,375)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed

of its equity interests in two associates for a total consideration of
RMB35,000,000 to an independent third party, which resulted in
gains of RMB31,768,000 (2019: RMB36,274,000) (note 5). The
considerations have been settled during the year.

=%z

BE_Z-_THF+_A=+—HL*F
€ A& E LA K #35,000,0007T
B 48 (1B S LA 7 ) B B 8 ) O B A

HEFTBYE=77"

KmESARE

31768000 ( ZZE—AF: AR

36,274,000 7T ) H Ux 25

ERAFELEE -

TEFR

BB B RE

(FHRED) « HK1B

REEARAR]

211



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et
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20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 20. EEEBRAFEETERLRS

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Bt ARt 2 EW R
INCOME TRE
2020 2019
k- k-3 3 ZT-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBFT
Equity investments designated BEAE AT EFE A LE8)H
at fair value through other A2 EROBRRNIEE
comprehensive income
Unlisted equity investments, JELEMRAKE @ IBAFE -
at fair value
Weihai China Glass Solar Co., Ltd. BRI A EER AT 5,392 5911
Jiuhua New Energy Management NEFREREEFR AT
Co., Ltd. 380 380
Xi'an Singyes Metro Media PR R EHEAR AR
Co., Ltd. 5,000 5,000
Others EHAth 5 5
Exchange realignment PE X AR (247) 118
10,530 11,414
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value AR ASEERBZSIREBRBIEE -
through other comprehensive income as the Group considered these i _E 3t AR AN 12 1S AT B M PR T R AR
investments to be strategic in nature. AFEFEREEZE T AL MEEKE
=
The fair value measurement of the equity investments at fair value BEAFEFEAEZEHTALMBEEK
through other comprehensive income is categorised within Level 3 of HEROBRARENAFEFEZESEER
the fair value hierarchy. TEHERE=ZEHRA -
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  21. R AF{E=HHEEEA

PROFIT OR LOSS EENEMEE

2020 2019

—EFE —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSBTRT ARETTT

Structured deposits EEMTER = 5,000
The structured deposits as at 31 December 2019 were issued by RZE—-NF+ZA=+—HHEEE
banks in Mainland China. They were mandatorily classified as financial FREFEARRERITET - ZFEFHE
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash EHlED B AEAFEE B EE8)E
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest. The structured ABZNERMEE  DEREGHNRS
deposits are with expected rates of return (not guaranteed) at rate MEWIEMARI MRS RFIE - &
linked to 3-month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”). During TROERRER (MREB) B=E A
this year, the structured deposits were redeemed by the Group. KERITRIZER L ([RBERTTRIZERE )
B o NAFE - ASEEBEEAENT

Bk e
22. INVENTORIES 22. 586

2020 2019

k- Jamt o3 —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRT AREFIT

Raw materials B 38,313 48,300

Finished goods ERKm 20,971 127,735

59,284 176,035

Inventory provision FEEE (3,519) (4,236)

55,765 171,799
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS

23. BHIEE

31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
—TOTHF —TNF —TNF
+=—A=+—RH +=A=+—H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREETIT ARET T AREETTT
Contract assets arising from: AUTEBEE Y
AREE
Construction services” FRERRIE W 3,150,602 2,078,223 1,801,000
Retention money receivables®? ERERE @ 94,539 121,023 454,001
3,245,141 2,199,246 2,255,001
Impairment A (341,184) (191,373) (135,484)
2,903,957 2,007,873 2,119,517
(1) Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned (1) BRHBEVFRBERFRARE
from construction services as the receipt of consideration is R ERRE R WEA R R
conditional on successful completion of construction. Upon TR BEE - ERPTTKEEM
completion of construction and acceptance by the customer, the BE  BREEHNEENSRE
amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade ENOBERKE SRR -
receivables.
(2) As at 31 December 2020, the retention money receivables 2 RZE_ZF+_A=+—

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

from the contract customers amounting to RMB94,539,000
(31 December 2019: RMB121,023,000, 1 January 2019:
RMB454,001,000) were still in the warranty period. Retention
money receivables are normally collected within two to five years
after the completion of the relevant construction work.
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

23. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 23. BHIEE (B)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no contract assets generated
from the Group’s associates (31 December 2019: RMB142,474,000)
(note 40(e)).

The Group’s contract assets included net carrying amounts generated
from the Group’s related parties of RMB2,156,000 (31 December
2019: nil) (note 40(e)).

Management expected that the majority of the above disclosed contract
assets as at 31 December 2020 will be recovered or settled in two to
five years.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, RMB149,811,000 (2019:
RMB55,889,000) (note 7) was recognised as an allowance for ECLs
on contract assets. The Group’s trading terms and credit policy with
customers are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract assets
are as follows:

R-ZZE-TF+=RA=1+—H £&E

VERERNEEHEQNRNENEE
—NE+-B=+—H: ARK

142,474,000) 70) (B z£40(e)) °

REBNEHNEERBRNEEREHE
A4 EBRTEDFE A R #2,156,0007T( =
T-AF+-A=+—8: &)Wz
40(e)) °

EREE - LABRBEOR T _FF
TZA=+—BHARMOANEERR
“EhFANREREE -

HE-Z-_ZTF+=-A=1+—HIHF
E AR®149,811,0007t( =& — A
¢ © AR#55,889,0007T) (HiFE7) i

REBHEEEREEBIENEE - K
SEHERFHR I BEAREEBRKE
R IEREMFES -

BREEREBRRENEZHNT

2020 2019

—BCTHE —h&

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

At beginning of year REA] 191,373 135,484

Impairment losses, net (note 7) EEEFEE (ME7) 149,811 55,889

At end of year RER 341,184 191,373
TECFEFR  PEKBREEEREEERAA
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

23. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 23. EHBE (B)

216

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates for the
measurement of the ECLs of the contract assets are based on those of
the trade receivables as the contract assets and the trade receivables
are from the same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on days past due of trade receivables for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer
type). The calculation reflects the probability weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix:

FE®RE A HERBEREETRED
i U ERREEER - St8610E
ENTAHREEEENBEERIREEK
BEAE  BRANEERENRE
SHRBXREBR—BTFER - ANEEN
BREXTDREAFRUEBEEANEER
BEFHE(BMREPRIE D) WEKE
SHRBENBAREGTE - LAt ERRT
B NEAER EERREERANRRSE
BHRIESMBENAESN - BN
AR SRAEAR S TRB B0 & B2 AN AT ST 54

B o

/N

TXHIERERRBEREAEES
HMEENERERRNER :

31 December 31 December

+=A=+-B +=A=t+-§

2020 2019

—EFF —T—NEF

ECL rate TEE iz EEE R 10.5% 8.70%
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFIT

Gross carrying amount BERTEE 3,245,141 2,199,246
ECLs BRI EEsE (341,184) (191,373)
2,903,957 2,007,873
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24. FEW B SIE R FEW SR
2020 2019
—E=EE “Z-h#F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT
Trade receivables FEWE 5308 4,154,464 3,706,413
Bills receivable R Z= % 49,244 32,349
Impairment A (633,304) (602,298)
3,570,404 3,136,464

The Group’s trade receivables included net carrying amounts due
from the Group’s associates of RMB378,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB36,391,000), which were repayable on credit terms similar to
those offered to the major customers of the Group (note 40(e)).

The Group has pledged trade receivables of approximately
RMB2,164,205,000 (31 December 2019: RMB2,169,056,000) to
secure bank and other loans granted to the Group (note 30(f)).

The Group’s trading terms and credit policy with customers are
disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

REBNERE ZFARIERRAEE
Bk &5 R B R IE AR EDFHE A R #5 378,000
T(ZBE—AE+ZA=+—8: AR
#36,391,0007L) * WA BEUAEHE
EERFEE G2 B RE (M
40(e)) °

AEBCEREREZE S RBEHOARE
2,164,2050007t(ZE— AFE+ = A
=+—H: AR#2,169,056,0007T) {E
AETAEERRITRAMERZ R
(MFEE30(F)) °

AEBEEPHR S IFRAREEBERE
BRI HmRMES -

ZECTFEFHR PEKEEXEREEARAR]
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24, FEYGE S RIE R R EE

&)
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end RERR - RREE A RIRERE
of the reporting period, based on the billing date and net of loss BEBTENEKE 5508 R ERERER
allowance, is as follows: BROITLT
2020 2019
—E-FTE ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREFIT
Within 3 months =@AR 1,167,198 955,555
3 to 6 months =z NEA 264,723 450,123
6 to 12 months ~Ne+=@Aa 430,680 243,007
1to 2 years —EMF 922,715 817,528
2 to 3 years ME=4F 517,135 622,769
Over 3 years =FE 267,953 47 482
3,570,404 3,136,464

U E S FIRREBERENZE SN

receivables are as follows: T~

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

2020 2019

k- St o3 —ZT-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

At beginning of year REF] 602,298 227,693
Impairment losses, net (note 7) R EEEFEEE (HE7) 31,006 374,605
At end of year RER 633,304 602,298

REHE B RRAREERETRES
T LErETEEEEEE - B#EXDE
REBEUBEEX (AR FERE
D)V ZERF AR B A HE
FeoZERMIAERMELR &
MSERNREBBRISNERATE
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic TH & AR R R RS EAR M TERI &
conditions. BRASEER -

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

24. FEWGEE SR IE R FEUEHE

(#&)

TR AEEERREBEEEAEORE
WEZFENEERRER

R—TB-THF+-A=+—H

Past due
ki
Less than Less than Over
Current 6 months 12 months 12 months Total
HE  ORisER YR+-ER &&8+-fEA &zt
ECL rate BHEEEEX 2.30% 5.01% 17.77% 30.46% 15.24%
Gross carrying amount BREE
(RMB’000) (AR#%TFTT) 1,426,100 442,280 930,914 1,355,170 4,154,464
ECLs (RMB'000) BHEERB(ARETT) 32,853 22,170 165,445 412,836 633,304
As at 31 December 2019 R=F—h#E+=-A=+—H
Past due
Less than Less than Over
Current 6 months 12 months 12 months Total
B ARANER PRTZEA BR+T=EA @t
ECL rate EHEEEHEX 5.30% 15.25% 12.25% 27.62% 16.25%
Gross carrying amount BREE
(RMB'000) (AR#TT) 1,379,871 309,283 489,406 1,527,853 3,706,413
ECLs (RMB'000) EEHEERR(ARETT) 73,169 47,170 59,963 421,996 602,298

“ToREFER PEKEEEGEREEARAT
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

25. FAFTRIE « HbBKRIER
Hib&EE

2020 2019
—EFTE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSBTRT ARETTT
Prepayments to subcontractors TS B R AL FE R IR
and suppliers 173,583 113,504
Deposits i) 99,797 47,491
Tariff adjustment receivables* FEUN B E R * 497,882 335,830
Amounts due from related parties FEUS FE RS 5 308 (MIRE40(e))
(note 40(e)) 29,270 -
Compensation for performance JE 4 AR E (FIRED)
commitment (note 5) 8,983 -
Other receivables Hfth e GRIE 152,031 346,341
961,546 843,166
Impairment BB (109,478) (27,340)
852,068 815,826
@ The Group’s tariff adjustment receivables from the sale of electricity are * AEERBEHHENEWEEREL

receivables from the State Grid. Tariff adjustment receivables represented
the government subsidies on renewable energy for ground projects to be
received from the State Grid based on the prevailing government policies.

The Group has pledged tariff adjustment receivables of approximately
RMB490,982,000 (31 December 2019: RMB322,290,000) to secure
bank and other loans granted to the Group (note 30(h)).

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of financial assets
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets are as follows:

. FRAHRRIE « HAERRIE R

HihF&E (45)

BNFR - RMERGRIAER A EER
CREEREERBEEESNT

2020 2019

—E-FTE —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETTT

At beginning of year REF] 27,340 19,730
Impairment losses (note 7) REEE (MRE7) 82,138 10,096
Amount written off as uncollectible s AEAKERIE - (2,486)
At end of year RER 109,478 27,340

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering ECLs, which are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate.

In determining ECLs for the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, the Directors have taken into
account the historical default experience and the future prospects of
the industries and/or considering various external sources of actual
and forecast economic information, as appropriate, in estimating the
probability of default of each of prepayments, other receivables and
other assets occurring within their respective loss assessment period
as well as the loss upon default in each case.

AEBR2E BEBELEIEBER
BRXEHEHE B NG RNER
BRELBEDN - BEEFREER
TV 2 38 B8 DA S BR 3R B 175050 B FRDRI AR 2R

RFEE
BB ©

EEEABNKE - RMaEETER
HihEENEREERNEEBRE
EXCHRBERITENELENBRR
TERKA R REFSHEGEER
NFOR - HtEUGKAEREMEEEE
& B RKTEEEAEE OB X AR
BEBRTHBRRNNE - ZEER
BRARERE BN SR BRIRNEE
1 o
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

26. RERTEFR/YLIRIKR
=2

2020 2019
—ECTE ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
Cash and bank balances e MIRITHETT 899,789 1,082,835
Time deposits EHFER 47,169 54,867
946,958 1,137,702
Less: pledged time deposits for: W BRATIE B 2 B E BT

Bidding guarantee AR = 500

Long term performance REIBHHER
guarantee 2,957 -

Short term performance EEE AR
guarantee 534 4574
letters of credit EAFE 38 =
Bills payable (note 27) FERTEIR (35 27) 10,200 11,811
Frozen deposits* BR&GE TR 27,553 37,982
Bank loan (note 30(g)) RITE R (F17E30(g)) 5,887 =
47,169 54,867
Cash and cash equivalents e MREEEY 899,789 1,082,835

* As at 31 December 2020, deposits amounting to RMB17,553,000 (31
December 2019: RMB25,464,000) were frozen by courts to secure the
Group’s payables to certain suppliers (note 27). As at 31 December
2020, RMB10,000,000 (31 December 2019: 12,518,000) (note 37)
was sealed by a court as Singyes New Materials has been named as a

defendant in a lawsuit in a product quality dispute arising in the ordinary

course of business. Further details of the lawsuit are included in note 37

to the financial statements.
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. R RI[ESFFHHLL R
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued) R (E)
The Group’s cash and bank balances and time deposits were NEER S RIBITET AR TEHFFUA
denominated in the following currencies: THNEHESIE
2020 2019
k- k-3 3 —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
RMB equivalent amount: AREEZESHE
RMB AR 916,010 1,083,814
us$ ETT 14,645 2,227
HK$ BIT 11,999 45,162
MOP JEFITT 1,188 1,307
EUR BT 28 9
TOP 5 N2 N 272 341
MYR NS 2,771 4,789
SG$ i 45 58
946,958 1,137,702
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, ARBETA R LR AEMER - A
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and i AR P B A e & SN B 3 A M5 K 4
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange & - SERMNESTERT  AEEEF
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other BRERESEINEEFNRITHEAR
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange BHIRABHMER -
business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITHSEEBRITERFER 2 ZHF
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods from one R B EMFERZERHANTF—H
day to one year, among which RMB215,000 (31 December 2019: E—F - WIRABRE T BT R AR5
RMB17,937,000) are within three months and earn interest at the B Hh AR215000C(=ZF— N
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and F+-_A=+—H: AR¥ 17,937,000
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent T ZGERBAE=ZEANUA - RITE&TF
history of default. MERFREF AT &R IEREG

8% - FERFHRITH -

—E-BEER  FEARREGAREARAR 223
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IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date or issuance date, where
appropriate, is as follows:

27. FEFTE SFIA R FEFH R AR

REHR - EREHZAHRETEE
(RFBERME) SHENRNE S FIAR
N RBREDITT -

2020 2019

—BC%F —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBFT

Within 3 months =@EAR 1,205,757 715,387
3 to 6 months =z /NEA 131,147 292,124
6 to 12 months NETZEA 292,611 228,644
1to 2 years —EWE 203,161 147,537
2 to 3 years e =4F 39,503 32,708
Over 3 years =FLAE 49,696 21,654
1,921,875 1,438,054

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled within one to six months.

As at 31 December 2020, the frozen deposits of RMB17,553,000
(note 26) were frozen by courts according to the civil ruling to secure
the Group’s trade payables of RMB19,103,000 to certain suppliers.
As at 31 December 2019, the machinery and frozen deposits of
RMB7,408,000 and RMB25,464,000 (note 26), respectively, were
restricted by courts according to the civil ruling to secure the Groups
trade payables of RMB101,507,000 to certain suppliers.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bills payable were secured by
the pledged deposits amounting to RMB10,200,000 (31 December
2019: RMB11,811,000) (note 26).
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ENEZFARENERRRENL BT
B2 XNEARREE -

RZZEZFTF+=-A=1+—0 ' AR¥E
17,553,000 7T K9 &R 4 17 50 (M35 26) B
RIEREHREMBPETRE - ERAE
[ A R# 19,103,000 ST FE & T &
BESHZIENER - RZT—NF+=
B=+—8 " 953 AR#¥7,408,0007T
T ANERHE 25 464,000 JLHIH4 22 MR &5 17
A (TE26) BRI R EHE AR
B3 (ERREE AR 101,507,000
TR BT E THIERE SR IBMER o

RZZB_ZF+-_A=+—0  ~5H
Y RE T SRR I A 58 A R ¥ 10,200,000
T(ZE-—NF+ZA=+—80: AR
# 11,811,000 7T ) B9 $EARIF FRAEHELR (P
FE26) ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. HAthFEFHFRIA R FERTRRIR

2020 2019

—BCFE —ZT-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBFIT

Tax and surcharge payables FEREIIE R M AN E 362,043 166,769
Advances from tenants HE B 4,497 =
Accrued expenses Bt X 33,210 31,523
Interest payables FERTFIE 6,027 38,680
Amounts due to related parties e RAE S A 1,491,961 10,000
Other payables HAth FE T IR 210,175 137,453
2,107,913 384,425

The Group’s other payables and accruals included net carrying
amounts of RMB1,000,000 (31 December 2019: nil) (note 40(e))
received from the Group’s associates.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has received deposits in relation
to the sale of equity interests in the Target Subsidiaries amounting to
RMB38,974,000 (2019: RMB38,974,000) while the transaction has
not yet been fulfilled. Subsequent to 31 December 2020, a written
agreement was signed between the Company and the Purchaser to
extend the long stop date of the transaction to 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s leasehold land with a net
carrying amount of RMB22,429,000 (31 December 2019: RMB
22,345,000) was pledged to an independent third party to guarantee
the Group’s other payables of RMB41,000,000 (note 15(a)).

REBMEMENKIBREFSERBE
BASE S QAWM REFEA
R#1,000000t(=ZE—h&E+=A
=+—8 : ®)(FIE40(e)) -

RZEZZTF+-_A=+—H ' ' ~%H
HEHEBEWEBRR 2 REKEIES
AR#®38974,000(ZE—NF : A
R#38,974,0007T) * MR 5 &K
e R=ZTE_TFEF+_A=+—RH%"
ARREEFRIZEEHE BRXS
WREHREEE T -—F+=A
=+—H-

RZE_TF+-_A=+—H  KEF
BEAANRE22429,0007T(=F—hF
+ZA=+—8: AR%¥22,345,000
) ZAREERELMERT T — 258
N E=HERNERE AR 41,000,000
TCEY ELAh PRI RIE R ER (T 5E 15@)) ©

“ToREFER PEKEEEGEREEARAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. A¥ERE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
ot ek o3-S —E-NF —E-NF
+=RA=+—H +—A=+—8H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AREETIT AREETIT
Advances received [REEI=EF
from customers
— Construction services - JRERE 87,743 35,835 60,040
— Sale of products - HEEM 43,618 18,236 45,027
— Rental services - HER® - 4,236 -
131,361 58,307 105,067
Contract liabilities consisted of short-term advances received from BHEEREEREFEEHEEER K
customers in relation to the sale of products and the provision of RHBERGNEHER - FRENE
construction services. Changes in contract liabilities during the year are BT -
as follows:
2020 2019
—E-FEF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSETT ARBT T
At beginning of year REF] 58,307 105,067
Revenue and other income FFAFVIEHBENDHER
recognised that was included WA R oA w5 (PR EE4)
in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (note 4) (46,094) (98,804)
Net increase due to cash received, A B WIR S E AR FIE N -
excluding amounts recognised TBIEERERIERA
as revenue and NEMB GRS
other income during the year 119,148 52,044
At end of year RER 131,361 58,307
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no contract liabilities received RZZE-_ZF+_A=+—H A%£H
from the Group’s associates (31 December 2019: RMB11,411,000) WEKEREAKERERTNENE
(note 40(e)). B(ZE-NAE+ZA=+—H: AR

#11,411,0007) (BH5E40(e)) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

30.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

LOANS

31 December 2020

30. M BERITREMER

—B-Ff5t+-RA=t+-H

31 December 2019

—E-hE+-A=1+—H

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BEIRHE (%) HEEEE  ARBTIT BERME(%) e ARBTT
Current E
Bank loans RITER
— secured - BHER
HIBOR+ HIBOR+
FERIT BSIRIT
FIEFE + RIZEFE +
3.3~34 2021 125,665 1.3~4 2020 136,444
— secured - B 4.9 2021 60,000 49 - -
- secured - 5HH 4.45~7 2021 894,381 4.78~7.35 2020 1,071,730
Other loans HibER
— secured™) - RHEAO 7.01 2021 4,829 15.00 2020 83,713
- secured? - B 6.17-6.97 2021 90,141 6.51 2020 23,616
- secured® - REAO 5.09-6.32 2021 2,174 6.52 2020 186
— secured - M - - - 24.00 2020 41,000
Other loans HER
- unsecured® - AR @ 18.00-24.00 2021 4,000 9.07 2020 18,000

1,181,190

“RCTEFR

PEKEEEEREEER QA

1,374,689
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

31 December 2020
—E-FF+=-A=+—H

30. MR ERITREME (45)

31 December 2019
—E-hE+-A=1+—H

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BEIRFIE (%) HEEEE  ARBTRT BRME(%) e ARBTT
Non-current FEiRE
Bank loans RITER
— secured - BHEH HIBOR+ HIBOR+
BHHERT BAERIT
FIXFE + RIZEHFE +
3.3~34 - - 3.3~34 2021 132,402
- secured - 5HH 4.9 2022-2032 647,500 5.15~7.35  2021-2029 1,065,328
- secured - 5HH 4.9-7 2022-2028 543,183
Other loans HibER
— secured) - RO 7.01 2022-2028 37,898 = = =
- secured®? - B 6.17-6.97 2022-2025 192,557 6.51  2021-2025 205,705
- secured® - B 5.09-6.32 2022-2031 212,547 6.52  2021-2029 134,185
1,633,685 1,537,620

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA SRR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

1

It represented an other loan with a principal of RMB43,425,000
borrowed from an independent third party, by way of equipment
sale-leaseback arrangements, which bears interest at an effective
rate of 7.01% per annum with quarterly instalment payments up
to the maturity date on 15 August 2028. Shuifa Energy provided
a guarantee for this other loan.

It represented seven other loans borrowed from independent
third party leasing companies by Zhuhai Singyes, Hunan
Singyes, Guangzhou Dajixin New Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd(“Guangzhou Dajixin”), Huarong Haofeng Green Energy
Technology Co., Ltd(“Huarong Haofeng”), Zibo Qilu, Foshan
Xinye, and Foshan Keliyuan, subsidiaries of the Group, by way
of equipment sale-leaseback arrangements, with the principal
of RMB317,100,000, which bear interest at an effective rate of
6.17%~6.97% per annum with quarterly or monthly instalment
payments up to the maturity date at the end of 2025.

It represented two other loans borrowed from one
independent third party leasing company, with the principal of
RMB213,616,000 in 2020 by Yangjiang Huayu, a subsidiary of
the Group. Both of the two other loans were obtained by way of
equipment sale-leaseback arrangements, which bear interest
at effective rates of 5.09% and 6.32%, respectively. Yangjiang
Huayu pledged the right on the annual return of its solar
photovoltaic power station and the Group pledged the equity
interests in it as the security to the other loan in substance.

= B L

30. MR ERITREMER (5)

(1)

HENREERERZHEN AR
M—ZBIBE=HEANEME
;o RN&FR AR 43,425,000
T BRFNER/TOL%  EE
DHEBH R-_ZE-NFENA
THAZH - KERERE RZE
HEFIRMHER -

HIERASE B/ KB QB 5k E #
¥ MmEE - BMELMKEN
RERERIEARAB(EMER
X)) - ERGELGEREREH
ERAR([HERELE])  EEE
B BILmE - #SLURITERRE
HEEERTHN T ARBLE
—HHEERFEANLEEME
Mo AerEA AR 317,100,000
T BERFNENF617T%E
6.97% ' BERIE A D EEN
R-E-RFREIE -

HismASENHE ARG IE
FRIZZEFH—BEBIUE=
FHEAREBEANMBEME
o A&REAARE 213,616,000
T MEERHURGBERED
ZHR ARG  BRFMNES
A A5.09%H6.32% > BE -
BIEFEHFEAGENLKRE
Ut ) 5F Bl i R AN B E R
HAmiRiE  (ERZEMERD
AR o

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. I BERITREMERR (B)
LOANS (Continued)
(4) These represented other loans of RMB4,000,000 borrowed (4) HIRUREERTHR)T Ao BT
from independent third parties by Jiangxi Yaxing before the FEZFEBEANEMERARE
acquisition, which were repaid on 8 February 2021. 4,000,0007T ' ERZT=—F =

ANBEE -

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ek 3 —ENF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETTT
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans RITER
repayable: AEE
Within one year —FR 1,080,046 1,208,174
In the second year FE_fF 146,257 306,032
In the third to fifth FE=FFEFENF
years, inclusive (BIEEREMT) 444,846 433,248
Beyond five years RFLAE 599,580 458,450
2,270,729 2,405,904
Other loans HMER
repayable: AR
Within one year —FR 101,144 166,515
In the second year F-fF 113,284 24,304
In the third to fifth F=FEZELF
years, inclusive (BEERWE) 192,346 126,290
Beyond five years RELE 137,372 189,296
544,146 506,405
2,814,875 2,912,309
As of 31 December, 2020, except for bank loans denominated in Hong HE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—H ks
Kong dollars which were HK$125,665,000, all bank and other loans B A AR E 125,665,000 THISRITE R
were denominated in RMB. LA TTEHESN - Fﬁﬁfﬁﬁ&ﬁ@g 76|
NAREEE -
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BA SRR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by:

(a)

mortgages over the Group’s buildings, machinery and motor
vehicles with an aggregate carrying amount at 31 December
2020 of approximately RMB631,617,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB972,450,000) (note 13(a));

mortgages over the Group’s solar photovoltaic power stations
and their respective rights on the annual return thereof, which
had an aggregate carrying amount at 31 December 2020
of approximately RMB1,908,665,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,280,636,000) (note 13(b));

mortgages over the Group’s a solar photovoltaic power plant
under construction with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB272,874,000 at 31 December 2020. (note 13(c));

mortgages over the Group’s investment properties with a
net carrying amount at 31 December 2020 of approximately
RMB84,918,000 (31 December 2019: RMB7,537,000) (note
14(d));

mortgages over certain of the Group’s leasehold land, which
had a carrying amount at 31 December 2020 of approximately
RMB50,122,000 (31 December 2019: RMB78,087,000) (note
15(a));

30. MR ERITREMER (5)

AEEE TRITEEMERBATEIR
H

(@ RZZEZZF+=-_A=+—8H"
REFERT - #BRITENILES
IR 4218 4 A R #631,617,000
T(ZE—NF+ZA=+—8:
A R #972450,0007T ) ( Mf &
13(a))

(b) RZZTZEF+—A=+—8"
REBAGREARELEESES
BZFERRERNZRIBERER
#E#H A R ¥ 1,908,665,000 7T
(Z2E—AFE+ZA=+—81:
A R #1,280,636,0007t ) (Hf 5
13(b)) :

© WNZFZTF+-A=+—H"
AEBMEZPZAGRELKE
Wz RBEEEFENARE
272,874,000 7t (i zF 13(c))

(d RZZEZZTF+_A=+—80"
AEBMBEWENRBEDF
BEX AR#84918000 (=%
—hE+=-A=1+—8: AR¥
7,537,000 7%) (Bt 5E 14(d))

() RZZE-ZEF+_A=+—80"
AEEETHET HHIRBERED
BE# A R#50,122,000T( =%
—hWFE+-A=+—8: AR¥
78,087,000 7t ) (Mf5E 15(a))

“ToREFER PEKEEEGEREEARAT

231



232

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by: (continued)

(f)  the pledge of certain of the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately RMB2,164,205,000 at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB2,169,056,000) (note 24);

(g) the pledge of certain of the Group’s bank deposits of
approximately RMB5,887,000 at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: nil) (note 26);

(h)  the pledge of certain of the Group’s tariff adjustment receivables
of approximately RMB490,982,000 at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB322,290,000) (note 25):

(i) As at 31 December 2019, the right on the annual return
generated from a solar photovoltaic power station with a net
carrying amount of RMB26,089,000 was pledged to secure an
other loan obtained by the Group from an independent third
party for twenty years;

(j):  As at 31 December 2019, the right on the annual return
generated from a solar photovoltaic power station with a net
carrying amount of RMB572,497,000 was pledged to secure
other loans granted to the Group;

(k) guarantees provided by Shuifa Group, Shuifa Energy and
Shangdong Shuifa Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Shuifa
Holdings”);

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

30. MR ERITREME ()

REEE TRITEEMERBATEIER
B - (&)

fH RZZEZZEF+-_A=+—8"
REBERHEWE S RBELY
A R #2164,2050007( = =
—NE+-HA=+—8: ARK
2,169,056,000 70 ) (KizE24)

(g RZZE-ZF+-A=+—80"
REBERNE TRITERHA
R ¥5887,000L( =T — L F
+=ZA=+—8 : &) (MizE26) :

AEEEHNETEERHIERK
FRIB#I A R 490,982,000 7 (=
T-NF+=-A=1+—8: AR
% 322,290,000 7T ) (15E25)

) RZE-—hFE+ZA=+—8"
BR R (E A AR ¥ 26,089,000 7T
ZAIGRER KRB 2 FEIFHER
BIFERAEE —BBIE=
FERABFHA-+EN—THEM
ERZER

G RZF-hFt-_A=+—8"
AR 1B & A R # 572,497,000
TLZ K5 BE IR Bk 2 4F [ g
EEMERAREREEMER
ZIER

(k) KEEEE - KEERLR KR K
ZRREBBRAE ([ILRKEE
B )) LRBLROFELR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by: (continued)

30. MIBERITREME (45)

the pledge of equity interests in the following subsidiaries of the 0]

Group:

Vi.

vii.

vii.

Xi.

Xii.

100% equity interests in Xinjiang Singyes;

100% equity interests in Wuwei Dongrun;

20% equity interests in Suixi Xinye;

100% equity interests in Yangjiang Huayu;

100% equity interests in Yangjiang Huazhi;

100% equity interests in Yangjiang Singyes;

34.28% equity interests in Zhuhai Singyes;

15.61% equity interests in Shuifa Singyes Energy;

39.01% equity interests in Hunan Singyes;

45.71% equity interests in Singyes Energy-saving;

45.71% equity interests in Singyes Xinye;

39.02% equity interests in Gansu Technologies;

= B L

AEEE TRITEEMERBATEIR
#BH - (&)

REBRNATHBARINKRES

pe:i I

Vi.

vii.

vii.

Xi.

Xii.

FIBEIZE ) 100% ARHE

AR 100% AR

BORMREEH) 20% BUHE -

B IETH) 100% A

5 T FEES /) 100% Mt

B 1251 100% e

TR E 5 34.28% IHE

KB BB R A 15.61% %
T

SR B EE A 39.01 % AXHE ¢

I ERRERT 45.71% IckE

BEEHIA5.71% MkE

HERRHRAY 39.02% A HE

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. M BSRITREMERR (E)

LOANS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by: (continued) REEETRITEREMERBATEIE

R (8E)

(I)  the pledge of equity interests in the following subsidiaries of the  AEEAUTHEBARAKRES
Group: (continued) (')

xii. 45.71% equity interests in Zhuhai Singyes Ecological xi. WEHEELLREREER

Agriculture Technology Co., Ltd; NEIHA45.71% PEHE

xiv. 100% equity interests in Gansu Singyes; xiv. HEREZER100% RHE ;

xv.  47.5% equity interests in Zibo Qilu; xv. OEEEBE47.5% MHEE
xvi. 100% equity interests in Guangzhou Dajixin; xvi. BN IR 100% BXAE
xvii. 100% equity interests in Huarong Haofeng; xvii.  EAVEZ R 100% IRFE
xviii. 100% equity interests in Foshan Xinye; and xviii.  #BILARZER) 100% i : &
xix. 100% equity interests in Foshan Keliyuan. xix.  fFRLEIEA 100% AEHE -

In addition, the Company’s directors have guaranteed certain of the AN RRRESHASEE TRITR

Group’s bank and other loans for nil consideration (note 40(d)), details H B E R H AR (W RE40(d)) -

of which are as follows: 2P CNE

(i)  the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei, has guaranteed () ARAREFHAELEERAN
the Group’s bank and other loans of RMB216,169,000 (31 SERTEEMERAREK
December 2019: RMB706,690,000); 216,169,000 (ZF— L+ =

A=+—8 : AR¥ 706,690,000
TT)

(i) the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and the Company’s iy RZZE—hF+-—_A=+—8"
former director, Mr. Sun Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s NI = P b N NYNECT
bank loans of RMB513,995,000 as at 31 December 2019; AMEERSBEEHAERESE

B 3R 1T B 5 A K % 513,995,000
JG

234 China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA SRR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and the Company’s
former director, Mr. Xie Wen, have jointly guaranteed the
Group’s bank loans of RMB120,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB120,000,000);

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and the Company’s
former directors, Mr. Xie Wen and Mr. Sun Jinli, have jointly
guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of RMB414,494,000 (31
December 2019: RMB414,494,000);

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei, has guaranteed
the Group’s bank loans of HK$149,310,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB125,665,000) (31 December
2019: HK$198,825,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB178,103,000);

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei has guaranteed the
Group’s other loans of US$12,000,000 as at 31 December 2019.

31. SENIOR NOTES

30. MIBERITREME (45)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

RARERRM MR ERAEADA
AIERH X EERRABERAEE
8817 & 3 A R % 120,000,000 7T
(ZF-NF+ZA=+—H: A
FR#120,000,0007%) :

NN = AR e S N/NC]
RIESH X TERReEEEHR
AERTNEEBRITERARKE
414,494,000 (ZE—NFE+=
B=+—H : AR# 414,494,000
7T

AABEERAMELCERAE
%= [H R 17 & 50 149,310,000 7T
(FBERH AR 125,665,0007T)
(Z2—NF+=ZA=+—8:
198,825,000 7T (FRE R AR
#178,103,0007T)) :

RZE—NF+=-A=+—H8"
ARABEBRAMHELEBERA
EEEMEF12,000,0003 7T °

31. BRERE

2020 2019

=t = ot S

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSFT AREFTE

2022 Senior Notes T FRERER 1,488,096 2,815,135

= B L

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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31. SENIOR NOTES (Continued) 31. BEER(E)

236

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

On 19 December 2019, the Company issued guaranteed senior notes
with an aggregate nominal value of US$414,932,000, initially offered to
eligible Scheme Creditors and the Holding Period Trustee (as defined
in the Announcement dated 19 December 2019), and the senior
notes will mature on 19 December 2022 (the “2022 Senior Notes”).
The 2022 Senior Notes are only offered outside the United States in
compliance with Regulation S under the United States Securities Act
of 1933, as amended. The 2022 Senior Notes have been listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX").

The major terms and conditions of the 2022 Senior Notes are as

follows:

(i) Interest payment election

The Company may, at its discretion at any time, elect to pay
interest on the principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes
on each interest payment date (i) in cash (a “Cash Coupon
Election”) at the rate of 2.00% per annum prior to a Cash
Coupon Election and thereafter at 6.00% per annum and (ii) by
increasing the principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes or by
issuing any 2.00% cash-pay and 4.00% pay-in-kind guaranteed
senior notes due 2022 (the “Additional Notes”) in a principal
amount equal to 4.00% of the aggregate principal amount of the
note then outstanding (the “PIK Interest”). The Cash Coupon
Election shall be irrevocable.

Annual Report 2020

—NE+ZA+TNIE  KARE
1THATE{E £ 414,932,000 E TR B 1R
g%mFG_E:: BEERE] &
MBI TEBRNEIERARBSERT
HAAEERBASE-_ZT—NE+=A
THAEZAE) MEBEEBRER=-F
ZZF+ZAThBREE —T=F
BAEREER - N -_—FXEIZIHFE
TS (AIBET) NERIRINEE - =
T _FEABEEENINEESFR S
Fr ([ 22 fTl) 77 »

T _FRERBRZ TR RGN
;T

(i) HREL

RAR I RIEHREREEESME
HYN B4 EEI A
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31. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Mandatory redemption of the Company

On 19 June 2022 (the “Initial Mandatory Redemption Date”),
the Company shall redeem 40% of the 2022 Senior Notes
outstanding on the Initial Mandatory Redemption Date (including,
for the avoidance of doubt, any Additional Notes that have been
issued as PIK Interest and added to the principal amount of the
Notes) at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount thereof, together with accrued and unpaid interest
thereon (at the rate of 6.00% per annum, corresponding to
the aggregate of the interest ordinarily payable in cash and the
interest ordinarily payable in kind) to, but excluding, the Initial
Mandatory Redemption Date.

Redemption at the option of the Company

Upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the
Holders, the Trustee and the Paying Agent (each such date, an
“Optional Redemption Date”), at any time, the Company may
at its option redeem the notes outstanding on the applicable
Optional Redemption Date (including, for the avoidance of
doubt, any Additional Notes that have been issued as PIK
Interest and added to the principal amount of the notes) in whole
or in part at a redemption price equal to 100% of the aggregate
principal amount thereof together with accrued and unpaid
interest thereon (at the rate of 6.00% per annum, corresponding
to the aggregate of the interest ordinarily payable in cash and
the interest ordinarily payable in kind) to, but excluding, the
applicable Optional Redemption Date.
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31. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

As the estimated fair value of the early redemption right is insignificant

at initial recognition, the embedded derivative is not separately

accounted for. The effective interest rate is approximately 7.23% per

annum after the adjustment for transaction costs.

The 2022 Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position are calculated as follows:

31.

BRER ()

MR R O et A EETIRE
RFWAEKX - WHRAXSTETAL T
FTUBYRIE - AR SHANEHNER
FREABLT7.23% o

RiEA MBI R RN =T =
B

Ny

&1

2020

—E-FE

RMB’000

ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 RZZE_TF—A—HBHREE 2,815,135
Effective interest recognised for the year REZHEANERFE (HEE6)

(note 6) 146,660
Interest payable during the year REFEMNAFE (40,031)
Repurchase of senior notes* BRELER (1,321,065)
Acceleration of unwinding interest DRI EIF S (fzE6)

(note 6) 8,856
Cancellation of senior notes (note 5) SEHE R (FHFES) (1,655)
Exchange realignment b 3, B (119,804)
Carrying amount at RZZE-ZEF+-A=+—HKNEAE

31 December 2020 1,488,096
Fair value of the 2022 Senior Notes** T _ERERBNATES 1,431,125

* The Company repurchased the 2022 Senior Notes with an aggregate
nominal value of US$191,644,000 during the year. Particulars of the
Company’s repurchase of the 2022 Senior Notes have been set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 8 June 2020, 16 June 2020, 17
June 2020 and 14 December 2020. A net gain of RMB200,588,000,
which can be further analysed as a gross gain of RMB209,444,000
(note 5) after netting a loss on acceleration of unwinding interest of
RMB8,856,000 (note 6), was recognised for the repurchase of the 2022

Senior Notes.

o The fair value of the 2022 Senior Notes was determined based on the
price quoted on the SGX on 31 December 2020.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. BEHIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FEHEEEHEBERT AR EE W
are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets BEHREESE
Fair value Unrealized
adjustments Cost profit
arising from incurred from
acquisition of ~ Government without  intra-group Lease
a subsidiary grants invoice  transactions liabilities ~ Impairment Others Total
- it @R
ATEE BRT AFERAZ

JATEAR WA Eedd  REREH  REAR #lE it gt
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOQO

ARETR  ARBTR ARMTR  ARMTT  ARMTT  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2019 RZT-NE
—-A-A - 225 - - - 2,065 (733) 1,557
Deferred tax credted/ & AEFA/(FIRRE)
(charged) to profit or BROEERE
loss during the year - 792 - - - 847 (1) 1638

At31December2019  RZE-E
+-B=t-R = 1017 = 5 = 2912 (734) 3,195

At 1 January 2020 R-2-5F-A-A - 1,017 - - - 2912 (734) 3,195
Deferred tax credited/ ~ AETA/ (B E)
(charged) to profitor loss ~ B&HIELHE

during the year (87) 16,561 62,360 10,319 1,157 142,429 1,232 233,971
Acquisiton of WENBAR
Subsidiaries (note 38) (FE38) 3,881 - - = - = = 3,881

At31December 2020  HZE-EE
+-h=1-8 3,79 17,578 62,360 10,319 1,157 145,341 498 241,047

—E-BEER  FEARREGAREARAR 239
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32. IEEHIIE ()

240

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has total tax losses arising in
Malaysia, Singapore, Macau and Hong Kong of RMB105,999,000
(2019: RMB99,273,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose, and tax losses arising in Mainland China of RMB400,809,000
(2019: RMB485,381,000) that will expire in one to ten years for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose, as well as other deductible temporary differences of
RMB226,606,000 (2019: RMB1,031,794,000) that were available for
offsetting against future taxable profits, for which deferred tax assets
have not been recognised as it is not considered probable that taxable
profit will be available against which they can be utilised.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32, REHIE (E)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE
Fair value

adjustments  Accelerated
arising from  depreciation

acquisition of for tax  Right-of-use  Withholding

a subsidiary purpose assets taxes Total
e B — i B

AEEEZ RIERS f£H
AREERE InETE BEE T st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2019 RZZ—hE—H—H - 820 - 86,860 87,680
Deferred tax credited to FREFFABRNELERE
profit or loss
during the year - (820) = = (820)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+-A=1t—H - - - 86,860 86,860
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-TF—H—H - - - 86,860 86,860

Deferred tax credited to during FREH ABRAYIRILR 18
profit or loss during

the year (1,134) - 947 - (187)
Acquisition of during WiE—fHB AR
a subsidiary (note 38) (Ff5x38) 23,708 = = = 23,708
At 31 December 2020 NZE-TF
+=-A=+—H 22,574 - 947 86,860 110,381

—E-BEER  FEARRXGRREARAR 241
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Under the CIT Law of the PRC, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China effective from 1 January
2008. Under the Arrangement between Mainland China and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes
on Income, the withholding tax rate for dividends paid by a Mainland
resident enterprise to a Hong Kong resident enterprise is 5% if the
Hong Kong enterprise owns at least 25% of the Mainland enterprise.

Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits of the PRC subsidiaries during the year, as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB933,432,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB903,576,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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33. DEFERRED INCOME

33. EEW

2020 2019
k- Jamt o3 —T-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AREFIT
Government grants BT B
At beginning of year REH] 155,843 157,449
Government grants related to assets 4 AURENEE & EFR R O BT A BY
received during the year 1,046 11,767
Released to profit or loss: R -
Over the expected useful lives 1ZBRE ETE B R] 7 A AR (fRE D)
of the related assets (note 5) (13,856) (13,373)
At end of year RER 143,033 155,843

Deferred income represented government grants received by the Group
in respect of the construction of roof top solar power stations under the
“Golden Sun Demonstration Project”, and other items of property, plant

and equipment.

The deferred income is released to profit or loss by equal annual
instalments to match with the expected useful lives of the relevant

assets.

Bf o

B as R AR B [ & AP RETAE ]
TREBRNETEAGREE - UREMY
¥ WENREER WU R

BLEWESRF 0 BB =18 - A
AR EENTREIREAFE -

ZECTFEFHR PEKEEXEREEARAR]
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34 X
Shares 40
2020 2019
k- St 3 3 —ZT—NF
US$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Authorised: VETE ¢
3,200,000,000 (31 December 2019: 3,200,000,000 )& (ZZE—hF
2,600,000,000) ordinary shares +=-A=+—H : 2,600,000,000 (%)
of US$0.01 each SREE0.01 EITA B 32,000 26,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREHR :
2,521,081,780 (2019: 2,521,081,780 fi%
2,521,081,780) ordinary shares (ZZ—h% : 2,521,081,780 /%)
of US$0.01 each FREEO0.01 = Th @R 25,211 25,211
Equivalent to RMB’000 WEARET T 174,333 174,333

There was no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during
the Year.

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a)  The share option scheme of the Company

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) to replace the former share option scheme (the
“Former Scheme”) which was terminated on 19 December
2018 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible persons of the New Scheme include
directors, employees, consultants and suppliers of the Group.
The New Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders
on 4 June 2018 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

The share option scheme of the Company (continued)

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No
options may be granted under the New Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company if this will result in such
limit being exceeded.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to any eligible person(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding share options), in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue, unless (i) such grant has been duly approved, in the
manner prescribed by the relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules, by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in
general meeting, at which the relevant Eligible Person and his/
her close associates (or his/her associate if the grantee is a
Listco Connected Person) abstained from voting; (ii) a circular
regarding the grant has been despatched to the Shareholders
in a manner complying with, and containing the information
specified in, the relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules; and (iii) the number and terms (including the subscription
price) of such options are fixed before the general meeting of the
Company at which the same are approved.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

The share option scheme of the Company (continued)

At the time of adoption by the Company of the New Scheme or
any new share option scheme, the aggregate number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the New Scheme and all schemes existing at such time
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of scheme adoption,
which is expected to be 83,407,319 shares for the New Scheme.

Where an option is to be granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director (or any of their respective
associates), and the grant will, in the 12-month period up to
and including the offer date, result in the number and value of
the relevant shares exceeding the following: 0.1% of the total
number of shares in issue at the relevant time of grant; and an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, such grant
shall not be valid unless: (a) a circular containing the details of
the grant has been dispatched to the shareholders in a manner
complying with, and containing the matters specified in, the
relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (including
in particular, a recommendation from the independent non-
executive directors (excluding the independent non-executive
director who is the prospective grantee) to the independent
shareholders as to voting); and (b) the grant has been approved
by the shareholders in general meeting (taken on a poll), at
which such grantee, his/her associates and all core connected
persons of the Company have abstained from voting in favour at
such meeting.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

The share option scheme of the Company (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options must be accepted within
28 days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made.
The amount payable by the Grantee of a share option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of a share
option is HK$1.00.

The subscription price of the New Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the board and notified to an eligible person and
shall be at least the highest of (i) the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(“HKSE") closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; (ii) the average HKSE closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or

to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No options have been granted under the New Scheme during
the year.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35. BElRHERTEI(8)
(@)  The share option scheme of the Company (continued) (@)  ARERERIERE(B)
The following share options were outstanding under the Former FREFEIT M ARTTEE 2 BB
Scheme during the year: W
2020 2019
k- k-3 3 —E-NEF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
InHEEL hnETH
TEE RIEBEE TEE REEHE
HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share ‘000
SikET T3 BRET F1n
At 1 January n—H—H 5.23 25,258 4.72 36,500
Expired during the year FREIH - - 3.56 (11,242)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 5.23 25,258 5.23 25,258
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35. RERxtEsTEl (8)
(@)  The share option scheme of the Company (continued) (a) AREMBIERSI(E)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options MRS BIR M RITEERE 21T
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: FERITFEHRET

Number of share

& E
2020 2019 Exercise price Exercise period
—EC-EE —TNE 1T{EME 171
000 '000 HK$ per share
T T4 FRAT
1,447 1,447 2.67 11/10/12-10/10/21
1,447 1,447 2.67 11/10/13-10/10/21
1,446 1,446 2.67 11/10/14-10/10/21
1,446 1,446 2.67 11/10/15-10/10/21
1,446 1,446 2.67 11/10/16-10/10/21
2,008 2,008 11.65 22/5/16-21/5/25
2,009 2,009 11.65 22/5/17-21/5/25
2,009 2,009 11.65 22/5/18-21/5/25
4,000 4,000 3.55 05/4/18-21/5/127
4,000 4,000 3.55 05/4/19-21/5/27
4,000 4,000 3.55 05/4/20-21/5/27
25,258 25,258
The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$700,000 REEBRAFEBRRERER
(equivalent to approximately RMB634,000) during the % 700,000/ T (FHE RO AR
year (2019: HK$3,686,000, equivalent to approximately #634,000T ) (=T — h F:
RMB3,246,000). 3,686,000 7t (HHE R K AR

3,246,0007T)) °
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

The share option scheme of the Company (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 25,258,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 25,258,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of US$252,580 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,958,000) and share premium of
approximately HK$130,154,000 (before issue expenses and
after the amount to be transferred from share option reserve to
share premium upon the exercise of the related share options).

As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the
Company had 25,258,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 1.00% of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

Share option scheme of Singyes New Materials

A subsidiary of the Company, Singyes New Materials, operates
a share option scheme (the “Singyes New Materials’ Scheme”).
The Singyes New Materials’ Scheme was adopted for the primary
purposes of providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution or potential contribution to the growth
and development of Singyes New Materials and its subsidiaries
(“Eligible Persons”). Eligible Persons of the Scheme include:
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)  Share option scheme of Singyes New Materials (Continued)

35. RElx#EsTE (8)

(b)

(i) (a) any director or proposed director (whether executive

or non-executive, including any independent non-

executive director), employee or proposed employee

(whether full time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work

for, any member of the Group or any substantial

shareholder or any company controlled by a

substantial shareholder;

(i) any person or entity that provides research, development

or other technological support or any advisory,

consultancy, professional or other services to any member

of the Group; and

(iii) ~ for the purposes of the Singyes New Materials’ Scheme,

shall include any company controlled by one or more

persons belonging to any of the above classes of

participants.

The Singyes New Materials’ Scheme was approved by its

shareholders on 17 October 2017 and, unless otherwise

cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that

date.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Share option scheme of Singyes New Materials (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all share options to be granted under Singyes New
Materials’” Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Singyes New Materials must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total issued share capital of Singyes New Materials as at the
date on which the Singyes New Materials’ Scheme is adopted
unless Singyes New Materials obtains a fresh approval from
shareholders to refresh the 10% limit on the basis that the
maximum number of shares in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Singyes New Materials’ Scheme
together with any share options outstanding and yet to be
exercised under the Singyes New Materials’ Scheme and any
other share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of Singyes New Materials from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the share options granted under the Singyes
New Materials’ Scheme and any other share option schemes
of Singyes New Materials to any Eligible Persons (including
cancelled, exercised and outstanding share options), in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the number of shares in issue, unless (i) a circular is dispatched
to the shareholders; and (ii) the shareholders approve the grant
of the share options in excess of the 1% limit referred to in
this paragraph; and (iii) the relevant Eligible Persons and his
associates shall abstain from voting. The number and terms
(including the exercise price) of share options to be granted
to such Eligible Persons must be fixed before shareholders’
approval.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme of Singyes New Materials (continued)

Any grant of a share option to a director, chief executive of
Singyes New Materials or substantial shareholder (or any of their
respective associates) must be approved by the independent
non-executive directors (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is the grantee of the share options).

Where any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director (or any of their respective
associates) will result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon the exercise of the share options already
granted and to be granted to such person under the Singyes
New Materials’ Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Singyes New Materials (including share options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant: (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at each date of grant,
in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of share options is
required to be approved by shareholders in a general meeting
in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on Growth Enterprise Market of the HKSE. Any change in the
terms of a share option granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director or any of their respective
associates is also required to be approved by shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)  Share option scheme of Singyes New Materials (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
Directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the HKSE
closing price of Singyes New Materials’ shares on the date of

offer of the share options; and (ii) the average HKSE closing

price of Singyes New Materials shares for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of offer.

The following share options were outstanding under the Singyes

35. MERx#EsTEI (8)

(b)

BRI ST B ()

EEABERRTERSE : 0
BREENE B BEEFHERN
REBBRZFOKTIE K (i) &
BEH R B RER S HBEER
BB AD 10 2 78 Bt 32 P O SF 23 UK
miE -

BRENTEEVTHSESE

REEE BRI ELE B T 5K

New Materials’ Scheme during the year: 1T 2 BRI T ¢
2020 2019
—E-THE —ZE-NF
Exercise Number Exercise Number
price of options price of options
TEE RBRERE TEE  ERESE

HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share ‘000
SikET T BB T
At beginning of year REH] 1.16 15,700 1.16 21,000
Forfeited during the year FRERM 1.16 (6,410) 1.16 (5,300)
Surrendered during the year ~ FRKE 1.16 (700) 1.16 —
At end of year RER 8,590 1.16 15,700
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme of Singyes New Materials (continued)

35. RElx#EsTE (8)

(b)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Number of shares

BRI A AT B (48)

R|ERREARITEBIRAEZTT
FEERITERET

B8 E

2020 2019 Exercise price Exercise period
—E-FEF —E-NEF 1TiEE fTiEH]
’000 '000 HK$ per share

T3 Tt BB

2,863 5,233 1.61 31/1/21-30/1/28
2,863 5,233 1.61 31/1/22-30/1/28
2,864 5,234 1.61 31/1/23-30/1/28
8,590 15,700

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a total of 6,410,000
options (2019: 5,300,000) were forfeited due to the resignation
of grantees and a total of 700,000 options (2019: nil) were

surrendered by a grantee.

Singyes New Materials recognised share option expenses of
HK$1,466,185 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,234,000) and
reversed share option expenses of HK$1,805,998 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,520,000) due to the forfeiture of share
options, resulting in the net reversal of share option expenses of
RMB286,000 during the year (2019: HK$1,522,000, equivalent

to approximately RMB1,340,000).

= B L

BE_Z-TF+=-A=+—8H
IHEE - AREASZART 64
K 36,410,000 R (=T
— L4 + 5,300,000 ) © — & &
B A A M E 700,000 8 A% 4
(Z2—NF 8\ -

BETMHBERBRER X
1,466,185 7T (HHE R AR
1,234,0007T ) + B [E 8 W f
ifi 18 [B] 32 B A% 4% B 52 1,805,998
7S 7T (FE R K AR % 1,520,000
TT)  BEFRERERTEEF
%85 286,000 L (Z T — N4 :
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)  Share option scheme of Singyes New Materials (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, Singyes New Materials had
8,590,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of Singyes New Materials, result in the
issue of 8,590,000 additional ordinary shares of Singyes New
Materials and additional share capital of US$85,900 (equivalent
to approximately HK$665,948, before issue expenses).

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, Singyes
New Materials had 8,590,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 1.65% of shares
of Singyes New Materials in issue as at that date.

36. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 93 to 94 of the financial statements.

(a) Statutory reserves of the PRC subsidiaries

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using
Chinese and Foreign Investment” and the respective articles
of association of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China,
appropriations from net profit, as determined in accordance
with PRC generally accepted accounting principles (“PRC
GAAP”) and after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years,
should be made to the statutory reserve fund and the enterprise
expansion fund, and before profit distributions to the investors.
The reserve fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or to
increase capital.
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36. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Enterprise expansion fund

(c)

The enterprise expansion fund can be used for business
development or to increase capital. The percentages to be
appropriated to the reserve fund and the enterprise expansion
fund in the foreign investment subsidiaries are determined by
the board of directors. In addition, the wholly-foreign-owned
subsidiaries are not required to appropriate the enterprise
expansion fund, and the percentages to be appropriated to the
reserve fund shall be no less than 10%. When the cumulative
reserve fund reaches one-half of the registered capital, the
appropriation is no longer mandatory.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be forfeited. As at 31 December
2020, no share options were forfeited (31 December 2019:
RMB16,924,000).
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36. RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Merger deficit

(e)

It represents the difference of RMB96,862,745 between the
consideration paid by Shandong Shuifa Clean Energy Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Shuifa Clean Energy”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shuifa Group) to acquire 47.5% equity interests in Zibo Qilu
of RMB93,137,255 and the distribution paid by Hunan Green
Energy to Shuifa Clean Energy on the acquisition of 47.5%
equity interests in Zibo Qilu of RMB190,000,000 (note 38).

Safety fund surplus reserve

Pursuant to Notice regarding Safety Production Expenditure
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the PRC in February 2012, the
Group is required to establish a safety fund surplus reserve. The
safety fund can only be transferred to retained profits to offset
safety related expenses as and when they are incurred, including
expenses related to safety protection facilities and equipment
improvement and maintenance as well as safety production
inspection, appraisal, consultation and training.

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, Singyes New Materials was involved in a

product quality dispute arising from the ordinary course of business

where a customer initiated a proceeding against Singyes New Materials

to claim a compensation relating to a product quality dispute. As a

result of this lawsuit, cash at bank of Singyes New Materials amounted
to RMB10,000,000 (31 December 2019: RMB 12,518,000) (note 26)
has been set aside and sealed by a court in the PRC. The Directors,

based on the advice from the Group’s legal counsel, believe that

Singyes New Materials has a valid defence against the lawsuit and,

accordingly, have not provided for any loss arising from the litigation,

other than the related legal costs.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 38. ¥1EE1H#

(1) Acquisition of 100% equity interests in Foshan Xinye (1) YWeES#LLRRERBILEDE

and Foshan Keliyuan

On 5 June 2020, Hunan Green Energy completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interests in Foshan Xinye with nil consideration.
Foshan Xinye is engaged in the operation of a solar photovoltaic
power station.

On 29 June 2020, Hunan Green Energy completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interests in Foshan Keliyuan. Foshan
Keliyuan is engaged in the operation of a solar photovoltaic
power station. The purchase consideration for the acquisition of
RMB26,500,000 was paid on cash at the acquisition date.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for the
acquisition and the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the respective acquisition dates:

B9 100% B 1

R-ZZ-TFXARA - HELF
BEERTEAUE B L TR 100%
Pt RERT - FILMENS
KGR RN BILHES ©

RZE-_ZFXA=-1+hB M
AR LR EE G IL R iR
#)100% A& #E - BB IR RIS
KGR IRBIAIESE - AR
FE ) I RE B A R 26,500,000
TEREEBEAR ST

TR BB FENNRE
IA R & s B B B P2 7S AT 38R
BERFIEAERBENRFE

Foshan Keliyuan Foshan Xinye Total
B hE ATV ES st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment  ¥12 « BB & &4E
(note 13) (BI=E13) 9,819 4,699 14,518
Deferred tax assets (note 32)  IRIEFIIEE EE (FiI5E32) 1,498 509 2,007
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 55 K BN EE 3,964 918 4,882
Prepayments, other TEfFRIE - H A FEWGRIA
receivables and other assets REMEE 9,433 846 10,279
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 1 1 2
Trade payables B S30E (375) (165) (540)
Other payables and accruals — FAhEf 518 & fERT VA - (8,634) (8,634)
Total identifiable net assets/ AR BT 2/ AT A
(liabilities) at fair value FEE/(AF)rE 24,340 (1,826) 22514
Goodwill on acquisition WEErRr R & (fiz16)
(note 16) 2,160 1,826 3,986
Satisfied by cash AR & 7 1+ 26,500 = 26,500

=
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(1) Acquisition of 100% equity interests in Foshan Xinye
and Foshan Keliyuan (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the
above subsidiaries is as follows:

38. £ EH (B&)

(1)

WS RRZE R BLE HE
B9 100% BRHE (&)

ARWE LR B ARMNRER
AT

RMB’000
AREF T
Cash and cash equivalents FrEBSRE RIS EEY
acquired 2
Net outflow of cash and ReERRSEEWF R
cash equivalents Included FFAREEHEENBEESRE
in cash flows from
investing activities 26,498
(2) Acquisition of 47.5% equity interests in Zibo Qilu (2) WESISIEEE47.5% IRt

On 30 September 2020, Hunan Green Energy completed the
acquisition of 47.5% equity interests in Zibo Qilu from Shuifa
Clean Energy with a cash consideration of RMB190,000,000
settled during the year. Refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 14 September 2020 for more details. At the
same date, Jinan Linhua Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Jinan Linhua”, a 3.5% shareholder of Zibo Qilu)
entrusted irrevocably Hunan Green Energy at its sole discretion
from time to time to exercise on behalf of the 3.5% voting rights
attached to the equity interests held by itself. As such, Hunan
Green Energy controls 51% voting rights of Zibo Qilu and Zibo
Qilu became a subsidiary of Hunan Green Energy.
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

38. EBEH (E)

(2) Acquisition of 47.5% equity interests in Zibo Qilu (2)

(Continued)

Zibo Qilu is principally engaged in the distribution of industrial-
use pipeline steam for heating purposes to companies located
inside the Qilu Chemical Industrial Park in Zibo City, Shandong
Province. This acquisition is in line with the Group’s strategy to
strengthen its financial performance while the Group seeks to
expand its portfolio of energy projects going forward.

As Hunan Green Energy and Zibo Qilu are under common
control of Shuifa Group before and after the acquisition,
the business combination has been accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as a business
combination under common control based on the principles
of merger accounting as if the acquisition had occurred when
Zibo Qilu first came under the control of Shuifa Clean Energy
on 20 January 2020, when Shuifa Clean Energy acquired the
47.5% equity interests in Zibo Qilu from independent third
parties at a cash consideration of RMB93,137,255. Upon the
completion of the business combination under common control
on 30 September 2020, Qilu Zibo had been accounted for as a
subsidiary of the Group since 20 January 2020.

Under the principles of merger accounting, the assets and
liabilities of Zibo Qilu are consolidated in the Group’s financial
statements using the existing book values as stated in the
financial statements of Qilu Zibo immediately prior to the
combination. The difference between the consideration paid
by Shuifa Clean Energy to acquire 47.5% equity interests
in Zibo Qilu of RMB93,137,255 and the cash consideration
paid by Hunan Green Energy to Shuifa Clean Energy of
RMB190,000,000 amounting to RMB96,862,745 was
recognised in the merger deficit account (note 36(d)). Refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 11 September 2020
for more details.

=

Wi i 1 7 B Y 47.5% RRHE
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7T e RIRWEET & AR & B hnss ¢
BERENBE - REAKESRK
EAHBEIRARMIEMESR -

BN & EERERSEREER
W EIERI B LR KB EE T
H - BB RZERURSNE
AR #93,137,2557C B B 3L &
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(2) Acquisition of 47.5% equity interests in Zibo Qilu

(Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid for the

acquisition and the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired

and liabilities assumed at the acquisition dates:

38. EBEH (E)
(2) WSS B 47.5% it

(%)

TEREEREBFENNRE
PGS EASE i SR F -
ERPTAERENATE

Total
fast
RMB’000
AREF T
Property, plant and equipment  #72 « = M &4 (FisE 13)

(note 13) 98,036
Deferred tax assets (note 32)  iEFEFIEEE (M 32) 1,874
Trade and bills receivables FEUCE 5 50E R BRI 18,804
Other intangible asset Hab g (ME17)

(note 17) 94,833
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE (M3 15))

(note 15(a)) 1,399
Prepayments, other AR - B R EMEE

receivables and other assets 9,940
Lease liabilities (note 15(b)) HE & E (ML 15(0)) (1,489)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 32) RIEFIBE & (Fiz£32) (23,708)
Trade payables BT E S308 (453)
Tax payables FERTRRIR (2,292)
Other payables and accruals - th 4~ 58 & fE 513008 (1,093)
Total identifiable net assets AR EFTEMNAHRFEELRE

at fair value 195,851
Non-controlling interests IR (102,822)
Goodwill on acquisition W R BRE ) R (B3 16)

(note 16) 108
The consideration paid by RELAT AL

Shuifa Clean Energy for IKEFZRERBEEIEE R

the acquisition of the 47 5% [ #E

47.5% equity interests

in Zibo Qilu 93,137
Merger deficit & BHEs AL 96,863
Satisfied by cash LAIR & S 4+ 190,000

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 38. EHEH (B)
(2) Acquisition of 47.5% equity interests in Zibo Qilu (2) WESSISEENA7.5%RE
(Continued) (%&)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the
above subsidiaries is as follows:

ARWE LR BARNRE R
SEHWHOT :

RMB’000
AREETFTT
Cash and cash equivalents FrEBSRE RIS EEY
acquired =
Net outflow of cash and ReMRSEEWFRLFTA
cash equivalents Included BRETDEENRERE
in cash flows from investing
activities 190,000
As part of the acquisition agreement, If the audited net profit (after TERIEHZER e

extraordinary items) of Zibo Qilu for any given financial year
during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2044
is less than RMB63,000,000, Zibo Linre New Energy Co., Ltd.,
which disposed of its 47.5% equity interests in Zibo Qilu to Shuifa
Clean Energy, agreed to compensate the shortfall multiplied
by the shareholding percentage held by Hunan Green Energy.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the compensation
of RMB8&,983,000 was recorded as other income and gain.
Contingent consideration was recognised as nil at the acquisition
date and no fair value change was recognised in profit or loss
during the year based on the financial budgets covering from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2044 approved by
management.

= B L

BR-_EC Tﬂf H BE_ZF
MEE+— A =+— B HFEE WA
FEMBEFERLE RN (0
BRIFCEHEIER ) PRARK
63,000,000 7T, + RIS E FR ZA 5T Ak
RERA R (HERKEFTREIR
EEHNEEE EBR 47.5% IRiE)
AR MEEERAHBEEER
BENKREA L -EHEZT =
TEF+_A=1+—HIEFE  #
B AR8,983,000 2 ABRAH
o A R W as o IRIRE IR E ATt
ERE—_T-_—F—A—H=ZEZ
TOMFE+=—A=+—B0OH%
BE - AR ERUEE R HBER
RE - MREABEATEE
B AR °

A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FEERAR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(3) Acquisition of 51% equity interests in Jiangxi Yaxing 3)

On 22 December 2020, Zhuhai Singyes completed the
acquisition of 51% equity interests in Jiangxi Yaxing by capital
injection at a price of RMB39,900,000. RMB20,000,000 was
injected on 22 December 2020 and RMB19,900,000 was

injected in February 2021.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for the

acquisition and the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired

and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

38. EBEH (E)

W BT P aE LAY 51% A

RZEZTF+_A=+=
H HREEEFBIEARYK
39,900,000 7T ¢ Ak U % )T 78 28
HEbl%tE - R _TF
+—A-+-_HEFTEAR¥
20,000,0007t ' MR =ZE=—4F
ZARAIB & AR% 19,900,000
5T o

TEREEREBEENORE
PSS I F
ERPTAERENATE :

Total
st
RMB’000
ARETTT
Property, plant and W - BB LR (R 13)
equipment (note 13) 3,523
Contract assets BHEE 29,228
Trade and bills receivables FEUN B 5 5 0E K FE W R 1% 102,863
Prepayments, other TERTRIR - EAth FEUGRIE R B th &
receivables and other assets 45,382
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 20,774
Interest-bearing bank and FHEIRITREAME R
other loans (4,000)
Tax payables FESREIE (5,408)
Trade payables JETE 558 (74,255)
Other payables and accruals ~ EAfbfEFRIE K ERTE A (25,279)
Total identifiable net assets AT EFENAHINFEERSE
at fair value 92,828
Non-controlling interests IR (45,483)
Gain on bargain purchase RE AR A K = R 8
recognised in other income EEW Y (FIRED) *
and gains (note 5)* (7,445)
Satisfied by cash and other LAIR & LA B2 B Ath FE A< 5RIE SR FERT B A5 >
payables and accruals** 39,900

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 38. ¥BEH (B)
(3) Acquisition of 51% equity interests in Jiangxi Yaxing (3) WS ISR EA51%MHE
(Continued) (%8)
cJ The gain on a bargain purchase of approximately RMB7,445,000 * EIRGEESFHRRARSES
arose from the immediate need of Jiangxi Yaxing to solve the lack A2 P RE i 72 AR ) 55 (B R LK
of liquidity. =H AR 7,445,000 7T ©
o RMB20,000,000 was injected on 22 December 2020 and o AN—E-FTF+-_A=-+=H
RMB19,900,000 was recorded as other payables and accruals by B/ & AR ¥ 20,000,0007T
Zhuhai Singyes as at the date of 31 December 2020. i A R #19,900,0007t E H

WEREXR _T-_TF+_A
=+—BARAHMENKE

MIESTER -
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the FRWE LA B ARMIIRESR
above subsidiaries is as follows: BRI -
RMB’000
AREETTT
Cash and cash FERRE KIREeEEY
equivalents acquired 20,774
Net inflow of cash and ReERRSFEBWFRA
cash equivalents
Included in cash flows ATAREESELENESRE
from investing activities 774

—E-BEER  FELRREGAREARARN 265
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 38. ¥EaB (E)

(3) WrHE I PEEn EA951% %
(#)

(3) Acquisition of 51% equity interests in Jiangxi Yaxing
(Continued)

BEKEEHE  AEEHEC
EEF+_A=+—HILFE

The amounts of contribution to the Group’s revenue and
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 since

the respective acquisition dates are as follows:

A RS A BN FBNT -

Foshan Foshan Jiangxi

Keliyuan Xinye Zibo Qilu Yaxing

HLEIHE S MEEE 7L Foae e

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR ARETRT AR®TR ARETR

Revenue WA 385 436 260,060 -

Consolidated profit E A 416 374 39,340 =
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, WEHRENET  ABZE=F

TEFT A=+ —HIEFEN
AEBRARAEEZHPRE

the revenue of the Group and the total comprehensive income
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 would be

266

increased/(decreased) by: FEIEIE N (R ) ¢
Foshan Foshan Jiangxi
Keliyuan Xinye Zibo Qilu Yaxing
BNz BhLLRZE MEEE TP EEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRE ARBETT ARETR ARBTR
Revenue WA 449 720 267,566 158,282
Consolidated profit ‘Fa Al (57) 444 44,088 18,366

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

39. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

39. ki

RBER - REEBAATEAFIE

2020 2019
—BCFE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: D RTAMB R -
Construction of buildings and ERIETF R ARG RE U,
solar photovoltaic power stations 93,535 127,403
Purchase of machinery A E MR = 9,120
Capital contributions to be injected ~ AEtE R EEE
into associates 26,500 4,500
Purchase of office properties BERAEYE 16,820 =
136,855 141,023

“RCTEFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FEERAR MY RE

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(a)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Borrowings with Shuifa Group

(i)

(i)

During the year, the Group borrowed loans with
a principal of US$281,252,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,938,920,000) (2019: nil) from
Shuifa Group, with an interest rate of 6% per annum
and US$61,304,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB400,000,000) was repaid before the year end.
A finance cost of US$5,643,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB38,903,000) (note 6) was recognised.
As at 31 December 2020 the outstanding amount
of the principal and interests were US$225,591,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,471,961,000), among
which US$212,862,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,388,908,000) of the borrowings would be due on
31 December 2021, and the remaining US$12,729,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB83,053,000) would be
due on 27 August 2021.

During the year, an interest-free loan with a principal of
RMB50,000,000 (2019: nil) was borrowed from Shuifa
Group by the Group and RMB35,000,000 was repaid
before the year end. As at 31 December 2020, the
outstanding amount of the loan was RMB15,000,000.

Annual Report 2020

40. FEH X H R 4&ER

(a)

KESEZES

(i)

FR AEEBEKEER
f& A4 %85 281,252,000
ETL(HERNDARYE
1,938,920,0007T ) ( = &
—hF: B&)ZEX
% EF R6%st B m
61,304,000 st( 18 & »
# A R # 400,000,000 7T )
ERFHEREE - BERK
A5,643,000% jt( 8 &
»# A R 38,903,000
) (K 5E6) B T M &
ReMZE_TF+ =
A=+—H' kEEX
& & F| 8 A&225,591,000
ETL(HERNARE
1,471,961,0007T) + EAF{E
§212,862,000% T (1 &
R A R #1,388,908,000
TR —F+=
A=+—HE8 MR
12,729,000 T (AHE R4
AR 83,053,000 7T) # 7
—E-—FN\A=+tHE
H o

FR AEEBHKEESE
EEAXSEAARKE
50,000,0007t( = & — A,
FEBIZREBEER M
A R #35,000,0007T & %
FHAEE RZEZF
F+-—A=+—8" %E
RZABESERARE
15,000,000 7T °
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(b) Lendings and borrowings with fellow subsidiaries
under control of Shuifa Group

(i)

(i)

(iii)

During the year, a loan with a principal of RMB50,000,000
(2019: nil) was borrowed by Shuifa Clean Energy from
the Group, with an interest rate of 9.5% per annum. An
amount of the principal of RMB30,000,000 was paid by
Shuifa Clean Energy before the year end. Interest income
of RMB646,000 (note 5) was recognised during the year.
As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding amount of the
loan was RMB20,646,000.

During the year, an interest free loan with a principal of
RMB5,000,000 (2019: nil) was borrowed from Shuifa
Energy by the Group. As at 31 December 2020, the
outstanding amount of the loan was RMB5,000,000.

During the year, an interest free loan with a principal of
RMB10,000,000 borrowed in 2019 from Shuifa Energy
was repaid by the Group. As at 31 December 2020, the
outstanding amount was nil (2019: RMB10,000,000).

= B L

40. FER X SR 40 (4F)

(b) FoKZBEREEHZFRME
AT ZERREE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FRN - KEBRZERAAR
EEBALSBEAARE
50,000,0007t( = & — A
F:E)2ER  REFE
9.5% & B o IKEETEREEIR
ERFHESZIEAS AR
30,000,000 7T » ) B U A
AR # 646,000 7T (Ff5£5)
ERFATUER - KT
—EF+-A=+—H %
BRZAEESEAARE
20,646,000 7T

FR AEHBAKHEE
BREAXEBERARYE
5,000,000 7T (ZZE— N5 :
BIZRBER - N2
TE+_A=1+—B #&ZE
RIAREREBERARE
5,000,000 7T °

FR - AEREER =T
—NFEKEEREALS
%8 & A R 10,000,000 7T
ZREER - RZTZEF
+=—A=+—8 " ®EESL
BAT(ZTE—NF: AR
# 10,000,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (Continued)

(c) Other significant transactions with fellow subsidiaries (c)
under control of Shuifa Group and associates

40. FER X H R 40 (15)

B3k 32 SR Bl 2 B R B
BATRBEASETZH
EXR S

2020 2019
k- k-3 3 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Fellow subsidiaries: CEA VNS
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uy B8 — FEI BT BB A A (BfRE38)

(note 38) 190,000 -
Purchase of office properties ~ BEEWAZ¥E (H:E£18)

(note 18) 17,555 =
Construction services BER 8,624 =
Associates: NS
Construction services SREERRTE - 443,574
Operating leases KERE 917 917

(d) Guarantees obtained from related parties (note 30) (d) FREFEEZER (FsE30)

Details of bank and other loans guarantees provided by related

parties of the Group for nil consideration are as follows:

(i) as at 31 December 2020,

the Group’s bank

loans of RMB216,169,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB706,690,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei;

(i)  as at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank loans of
RMB513,995,000 were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Liu
Hongwei and the Company’s former director, Mr. Sun Jinli;

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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AEBERETERERTZRITR
HERERFHOAT

() RKR-ZE-_ZTF+-_F=+—
B AEEZEITERA
Eﬁ%zmmgooom:g
—hWEF+=—A=+—8:

R #706,690,0007T ) M
ATHE SRR

- 5

(i MZZZEF+=A=+—
B AEEZRITERAR
i 513,995,000 7T B 24T #
EERANRRTEEE S
B HRER
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(d) Guarantees obtained from related parties (note 30)
(Continued)

(iii)

as at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank
loans of RMB120,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB120,000,000) were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Liu
Hongwei and the Company’s former director, Mr. Xie Wen;

as at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank
loans of RMB414,494,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB414,494,000) were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Liu
Hongwei and the Company’s former directors, Mr. Sun
Jinli and Mr. Xie Wen;

as at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank loans
of HK$149,310,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB125,665,000) (31 December 2019:
HK$198,825,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB178,103,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei;

as at 31 December 2019, the Group’s other loans of
US$12,000,000 were guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei.

= B L

40. FER X SR 40 (4F)

(d) FAEFHEERZER(MEE30)

(%)

(iii)

RZEZTF+—A=+—
B AEEZETERA
R ¥ 120,000,000 7T ( = &
—hE+-A=+—H8: A
R #120,000,0007¢ ) & 3
A AERARARIFIEES
WX AEHERER

RoBE-—TF+—F=+—
H: AEBZRITERA
R #414,494,0007t( = &
—NE+=A=t+—H: A
R ¥ 414,494,000 7T ) M &
MR ERANRATES
FaiB i R E KR
EIR

RZBZEBF+_A=+—
B A&EBZ2RITEK
149,310,000 7t (#8 & R
# A R # 125,665,000 7T )
(ZE—NE+=_R=+—
H : 198,825,000 7t * #H
R H AR 178,103,000
TL) FRBIATHE ST AEHEIR

RZE—NF+ZA=1+—
B "&EBZHEME XK
12,000,000 3¢ Jt (5 2 AT #E
SRR
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(d) Guarantees obtained from related parties (note 30)
(Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

as at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank and other
loans of RMB378,450,000 (31 December 2019: nil) were
guaranteed by Shuifa Group;

as at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank and other
loans with a principal of RMB272,221,000 (31 December
2019: nil) were guaranteed by Shuifa Energy;

as at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank and other
loans of RMB886,741,000 (31 December 2019: nil) were
guaranteed by Shandong Shuifa Holdings; and

as at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank loans of
RMB149,994,000 (31 December 2019: nil) were jointly
guaranteed by Shuifa Energy and Shandong Shuifa
Holdings.

Annual Report 2020

40. FER X H R 40 (15)

(d) FAEFHEERZER(FEE30)

(%)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

RZEZTF+—A=+—
B AEBZRITREMD
B A R 378,450,000 70
—E-NF+ZA=+—
B &) BKEERER

R=z=-2&+=A
=+- 8 AREZRT
RAMERASEARY
272,221,0007t( Z&F =R
FH=A=+-A: MM
KERERBR

RZBZTF+_A=1—
B AEEZHRITREAm
B AR 886,741,000 70
(ZB—NAF+=ZA=1+—
B &)@\ EKEERE
®i Rk

RIBZEBF+_A=1—
H AEBZRITERA
R #5149,994,000C( = &
—WF+=ZA=+—8:
1) KB BEIR KL SRk 3
AR RIELR o
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

Outstanding balances with related parties

40. FER X SR 40 (4F)

(e) BAERKREESR

2020 2019
—ECFF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
Due from associates: FEUESE &= A A
Trade receivables (note 24) JEUNE 5508 (Fi7E24) 378 36,391
Contract assets (note 23) EH&E (HE23) = 142,474
378 178,865
Due from fellow subsidiaries UK EEES 2
under control of RRENMBAFR :
Shuifa Group:
Prepayments, other TERTFIE  H A EUGERIE K
receivables and Hin&EE (F1sE25)
other assets (note 25) 29,270 -
Payments in advance TEfTEIE (PFRE 18)
(note 18) 17,555 -
Contract assets BHIEE (MIFE23)
(note 23) 2,156 -
48,981 -
Due to the ultimate holding FERT AR A A]
company:
Other payables and accruals ~ EAbfEFRIERETE A 1,486,961 =
Due to fellow subsidiaries FERZKEEEES 2
under control of RRHBAFR :
Shuifa Group:
Other payables and E At T FRIE R FEET B
accruals 5,000 10,000
Due to associates: FEfSEEE AR
Other payables and E e R E R AT E A
and accruals (note 28) (FfizE28) 1,000 =
Contract liabilities (note 29) A#aE (ME29) = 11,411
1,000 11,411

“RCTEFR
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. FEFR R SR (E)
BALANCES (Continued)
(f) Compensation of key management personnel of the (f) FEEFTEEEBASHEFN
Group
2020 2019
—E-FE —ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and e R REYHE
benefits in kind 4,225 7,742
Pension scheme contributions  R{R& 5T 213k 104 198
4,329 7,940
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments BRAEERITRARMS N E—FTFS
are included in note 8 to the financial statements. BN S RERMITES o
41. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 41. RIS EEE
Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in AEZRIFERNCEZLME
their entirety E
2020 2019
—E-FF —E—NE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARETT AREFIT
Gross amounts of assets BB EERR
continued to be recognised:
Discounted Bills BRIR IR = 39,370
Endorsed Bills BHEZER (a) 14,870 26,959
14,870 66,329
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41. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety (Continued)

Note:

(a)

Endorsed Bills

At 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by certain local banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed Bills”)
with a total carrying amount of RMB14,870,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB26,959,000) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to those suppliers. The Endorsed Bills had a maturity of
one to eleven months at 31 December 2020. In accordance with the Law
of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Bills
have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default. In
the opinion of the Directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks
and rewards, which include default risks relating to the Endorsed Bills,
and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of
the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled. Subsequent
to the endorsement, the Group did not retain any rights on the use of
the Endorsed Bills, including sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed
Bills to any other third parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the
trade payables settled by the Endorsed Bills during the year to which the
suppliers have recourse was RMB14,870,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB26,959,000).

-F=

41. ERMEEE

& (%8)

*Eém& ltEEw%B’J EE ﬁlﬂﬂg
EGE)

BfaE

(a)

TEER

=
=

e

A

4B
A

RZZBZZF+_A=+—H K&
EEFREETEMRITEINEERR
BEAR# 14,870,000t (=T — L4
+=ZA=+—8: AR¥ 26,959,000
TNETERER(EEZEER)D A
ETETHER  UEERMFZSHE
EREMENESHIE - R_T_TF
+ZA=+—R EEZEMHIH
KEMA—Z+—@A - REFEERE
% P ERRITEY - BEZRERR
BEABRAREBER - EERA
REEBDREBRID R K ER(2IE
BEZREORR)  RAtEERRE
EZRREBEEERENE S FIEDN
2EREE - BE%R - AEEWLER
BEAEEZBNEMAERN - 2R
EAEME=FHE « EEERE
EZR - FANUHERAERENE
EZRFEENE S KEMBEMAKER
—E-TF+-A=+—HNLKER
BEA AR 14870000 (=F— N
F: AR¥E26,959,0007T) °
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41. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC, with
a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB27,082,000 (referred to as
the “Derecognised Bills”) (31 December 2019: RMB10,840,000).
The Derecognised Bills had a maturity from one to ten months at
31 December 2020. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amount of the Derecognised Bills. The maximum exposure to loss from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is
equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
are not significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expense of
RMB2,200,000 (2019: RMB2,067,000) (note 6) on discounted bills
receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(1) Major non-cash transactions

1)

During the year, the Group’s own-occupied properties of
RMB50,037,000 (2019: RMB214,730,000) and right-
of-use assets of RMB3,511,000 (2019: RMB7,195,000)
were transferred to investment properties (note 14).

During the year, the Group’s other loan of RMB41,000,000
(2019: nil) was transferred to other payables and accruals
as a project deposit.

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB25,106,000
(2019: RMB4,901,000) and RMB25,106,000 (2019:
RMB1,296,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for plant and office premises and land.
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(2) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

42,

mEHRERERMEE (B)

\0

(2) METHELEZBREY

Amount
Bank due to the
advances for Intermediate
Bank and discounted Lease Senior Interest holding
other loans bills liabilities notes payables company
RITR MHRER FEf R
RibER RITER HEER BRER FERFIE ATHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
At31 December 2019  R-Z—N&
+-A=t—-H 2912309 38,889 8,457 2,815,135 38,680 10,000
At 1 January 2020 e e e
—A—A 2,912,309 38,889 8,457 2,815,135 38,680 10,000
Changes from RERERED
financing cash flows (94,107) (38,889) (8,886) (1,111,621) (179,940) 1,548,920
New leases HHE - - 25,106 = = =
Termination &1k - - (282) - - -
Decrease asaresultof B COVID-19 478
Covid-19-related ReRe
rent concessions bz - - (52) = = =
Lease modification HEBH - - (313) - - -
Interest payables FEfIFIS (138,184) (2,200) - (40,031) 180,415 =
Interest expense (note 6) |57 (Hz6) 175,642 2,200 726 146,660 (20,041) 38,903
Accelerated amortisation BYER BRALZ
of financing transaction k& A
cost (note 6) (HizE6) = = = 8,856 - =
Foreign exchange HhE 5,222 = = = = (46,391)
Exchange realignment B 5% (9,007) - (45) (119,804) - (59,471)
Acquisition of subsidiaries YtE&HIBAE] 4,000 = 1,489 = = =
Gain on repurchase and B8 Rt B
cancellation of FEOE
senior notes - - - (211,099) - -
Other non-cash HihiERe g
movements* (41,000) - - - (13,087) -
At31 December 2020 —E-T#E
+-A=+—H 2,814,875 - 26,200 1,488,096 6,027 1,491,961

* During the year, the Group’s other loan of RMB41,000,000 was
transferred to other payables and accruals.

* During the year, interest on an other loan of RMB13,087,000 was
waived by the creditor.
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 42.
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

mEHRERERMEE (B)

(2) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 2 MEFTHELEZEBEEH
(Continued) (%)
Amount
Bank duetothe
advances for intermediate
Bankand  discounted lease  Convertible Senior Interest holding
other loans bills liabilities bonds notes payables company
Bk ERZE FEffrhmEEk
EpER  BOER  HERE wWhRER  BARE  EAFE  2AFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At31 December 2018 W=F-N\F
+-A=t-H 2,956,304 - - 9,000 280,012 116433 -
Effectof adoption of ~ FRAAEEE B RS
IFRS 16 REZ6%H2 - - 10722 - - = -
At 1 January 2019 RIE-NE
—A-H 2,956,804 - 10,722 %,000 2,850,012 116,433 -
Changes from BERETED
financing
cash flows (83,110) 38,839 (3,382) (10324)  (312719)  (229,040) 10,000
New leases Mg - = 1296 = = = -
Termination &k - - (702) - - - -
Issue expenses BORY - - - - (83,137) = =
Interest payables [EfIFIS (157,368) (2,067) - (5332) (211264 376,031 =
Interest expense 2% (fiz6)
(note 6) 183,626 2,067 510 5332 215,754 - -
Foreign exchange ERERTE
loss, net 1,952 - - - - - -
Exchange realignment [ 5 33% 5,405 = 13 = 46,069 = =
Other non-cash EFRLEY
movements - - - (85,676) 310,420 (224,744) -
At31 December 2019 —ZF-N%&
+-F=t-H 2912,309 38,889 8457 - 2815135 38,680 10,000
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 42. ZFERERERME(E)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(3) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (3) REEFEIELEZEEEH
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of FFARESRERNHEERSME
cash flows is as follows: BEBIAT -

2020

ok Jamt- 3

RMB’000

ARETT

Within operating activities ETREIN 3,832
Within financing activities mMEEEN 8,886
12,718
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

43. EHFERHESHERM TR

EHESRTIANKEHRNEREDR

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T~
2020 - - 3 3
Financial assets SRIEE
Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair value Financial
at fair value  through other assets at
through comprehensive amortised
profit or loss income cost Total
BATE
BAYFE EEREH
FEHREEH FHAEA R
FAEEE  2EWEN RAEEN
ERIEE ERIEE SRIEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTE ARBTRE ARETR
Equity investments EERATEFZ B HEE)
designated at FTAE b2 EKER
fair value BmiRE
through other
comprehensive income - 10,530 - 10,530
Trade and U E 53K IE K R E 1%
bills receivables 49,244 - 3,521,160 3,570,404
Financial assets FTATER A -
included in Hh eI KR
prepayments, REMEE
other receivables CHEE
and other assets - - 678,485 678,485
Pledged deposits HIRER - = 47,169 47,169
Cash and cash ReMREEED
equivalents - - 899,789 899,789
49,244 10,530 5,146,603 5,206,377

“RCTEFR
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. HERHEISHEMTI A (E)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments EEEeRMTARBERRNERERN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) T ()
Financial liabilities SHERE

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

RIS AR

HerEE

RMB’000

ARETT

Trade and bills payables ENE SRR ENRE 1,921,875
Financial liabilities included T AEMENTIE N B RIEN TR A E

in other payables and accruals 1,708,163

Senior notes BREE 1,488,096

Interest-bearing bank and other loans Hf B 8R17 M EME R 2,814,875

Lease liabilities HEAaE 26,200

7,959,209
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. HEREI TSI A (E)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments FHEeRMTAXNREHARNERED
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) ™ (&)
2019 —E-NF
Financial assets TREE
Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair value Financial
at fair value  through other assets at
through comprehensive amortised
profit or loss income cost Total
ZAYE
BRYE FEHHEE
FrEHHEEE) FTAEA R
T AEER ZEYER PXAET =R
TREE CREE TRIEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Equity investments EERAVEF= B HEE)
designated at FTAE b2 EKER
fair value iR E
through other
comprehensive income - 11,414 - 11,414
Trade and FEWE 5 R R BN ER R
bills receivables 32,349 - 3,104,115 3,136,464
Financial assets FTARNRIE - Re K
included in H i R IE 2
prepayments, EHEE
deposits and
other receivables - - 702,322 702,322
Financial assets at BAFEFEAEE
fair value through FTABRNSREE
profit or loss 5,000 - = 5,000
Pledged deposits EARER - - 54,867 54,867
Cash and cash equivalents R & RIBEEEY - = 1,082,835 1,082,835
37,349 11,414 4,944,139 4,992,902

= B L
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31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued)

Financial liabilities

43. #HEREISMERMT R (8)
EREMTARREWANEEELD
T8
AR

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

RERSERANET 2

WemasE

RMB’000

ARBFIT

Trade and bills payables N E S FERENRE 1,438,054
Financial liabilities included BT AEL M FRIE N ST IR Y

in other payables and accruals SRBE 186,133

Senior notes BhREE 2,815,135

Bank advances for discounted bills ~ BRIRZEIEIRITER 38,889

Interest-bearing bank and other loans Kt 88817 & H A &3k 2,912,309

Lease liabilities HEBE 8,457

7,398,977
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44. €T AN AFEHEEAFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS e 3
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial AEECmT A(RRDHFRERE -
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably FREEEAFTESEHEEERIN R
approximate to fair values due to short term to maturity, are as follows: HEEAFERT :
Carrying amounts Fair values
BRE{E AFEHE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEE —E-NEF k- -3 3 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFRE ARETT ARE®FR ARETR

Financial asset SRIEE
Equity investments designated 3§ ERAFEEAEEH

at fair value through STAE b2 EREA

other comprehensive income EREE 10,530 11414 10,530 11,414
Financial assets at fair value BEATEGEAEE

through profit or loss STABZREREE = 5,000 = 5,000

10,530 16,414 10,530 16,414

Financial liabilities SRIBE
2022 Senior Notes R CFEERE 1,488,096 2,815,135 1,431,125 2,623,987
Non-current portion of M BIRITER R EMER

interest-bearing bank FERBNER D ¢

and other loans:

Bank loans IRITER 1,190,683 1,197,730 1,166,077 1,161,186

Other loans HAER 443,002 339,890 440,822 296,228

3,121,781 4,352,755 3,038,024 3,981,401
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44, ST APNAFERATE

286

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, short term pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets and financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and provision approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income have been estimated using a
market-based valuation technique based on assumptions that are not
supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires
the Directors to determine comparable public companies (peers) based
on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate
price-to-book (“P/B”) multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value
of the comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading
multiple is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity
and size differences between the comparable companies based on
company-specific facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple
is applied to the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted
equity investments to measure the fair value. The Directors believe
that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique,
which are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position,
and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, management has estimated the
potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to

the valuation model.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

44,

FH(E)

W EATE B A RS
Bl as R0 L TTARA R M AT -
EREC i EAAR AN ERHE

S TAMAFERAFE

FSARME

ERHERVENBABNELETE -

AFEFR
TRIAALEESRMTANR FEE
S

BATEFBIEE -

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTEEGEATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
R EXTHE EXTFTHE
HiZRE LPN 6] LD e Total
(5—18) (B5=E) (B=E) st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT AREFTT AREFTT
As at 31 December 2020 R=B=F&E
+-A=+-H
Bills receivable eSS - 49,244 = 49,244
Equity investments designated EERATETE
at fair value through BHEESTAEM
other comprehensive income PENEHERRE - = 10,530 10,530
- 49,244 10,530 59,774
As at 31 December 2019 RZZT—NF
+=-A=+—~
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFEAEES
through profit or loss FABRNSREE - 5,000 = 5,000
Bills receivable W RE - 32,349 = 32,349
Equity investments designated EERATEFER
at fair value through HET AELM
other comprehensive income ZENENERITE - - 11,414 11,414
- 37,349 11,414 48,763
“ECFEFHR  PEKEHEEEREEEGRAA
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44, ST APNAFERATE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) Eq(B)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEEFR (FE)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the FRE=ZEBAFEFENEBNOT :

year are as follows:

2020 2019
—BCFE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTFIT
Equity investments at fair value BAFEF 2B EEEE
through other AEMZ2EREROBRAKRE
comprehensive income:
At 1 January n—A—H 11,414 5,657
Total income/(losses) recognised in ~ REM 2 E IR RIERH
other comprehensive income WA/ (E18) 158 (519) 639
Purchases = - 5,000
Exchange realignment bE X AR (365) 118
At 31 December ®n+=-—A=+—H 10,530 11,414
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value R_ZB-_ZEF+=-_A=+—H ' x£H
as at 31 December 2020(31 December 2019: nil). BEEAUA T EFENSRAEB(Z
T-NE+-_A=+—H: )"
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no transfers of HE_Z-_TE+_A=+—HILHF
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers B eREERERHEENE—EHE
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities “EzENEATAEFGEER - WINE
(2019: nil). BASBHE=B(—ZT—NF: 8)-
The Group did not have any financial assets for which fair values are RZBE-_ZTF+=-_A=+—H ~£EH
disclosed as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: nil). BMEEMEREATENSREE (=

ThE+-A=+—8: &) -
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

FH(E)
ATFEEH (R

WELFEAMEE

Fair value measurement using

44. £ TAMNAFERAFE

ERAUTEEFEATFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
b EXTHE EXTIHE
HiBRE LD ¢ LD St Total
(55—1E) (5=E) (=) #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT ARETFTT ARETT
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-FEE
+=A=+—H
2022 Senior Notes (note 31) R CFEERE
(FE31) 1,431,125 = = 1,431,125
Interest-bearing bank and M EERITREME -
other loans, non-current portion FEREE D - - 1,606,899 1,606,899
1,431,125 1,606,899 3,038,024
As at 31 December 2019 R=B—-1&E
+-A=+-H
2022 Senior Notes (note 31) —ECoCFEEER
(FH2E31) 2,523,987 = = 2,523,987
Interest-bearing bank and BTESRIT REAE K -
other loans, non-current portion RIS = = 1,457,414 1,457 414
2,523,987 - 1,457,414 3,981,401

= B L
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45, A EEEE N REBUE

290

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other loans, senior notes and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables, prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, trade and bills payables, other payables
and accruals and bank advances for discounted bills, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing bank and
other loans are disclosed in note 30.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in the market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and variable rate debts. At 31 December 2020, approximately 39.6%
(2019: 54.2%) of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other loans
bore interest at fixed rates.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably

possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,

of the Group’s profit/loss before tax (through the impact on floating rate

45. gjﬁ)ﬁlﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ B R BUR

TRETEMEEMEERFTERBNR
T RNEERB AR (B2 S ERE
FE)NN KA EEHHAE -

loans).
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit/loss
basis points before tax
I RBARHEiE
s, (iEL) (iR
RMB’000
ARETTT
2020 —BEE
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 1,257
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (1,257)
2019 —E-NF
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 2,688
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (2,688)
Foreign currency risk Stk 2 b

The Group’s principal businesses are located in Mainland China and

most of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s

assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for those of the

overseas subsidiaries which functional currencies are currencies other

than RMB and certain items of cash and cash equivalents that are

denominated in HK$, US$ and other currencies.

= B L
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45, A EEEE N REBUE
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AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

If RMB strengthens/weakens against HK$ as a reasonable possible
change of 5%, the profit before tax of the Group will decrease/increase
by approximately RMB184,994,000 (2019: the loss before tax of the
Group will increase/decrease by approximately RMB82,189,000),
due to changes in fair values of monetary assets and liabilities. The
Group does not consider that it has any significant exposure to the
risk of fluctuation in the exchange rate between US$ and RMB as a
reasonable possible change of 5% in RMB against US$ would have no
significant financial impact on the Group’s profit.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties
and its associates. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets and the exposure to credit risk.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. B EEERE HR RBUER

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

12-month ECLs

(#&)

KO R FARPEE (48)

R-B-TF+-A=+—H

+=EREH Lifetime ECLs
EEBE 2B EERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
% 1PEE 52 DBk 3R Bt @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Contract assets* BHEE - = - 3,245,141 3,245,141
Trade receivables* FEWE 5508 - - - 4,154,464 4,154,464
Bills receivable EEE 49,244 = = = 49,244
Financial assets included BRSENEER
in prepayments, other H iy UGRIE R
receivables and other assets HEtEENEERE
- Normal** - EFE** 677,558 - - - 677,558
- Doubtful** - A& - 110,405 - - 110,405
Pledged deposits BHRER
— Not yet past due - RiH 47,169 = = = 47,169
Cash and cash equivalents BReRHEEEY
— Not yet past due By Nk 899,789 = = = 899,789
1,673,760 110,405 - 7,399,605 9,183,770
—ETEFE  PEKBEEEREEERAR]
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

12-month ECLs

45. B3 E PEEE H B BB

&)
R KH O R4 R PR ER (48)

RZFE—-NF+=—A=+—H

+=EAES Lifetime ECLs
=FEE#E 2HESEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1REE F2MEE ERIEN ez st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Contract assets* BWEE" = = = 2,199,246 2,199,246
Trade receivables* FEWE 5508 * = = = 3,706,413 3,706,413
Bills receivable EEE 32,349 = = = 32,349
Financial assets included BRNENEER
in prepayments, other Hin U GRIE R
receivables and other assets HEtEENERERE
- Normal** - EF** 576,215 - - - 576,215
— Doubtful** - A& - 211,748 - - 211,748
Pledged deposits iinies
— Not yet past due - R 54,867 = = = 54,867
Cash and cash equivalents A RHEZEY
— Not yet past due - R 1,082,835 = = = 1,082,835
1,746,266 211,748 - 5,905,659 7,863,673
* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies the * AR AN E B SR E R A B AR B

simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in notes 24 and 23 to the financial statements,

respectively.

o The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be

“doubtful”.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 6.50% and 21.44% of the Group’s
trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers, respectively. All of these customers have good
credit quality, taking into account their credit history, and the long-
term business relationship established between the customers and the
Group. The Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and monitoring procedures to ensure that there will be
follow-up action to recover overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the settlement from customers and the payment to vendors.

45. B EREERENRBR

&)
RO RERPER (48)
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. B E P ETE BB R EBUR

AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE B (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of REBEER - EREFTAEREIR AR
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, FoAKEz eREEINHERNT
is as follows:
3 to less
than 12
Less than months 1to5 Beyond
On demand 3 months ZEDR years 5 years Total
BEk LR=EA +=f@R —-ERE EENE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR  ARETT ARETRT ARWTR AREFRT  AR%TR

2020 —E°8%F
Senior notes BEEE = - 30,586 1,651,517 - 1,682,103
Interest-bearing Wi BRI EMER
bank and other loans - 586,006 672,885 1,061,770 791,377 3,112,038
Trade and bills payables JEFTE 5308
RERSFE 584,971 131,147 1,205,757 - - 1,921,875

Financial liabilities STAE N TR

included in other REERMN

payables and accruals ~ &£RIE(E 1,708,163 = = = - 1,708,163
Lease liabilities HEAR - 399 1,971 10,149 31,018 43,537

2,293,134 717,552 1,911,199 2,723,436 822,395 8,467,716
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. B EEERE HR RBUER

AND POLICIES (Continued) &)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE B (&)
3toless
Less than than 12 1tob Beyond
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
ZEDR
REX  OR=MR +=f&R —ZRF AERE Bt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARKTT ARETT ARETT  AREKTR

2019 —TNE

Convertible bonds * ATARES - - - - - -

Senior notes BERE = - 58,472 3,345,617 - 3,404,089
Interest-bearing bt 2 RTREMER
bank and other loans - 723,495 748,089 1,114,846 696,586 3,283,016
Trade and bills payables & E 5308
BUINES 430,543 292,124 715,387 - - 1,438,054

Financial liabilities FTARfENFE
included in other R ER

payables and accruals ~ £HE R 186,133 = = = = 186,133
Lease liabilities HEGE - 524 1,752 5,188 4,377 11,841
616,676 1,016,143 1,523,700 4,465,651 700,963 8,323,133

*

Conversion rights of the convertible bonds are not included in the table * ARRESFNEIREL BT A X
above as they will be settled through issuance of own shares. RAREEEBETEFRMOMESH -

—E-TEER  EABRZERsEsRAR 297
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AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s objectives of its capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by
pricing services and products commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt comprises trade and
bills payables, bank advances for discounted bills, interest-bearing
bank and other loans, lease liabilities, other payables and accruals,
senior notes and tax payable, less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. Adjusted capital includes the liability component of
convertible bonds and equity attributable to owners of the Company.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

&)
BEXER

AEBENEREE B REREAEER
BIRERRE ) - ABH ATHE B RAR R
S E R S H AL M 2SR E R AR A -
I 3838 SR R 7K AR B A AR TS I EE am Y
FEBRBEREH R SR -

AEBZEERLLOIFFIEA L - NE
BEEEENEELRFLER N E
MEEEENRBREHINARE - BT
BRRPHBENER - AEETRER
BRZAORE - MRREEEAR - %
TR HEEERE -

REBNEREREZEER  ZLEXA
THEBR A RS INREET FEBE
RENESRARENRR  MHRRE
RITER  WERTREMEN  HE
BE - HMENFEREFFIE  B%
EERENTE  BEREMREEE
YRR - KR EEABIEARAL
BHRABRD RARREE ARGE

S o

E\



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2020 —E=FF+=-A=+—H

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. A EIEEREE REBUE

AND POLICIES (Continued) &)

Capital management (Continued) BEXEE(E)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital AEERKESRFERLERERED
level in order to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted BAKE - AT IFHER - NEBRKE
by the Group include, but are not limited to, reviewing future cash NEEXRBEEETRNEHRKRES
flow requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules MEERMZ TR EBEBRIREN - (REF
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking Al ARITREERIEKE R ABKLEST
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if EIMBEE(NFEE) - UEREASEE
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of capital to BEEEEKFENEATIFEHER - Rk
support its business. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting HHIRMEIRLL R ¢

periods were as follows:

2020 2019
—E-FE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
Trade and bills payables FERTE 5 3IB MER R 1,921,875 1,438,054
Bank advances for discounted bills  BAIREIR 7 RITE = 38,889
Interest-bearing bank and other loans K 28817 & H A & 2,814,875 2,912,309
Lease liabilities HE&E 26,200 8,457
Other payables and accruals H Ao fE A FIE K FERTRE 2,107,551 384,425
Senior notes BEZR 1,488,096 2,815,135
Tax payable FERTFRIR 102,010 22,245
Less: cash and cash equivalents o Re MBS EEY (899,789) (1,082,835)
Less: pledged deposits B IR (47,169) (54,867)
Net debt (A) BT (A) 7,513,649 6,481,812
Equity attributable to owners of RNABIER NELER
the Company 4,214,557 3,928,666
Adjusted capital EREBER 4,214,557 3,928,666
Capital and net debt (B) BARFE (B) 11,728,206 10,410,478
Gearing ratio (A/B) B (A/B) 64% 62%
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  46. A SRR E

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at RIFEHR - BEARRRWNBEARRLE
the end of the reporting period is as follows: AR
2020 2019
k- ko —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% -~ BB KR 13,475 14,813
Amounts due from subsidiaries R B A RIFIE 3,990,728 3,868,985
Investments in subsidiaries RETBE R EIRE 44,890 44,388
Equity investment designed at BEEREATEFE8HEE
fair value through AR EE KSR E
other comprehensive income 5,151 6,029
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 4,054,244 3,934,215
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments, deposits AR -« e REMERGRIA
and other receivables 25 -
Cash and cash equivalents Be MIREEEY 9,672 63,348
Total current assets mEEERE 9,697 63,348
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

the end of the reporting period is as follows: (Continued)
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46. KABIMBIATERRR (B)

AR : (&)

RIERR - BRARBANHBEARE

2020 2019
—ECEE —E—NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals o Ath FE A FUE K FER TR 1,479,265 23,738
Provision B -
Interest-bearing bank and other loans Fff 8817 R H A E X 125,665 129,415
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE < BB A B FRIE 10,747 9,093
Total current liabilities mE AR 1,615,677 162,246
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES HEBEFE (1,605,980) (98,898)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BELERRSERE
LIABILITIES 2,448,264 3,835,317
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEE
Interest-bearing bank and other loans B 88817 & H A &K = 132,402
Senior notes BREE 1,488,096 2,815,135
Total non-current liabilities R EEEE 1,488,096 2,947,537
Net assets BEFE 960,168 887,780
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 174,333 174,333
Reserves (note 36) % (FI7E36) 785,835 713,447
Total equity B RE 960,168 887,780

= B L
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

46. AATBHIMFSHRILE (

7

s

m

)

7

Note: Mi3E
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARATNRERENT :
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through
Share other com- Share Exchange
premium prehensive Contributed option fluctuation Accumulated
account income surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BATENEER
EEHH AR
SAlENER 58
RiEEE EELTHEEE BARE BiRER R ikt ZitEiE 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 WZE-NF-A—-H 796,818 (7,915) 11997 68,366 8578 (1,268,783) (390,944)
Loss for the year TEEEHR - - - - = (160,175) (160,175)
Change in fair value of RATE;rERAEY
equity instruments AR 2 E KRR
at fair value through ExTANATE
other comprehensive 2% IKHE
income, net of tax - 639 - - - - 639
Other comprehensive HinZ2EHEs
income - = = = (13,936) = (13.936)
Total comprehensive AERZENEEE
income for the year - 639 - - (13,936) (160,175) (173 472)
Issue of new shares ESBEL ) 1,274,617 = = = = = 1,274,617
Transfer of share option WERER e
reserve upon the expiry EERRERE
of share options - - - (16,924) - 16,924 -
Equity-settled share option PR A BEERIELHE
arrangements - - - 3,246 - - 3,246
2018 final dividend declared  EER=T—/\F
RERE - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+-A=t+-H 2,071,435 (7,276) 11,997 54,688 (5,358) (1,412,039) 713447
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

46. XATMIMFIRRR (45)

7

Note: (Continued) iz - (48)

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (Continued)

ARRMFERELT - (8)

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through
Share other com- Share Exchange
premium prehensive Contributed option fluctuation Accumulated
account income surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BAFEER
HETMIALL
GRkEn SR ERKE
BiiER BEATHERE BB Rl ekt 1 RitiiE gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 WZZE-FF-A-H 2,071,435 (7,276) 11,997 54,688 (5,358) (1,412,039) 713,447
Profit for the year REREA - - - = = 130,592 130,592
Change in fair value of RATE;EEAEY
equity instruments AR 2E KRR
at fair value through BRIANNTE
other comprehensive 2% NKHE
income, net of tax - (519) - - - - (519)
Other comprehensive Eth2EbE
income - - - - (58,319) - (58,319)
Total comprehensive TEE2ANRES
income for the year - (519) - - (58,319) 130,592 71,754
Issue of new shares BOARG - - - - - - -
Transfer of share option REREERNER
reserve upon the expiry Bk
of share options - - - - - - -
Equity-settled share option AR A BEERIERHE
arrangements - - - 634 - - 634
2019 final dividend declared  EER=Z—NE
RERE - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2020 i S
+-A=1+-A 2,071,435 (7,795) 11,997 55,322 (63,677) (1,281,447) 785,835
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 25 March 2021
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